


AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012

INLAND DIVERSIFIED 10-K FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

DOLLAR AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS

AS OF AND FORTHEYEAR ASOFANDFORTHEYEAR

ENDED 12/31/2012 ENDED 12/31/2011

Total Assets $2393523 $1010836

Real Estate $2271488 $914127

Cash $36299 $60254

Securities $40941 $17903

Other $44795 $18552

Total Debt $1249422 $464956

Mortgage Payable $1156582 $462418

Mortgage Debt to Total Assets 48% 46%

Total Number of Properties 141 49

Retail 133 46

Office

Industrial

Multi-family

Economic Occupancy 97.7% 97.3%

Current Distribution Rate 6.0% 6.0%

Cash Flow From Operations $56670 $27872

Funds From Operations FF0 $55830 $26672

Distributions Paid $51767 $23641

TOP TENANTS BASED ON ANNUALIZED BASE RENT OF PORTFOLIO

AS OF 12/31/2012

Kohls 4.4%

Walgreens 4.2%

Dollar General 2.9%

PetSmart 2.4%

Ross Dress for Less 2.2%



2.012 wfl be remembered as tbe year we finisbed hufding

the foundate.n of our company Our phmary offering

concluded with strong investor demand for our stock and

we were able to fully invest the capitai we raised in that

offering by the end of the year This gives us tremendous

momentum entering 2013 At yea.r end our propeffies were

exp.ene.ncing exc..e puonal financial occupancy at 98% our

stream is generat.ed by leaSes with leading retailers

with average terms extending many years into the future.

Our overall cost ot debt is comparatively low at weighted

ave.rage annual interest rate of 4.13% with majority of our

loans at fixed rates with several years to riraturity

How did we get here Through methodical balance of

aggressive property acquishion c.ontract negotiation and

financ.ial verification related to the due diligence process

Our acpuisition team takes pride in keeping steady flow of

potential requisitions available for our review Similarly our

due diligence team takes pride in knowing every possible

aspect of each property we buy before we close Our PElT

management team blends the work of both groups to close

on those properties that meet our rigorous criteria This

proces.s results in knowledg%able decision making In short

we are t.horou.ghly fa.miliar with the properties we buy And

importantly we do not buy property unless everyone

involved in the process agrees on the final dec.ision

The cornerstone of our business philosophy has been to

construct company that will provid.e consistent stable

returnsfor our sioc.kholders While this would have been an

enva ble goal in times past we believe it is essential in the

current economic environment For that reaeen we ha.ve

and will continue to place particular emphasis on acquiring

newer prop.rties thr.t are top performers in their respective

markets After we acquire properties our property

management philosophy is hands on We spend time

cultivating reiationshilss with our tenants that go beyond

simply providing 5c services to each oropedy

Our rranagemrs make point of working with tenants to

understand their husines.s We try to anticipate problems so

we cr.ri mitigate their impact on the performance of each

property We may consult witlr cedain te nants we know well

regarding their views on specific markets before we buy

property in those markets

We like the size and diversity of our company We have

built company that produces revenue from tenants

that primarily provide basic goods and services to the

public or tha.t occupy strategic role in servicing other

businesses For example our non-retail tenarts include

FedEx and Siemens the international engineenng firm

We are big enough to have economies of scale in our

purchasing power hut not so big that we require large

management team

Because we acquired number of properties at the end

of last year 2013 will be the first year in whch all 141

properties in our portfolio produce revenue for full 12

months Accord gly we expect corporate level expenses as

ratio of overall revenue to decrease significantly resulting

in substantial increase in earnings

In 2013 we will move on to the next stage in our life cycle

during which we will reevaluate all of our assets We may

add to and possibly sell properties from the portfolio We

will also consider strategic plans for providing liquidity to

our stockholders liquidity event could include listing of

the company on national stock exchange merger with

listed company or sale ot the company or its assets

Any decision will be based on number of factors and

will ultimately be made wth the goal of achieving the most

postive results for our stockholders We will update you on

our progress as we move forward

These are exciting brues for us All of us at Inland

Oiversified appreciate your support and look forward to

another profitable year for our company

ROBERT PARKS

Chairman of the Board

BARRY LAZARUS

President and Cfrief

Operating Officer
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STRENGTH THROUGH PORTFOLIO DIVERSITY
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STRATEGIC ACQUISITIONS AND HNANCING

MANAGEABLE MORTGAGE DEBT MATURU1ES
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THE INLAND DIVERSIFIED BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ROBERT PARKS BARRY LAZARUS BRENDA GUJRAL LEE DANIELS

Chairman of the Board President and Chief Director Independent Director

Operating Officer

GERALD GRUPE CHARLES WURTZEBACH HEtW LAWTON

Indepenoent Director Independent Director Independent Director
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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON D.C 20549

FORM 10-K

IJ ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2012

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

FOR THE TRANSITION PERIOD FROM TO

COMMISSION FILE NUMBER 000-53945

Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc
Exact name of registrant as specified In Its charter

Maryland
26-2875286

State or other jurisdiction of I.R.S Employer

incorporation or organization
Identification No

2901 Butterfield Road Oak Brook Illinois

Address of principal executive offices

630-218-8000

Registrants telephone number including area code

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12b of the Act

None

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12g of the

Common stock 80.001 par value per share

Title of

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is well-known seasoned issuer as defined in Rule 405 of the

Act Yes No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15d

Act Yes No II

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15d of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports

and has been subject to the filing requirements for the past 90 days Yes EEl No

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate website if any every

Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T 232.45 of this chapter during the

preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files Yes 151 No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein and will not

be contained to the best of registrants knowledge in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III

of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K 151

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is large accelerated filer an accelerated filer non-accelerated filer or smaller

reporting company See definitions of large accelerated filer accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 2b-2 of

the Exchange Act

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer

Non-accelerated filer 151
Smaller reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is shell company as defined in Rule 2b-2 of the Exchange Act Yes No tEl

There is no established market for the registrants shares of common stock The number of shares held by non-affiliates as of June 30

2012 the last business day of the registrants most recently completed second fiscal quarter was 89720504

As of March 2013 there were 115666318 shares of the registrants common stock outstanding

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The registrant incorporates by reference portions of its Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

which is expected to be filed no later than April 30 2013 into Part III of this Form 10-K to the extent stated herein

60523
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PART

Item Business

General

Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc which we refer to herein as the Company we our or us was incorporated in June

2008 as Maryland corporation We were formed to acquire and develop diversified portfolio of commercial real estate located in

the United States and Canada We also may invest in other real estate assets such as interests in real estate investment trusts or

REITs or other real estate operating companies that own these assets joint ventures and commercial mortgage debt Our sponsor

Inland Real Estate Investment Corporation referred to herein as our Sponsor or IREIC is subsidiary of The Inland Group Inc

Various affiliates of our Sponsor are involved in our business We are externally managed and advised by Inland Diversified Business

Manager Advisor Inc referred to herein as our Business Manager wholly owned subsidiary of our Sponsor Our Business

Manager is responsible for overseeing and managing our day-to-day operations Our properties typically are managed by one of Inland

Diversified Real Estate Services LLC Inland Diversified Asset Services LLC Inland Diversified Leasing Services LLC or Inland

Diversified Development Services LLC referred to collectively herein as our Real Estate Managers These entities are indirectly

controlled by the four principals of The Inland Group Inc Messrs Goodwin Baum Cosenza and Parks Unless otherwise noted all

dollar amounts are stated in thousands

On August 24 2009 we commenced our best efforts offering authorized to sell up to 500000000 shares of our common stock at

price equal to $10.00 per share on best efforts basis We were also authorized to sell up to 50000000 shares of our common stock

at price equal to $9.50 per share to stockholders who elected to participate in our distribution reinvestment plan or DRP The

dealer manager of this best efforts offering was Inland Securities Corporation wholly owned subsidiary of our Sponsor The best

efforts portion of the offering was completed on August 23 2012 We sold total of 110485936 shares generating $1099311 in

aggregate gross offering proceeds We filed another registration statement so that we can continue offering and selling shares of

common stock to stockholders who choose to participate in the DRP As of December 31 2012 we had sold 5323426 shares

generating $50573 in aggregate gross offering proceeds pursuant to the DRP

At December 31 2012 we owned 133 retail properties four office properties and two industrial properties collectively totaling 12.4

million square feet and two multi-family properties totaling 444 units The properties are located in 31 states As of December 31

2012 we had
very diversified portfolio of properties with our top two tenants Kohls Department Stores Inc and Walgreens

comprising 4.4% and 4.2% of our total annualized base rent respectively and by tenant type with our top two dollar stores including

off price clothing and
grocery comprising 16.9% and 11.5% of our total square feet respectively As of December 31 2012 the

portfolio had weighted average physical occupancy and economic occupancy of 95.7% and 97.7% respectively Economic

occupancy excludes
square footage associated with an earnout component At the time that we acquired certain properties the

purchase agreement contained an earnout component to the purchase price meaning we did not pay portion of the purchase price at

closing for certain vacant spaces although we own the entire property We are not obligated to settle this contingent purchase price

unless the seller obtains leases for the vacant space
within the time limits and parameters set forth in the applicable acquisition

agreement

Segment Data

The Company has one reportable segment as defined by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States U.S GAAP
for the

years
ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 As the Company acquires additional properties in the future we may add

business segments and related disclosures if they become significant Accordingly we did not report any other segment disclosures in

this annual report on Form 10-K

Tax Status

We have elected to be taxed as REIT for federal income tax purposes under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code

of 1986 as amended the Internal Revenue Code beginning with the tax year ended December 31 2009 Because we qualify for

taxation as REIT we generally will not be subject to federal income tax on taxable income that is distributed to stockholders If we

fail to qualify as REIT in any taxable year without the benefit of certain relief provisions we will be subject to federal including

any applicable alternative minimum tax and state income tax on our taxable income at regular corporate rates Even if we qualify for

taxation as REIT we may be subject to certain state and local taxes on our income property or net worth respectively and to federal

income and excise taxes on our undistributed income

Competition

We are subject to significant competition in seeking real estate investments and tenants We compete with many third parties engaged

in real estate investment activities including other REITs specialty finance companies savings and loan associations banks mortgage



bankers insurance companies mutual funds institutional investors investment banking firms lenders hedge funds governmental

bodies and other entities Some of these competitors including larger REITs have substantially greater financial resources than we do

and generally enjoy significant competitive advantages that result from among other things lower cost of capital and enhanced

operating efficiencies

Employees

We do not have any employees In addition all of our executive officers are officers of IREIC or one or more of its affiliates and are

compensated by those entities in part for their service rendered to us We neither separately compensate our executive officers for

their service as officers nor do we reimburse either our Business Manager or Real Estate Managers for any compensation paid to

individuals who also serve as our executive officers or the executive officers of our Business Manager or its affiliates or our Real

Estate Managers provided that for these purposes the corporate secretary of the Company and the Business Manager is not

considered an executive officer

Conflicts of Interest

Certain persons performing services for our Business Manager and Real Estate Managers are employees of IREIC or its affiliates and

may also perform services for its affiliates and other IREIC-sponsored entities These individuals face competing demands for their

time and services and may have conflicts in allocating their time between our business and assets and the business and assets of these

other entities IREIC also may face conflict of interest in allocating personnel and resources among these entities In addition

conflicts exist to the extent that we acquire properties in the same geographic areas where properties owned by other IREIC-sponsored

programs are located In these cases conflict may arise in the acquisition or leasing of properties if we and another IREIC-sponsored

program are competing for the same properties or tenants in negotiating leases or conflict may arise in connection with the resale of

properties if we and another IREIC-sponsored program are selling similarproperties at the same time

Our charter contains provisions setting forth our ability to engage in certain related party transactions Our board of directors reviews

all of these transactions and as general rule any related party transactions must be approved by majority of the directors including

majority of the independent directors not otherwise interested in the transaction Further we may not engage in certain transactions

with entities sponsored by or affiliated with IREIC unless majority of our board of directors including majority of our

independent directors finds the transaction to be fair and reasonable and on terms no less favorable to us than those from an

unaffiliated party under the same circumstances Our board has adopted policy prohibiting us from engaging in the following types

of transactions with IREIC-affiliated entities

purchasing real estate assets from or selling real estate assets to any IREIC-affiliated entities this excludes circumstances

where we have entered into an agreement for services with an entity affiliated with IREIC such as Inland Real Estate

Acquisitions Inc IREA who from time to time may enter into purchase agreement to acquire property and then

assigns the purchase agreement to us
making loans to or borrowing money from any IREIC-affiliated entities this excludes expense advancements under existing

agreements and the deposit of monies in any banking institution affiliated with IREIC and

investing in joint ventures with any IREIC-affiliated entities

This policy does not impact agreements or relationships between us and IREIC and its affiliates that relate to the day-to-day

management of our business

Environmental Matters

As an owner of real estate we are subject to various environmental laws rules and regulations adopted by various governmental

bodies or agencies Compliance with these laws rules and regulations has not had material adverse effect on our business assets or

results of operations financial condition and ability to pay distributions We do not believe that our existing portfolio as of

December 31 2012 will require us to incur material expenditures to comply with these laws and regulations

Executive Officers

The following sets forth certain information with regard to our executive officers as of December 31 2012

Robert Parks 69 has been our chairman of the board and director since our formation

Barry Lazarus 66 has been our president and chief operating officer since May 2009

Cathleen Hrtanek 36 has been our secretary since our formation

Steven Hippel 41 has been our chief financial officer since August 2012 and treasurer and chief accounting officer since November

2009

Roberta Matlin 68 has been our vice president since our formation



Access to Company Information

We electronically file our Annual Report on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports on Form 0-Q Current Reports on Form 8-K and all

amendments to those reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC The public may read and copy any of the reports

that are filed with the SEC at the SECs Public Reference Room at 100 Street NE Washington DC 20549 The public may obtain

information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 800-SEC-0330 The SEC maintains an Internet site

at www.sec.gov that contains reports proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers that file electronically

We make available free of charge by responding to requests addressed to our customer relations group the Annual Report on Form

10-K Quarterly Reports on Form l0-Q Current Reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports on our website

www.inlanddiversified.com These reports are available as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed or

furnished to the SEC

Certifications

We have filed with the SEC the certifications required pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 which are attached

as Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 to this annual report on Form 10-K

Item 1A Risk Factors

The factors described below represent our principal risks Other factors may exist that we do not consider to be signfIcant based on

information that is currently available or that we are not currently able to anticipate The occurrence of any of the risks discussed

below could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition results of operations and ability to pay distributions

to our stockholders Potential investors and our stockholders may be referred to as you or your in this Item IA Risk Factors

section

Risks Related to Our Business

We have incurred net losses on U.S GAAP basis in two of the last three years

We have incurred net loss on U.S GAAP basis in two of the last three years Our losses can be attributed in part to startup costs

and expenses incurred while we increased the size of our portfolio In addition depreciation and amortization substantially reduced

our net income on U.S GAAP basis If we incur net losses in the future our financial condition operations cash flow and our

ability to service our indebtness and pay distributions to our stockholders may be materially and adversely affected We are subject to

all of the business risks and uncertainties associated with any business including the risk that the value of an investors investment

could decline substantially We were formed in June 2008 and as of December 31 2012 had acquired 133 retail properties four office

properties two industrial properties and two multi-family properties We cannot assure you that in the future we will be profitable or

that we will realize growth in the value of our assets

There is no public market for our shares and you may not be able to sell your shares

There is no established public market for our shares and no assurance that one may develop Our charter does not require our directors

to seek stockholder approval to liquidate our assets by specified date nor does our charter require our directors to list our shares on

national exchange by specified date In addition even if our board decides to seek listing of our shares of common stock there is

no assurance that we will satisf the listing requirements or that our shares will be approved for listing Further our charter limits

person or group from owning more than 9.8% in value of our outstanding stock or more than 9.8% in value or in number of shares

whichever is more restrictive of our outstanding common stock without prior approval of our board which may further limit your

ability to sell or otherwise dispose of
your

shares Moreover our share repurchase program includes numerous restrictions that would

limit
your ability to sell

your
shares to us Our board of directors may reject any request for repurchase of shares or amend suspend

or terminate our share repurchase program upon notice Therefore it will be difficult for you to sell your shares promptly or at all If

you are able to sell
your shares you likely will have to sell them at substantial discount to the price you paid for the shares It also is

likely that
your

shares would not be accepted as the primary collateral for loan

Our stockholders may not be able to sell their shares under our share repurchase program and our stockholders are able to sell

their shares under the program they may not be able to recover the amount of their investment in our shares

Our share repurchase program contains numerous restrictions that limit our stockholders ability to sell their shares including those

relating to the number of shares of our common stock that we can repurchase at any time and limiting the funds we will use to repurchase

shares pursuant to the program Under the program as may be amended from time to time we may make ordinary repurchases as defined

in the plan at the following prices

92.5% of the share price for stockholders who have owned their shares continuously for at least one year but less than two

years



95% of the share price for stockholders who have owned their shares continuously for at least two years but less than three

years

97.5% of the share price for stockholders who have owned their shares continuously for at least three
years

but less than four

years and

100% of the share price for stockholders who have owned their shares continuously for at least four years

Additionally for exceptional repurchases as defined in the plan we may repurchase shares at repurchase price equal to 100% of the

share price For purposes of our share repurchase program share price has the following meaning

prior to the date that we first disclose through an applicable public filing an estimated value
per

share that is not based solely

on the offering price of the shares in our most recent best efforts offering referred to herein as the valuation date the share

price will be equal to the offering price of our shares in our most recent best efforts offering which is referred to herein as

the offering price However if we have sold properties or other assets and have made one or more special distributions to

stockholders of all or portion of the net proceeds from the sales the share price prior to the valuation date will be equal to the

offering price less the amount of net sale proceeds per share that constitute return of capital distributed to stockholders as

result of the sales Further in the event that the stockholder requesting repurchase purchased his her or its shares from us at

price that was less than the offering price including at discounted price through the DRP the share price applicable to those

shares prior to the valuation date will be equal to the per share price paid by that stockholder for those shares requested to be

repurchased further reduced if applicable by distributions of net sales proceeds as set forth in the preceding sentence and

after the valuation date the share price will be equal to the lesser of the share price determined in paragraph above or

the most recently disclosed estimated value per share as determined by our board our Business Manager or another firm

that we have chosen for that purpose

We may make ordinary repurchases only ifwe have sufficient funds available to complete the repurchase In any given calendar month

we are authorized to use only the proceeds from our distribution reinvestment plan during that month to make ordinary repurchases

provided that if we have excess funds from our DRP during any particular month we may but are not obligated to carry those excess

funds to the subsequent calendar month for the purpose of making ordinary repurchases Subject to funds being available in the case of

ordinary repurchases we will limit the number of shares repurchased during any calendar year to 5% of the number of shares of common

stock outstanding on December 31 st of the previous calendar year In the event that we determine not to repurchase all of the shares

presented during any month including as result of having insufficient funds or satisfying the 5% limit to the extent we decide to

repurchase shares shares will be repurchased on pro rata basis up to the limits described above Any stockholder whose ordinary

repurchase request has been partially accepted in particular calendar month will have the remainder of his or her request included with

all new repurchase requests we have received in the immediately following calendar month unless he or she chooses to withdraw that

request Further we have no obligation to repurchase shares if the repurchase would violate the restrictions on distributions under Maryland

law which prohibits distributions that would cause corporation to fail to meet statutory tests of solvency

In the case of exceptional repurchases we may repurchase shares upon the death of stockholder who is natural person including

shares held by the stockholder through trust or an IRA or other retirement or profit-sharing plan after receiving written request from

the estate of the stockholder the recipient of the shares through bequest or inheritance even where the recipient has registered

the shares in his or her own name or in the case of the death of settlor of trust the beneficiary of the trust even where the beneficiary

has registered the shares in his or her own name We must however receive the written request within one year after the death of the

stockholder If spouses are joint registered holders of shares the request to repurchase the shares may be made if either of the registered

holders dies If the stockholder is not natural person such as partnership corporation or other similarentity the right to an exceptional

repurchase upon death does not apply

We are authorized to use any funds to make exceptional repurchases In addition there is no one-year holding period applicable to

exceptional purchases and any shares held for less than one year by the deceased will be repurchased at price equal to $9.00 per
share

Further the 5% limit described above will not apply to exceptional repurchases

Moreover our board of directors in its sole discretion may amend suspend in whole or in part or terminate our share repurchase

program Further our board reserves the right in its sole discretion to change the repurchase prices or reject any requests for

repurchases Any amendments to or suspension or termination of the share repurchase program may restrict or eliminate
your ability

to have us repurchase your
shares and otherwise prevent you from liquidating your

investment Therefore our stockholders may not

have the opportunity to make repurchase request prior to potential termination of the share repurchase program and our

stockholders may not be able to sell any of their shares of common stock back to us As result of these restrictions and

circumstances the ability of our stockholders to sell their shares should they require liquidity is significantly restricted Moreover if

our stockholders do sell their shares of common stock back to us pursuant to the share repurchase program they may be forced to do

so at discount to the purchase price such stockholders paid for their shares



Market disruptions may adversely impact many aspects of our operating results and operating condition

The financial and real estate markets have undergone pervasive and fundamental disruptions in the last few years The disruptions may
have an adverse impact on the availability of credit to businesses generally and real estate in particular and could lead to weakening

of the U.S and global economies The availability of debt financing secured by commercial real estate could decline as result of

tightened underwriting standards Our business may be affected by market and economic challenges experienced by the U.S economy

or real estate industry as whole or by the local economic conditions in the markets in which our real estate assets are located

including the dislocations in the credit markets and general global economic recession Economic conditions may also impact the

ability of certain of our tenants to satis1 rental payments under existing leases Specifically these conditions may have the following

consequences

the financial condition of our tenants may be adversely affected which may result in us having to reduce rental rates in order

to retain the tenants

an increase in the number of bankruptcies or insolvency proceedings of our tenants and lease guarantors which could delay

our efforts to collect rent and any past due balances under the relevant leases and ultimately could preclude collection of these

sums

credit spreads for major sources of capital may widen if stockholders demand higher risk premiums or interest rates could

increase due to inflationary expectations resulting in an increased cost for debt financing

reduction in the amount of capital that is available to finance real estate which in turn could lead to decline in real estate

values generally slow real estate transaction activity and reduce the loan to value ratio upon which lenders are willing to

lend

the value of certain of real estate assets may decrease below the amounts we pay for them which would limit our ability to

dispose of assets at attractive prices or to obtain debt financing secured by these assets and could reduce the availability of

unsecured loans

the value and liquidity of short-term investments if any could be reduced as result of the dislocation of the markets for our

short-term investments and increased volatility in market rates for these investments or other factors and

one or more counterparties to derivative financial instruments that we enter into could default on their obligations to us or

could fail increasing the risk that we may not realize the benefits of these instruments

For these and other reasons we cannot assure you that we will be profitable or that we will realize growth in the value of our

investments

The amount and timing of distributions may valy

There are many factors that can affect the availability and timing of cash distributions paid to our stockholders such as our ability to

earn positive yields on real estate assets the yields on securities of other entities in which we invest our operating expense levels as

well as many other variables The actual amount and timing of distributions is determined by our board of directors in its discretion

based on its analysis of our earnings cash flow anticipated cash flow capital expenditure investments and general financial condition

Actual cash available for distribution may vary substantially from estimates In addition to the extent we invest in development or

redevelopment projects or in properties requiring significant capital requirements our ability to make distributions may be negatively

impacted If we are not able to generate sufficient cash flow from operations determined in accordance with U.S GAAP to fully fund

distributions some or all of our distributions may be paid from other sources including cash flow generated from investing activities

including the net proceeds from the sale of our assets Distributions reduce the amount of money available to invest in properties or

other real estate assets

In addition our credit facility agreement imposes limits on our ability to pay distributions More specifically without lender consent

we may not declare and pay distributions if any default under the agreement then exists or if distributions excluding any distributions

reinvested through our DRP for the then-current quarter and the three immediately preceding fiscal quarters in the aggregate for such

period would exceed 95% of our funds from operations or FF0 for such period If distributions did exceed 95% of our FF0 we

would be required to reduce distributions unless the lenders agreed to waive the requirement There is no assurance that the lenders

would agree to waive the requirement if that became necessary

There is no assurance that our Business Manager will continue to charge less than it is entitled to charge in an effort to increase

cash available for distribution or that IREIC will contribute monies tofundfuture distributions

From time to time our Business Manager has waived business management fees and IREIC has contributed monies to us to fund our

distributions For U.S GAAP purposes the latter monies have been treated as capital contributions from IREIC although IREIC has

not received and will not receive any additional shares of our common stock for these contributions Neither our Business Manager

nor IREIC has any obligation to provide us with additional advances or contributions and our Business Manager is not obligated to

defer or waive any portion of its business management fee or reimbursements



Our ongoing strategy contemplates future acquisitions and we may not be successful in identifying and consummating these

transactions

Our business strategy involves among other things further acquisitions We may not be successful in identifying suitable properties or

other assets or in consummating these acquisitions on satisfactory terms if at all

Further we face significant competition for attractive investment opportunities from an indeterminate number of other real estate

investors including investors with significant capital resources such as domestic and foreign corporations and financial institutions

publicly traded and privately held REITs private institutional investment funds investment banking firms life insurance companies

and pension funds As result of competition we may be unable to acquire additional properties on terms acceptable to us if at all

Of the limited number of desirable properties that we are seeing come to market we are either facing significant competition to

acquire stabilized properties or having to accept lease-up risk associated with properties that have lower occupancy As market

conditions and real estate values recover more properties may become available for acquisition but we can provide no assurances that

these properties will meet our investment objectives or that we will be successful in acquiring these properties Although conditions in

the credit markets have improved over the past year the ability of buyers to utilize higher levels of leverage to finance property

acquisitions has been and remains somewhat limited

Actions of our joint venture partners could negatively impact our performance

As of December 31 2012 we had entered into four joint ventures with unaffiliated third parties and may enter into additional joint

ventures in the future We are not and generally do not expect to be in position to exercise sole decision-making authority regarding

the joint venture Consequently our joint venture investments may involve risks not otherwise present with other methods of

investment in real estate For example our co-member co-venturer or partner may have economic or business interests or goals which

are or which become inconsistent with our business interests or goals and we and our venture partner may not agree on all proposed

actions to certain aspects of the venture Any disputes between us and our co-venturers may at minimum result in litigation or

arbitration that would increase our expenses and prevent our officers and directors from focusing their time and effort on our business

We also face the risk that our venture partners may become bankrupt which would mean that we and any other remaining venture

partners may remain liable for the joint ventures liabilities and the risk that that our partners may fail to fund their share of any

required capital contributions which could result in us having to contribute that capital

In addition relationships with venture partners are contractual in nature These agreements may restrict our ability to sell our interest

when we desire or on advantageous terms and on the other hand may be terminated or dissolved under the terms of the agreements

even if we did not want to terminate or dissolve and in each event we may not continue to own or operate the interests or assets

underlying the relationship or may need to purchase these interests or assets at an above-market price to continue ownership

We have and may continue to issue redeemable noncontrolling interests to our current and future joint venture partners These

redeemable noncontrolling interests can be redeemed in the future for cash or common stock of the Company This may cause cash

restraints on us which may limit our ability to pay distributions If these redeemable noncontrolling interests are redeemed for

common shares it may cause dilution of the common shares outstanding

If we internalize our managementfunctions your interest in us could be diluted and we may be unable to retain key personneL

At some point in the future we may consider becoming self-managed by internalizing the functions performed for us by our Business

Manager and Real Estate Managers in connection with liquidity event Our Business Manager and Real Estate Managers have

agreed that if we internalize our management functions in connection with liquidity event or events the purchase price we may pay

for these entities will be limited and we will issue shares of our common stock rather than cash to pay the purchase price The

issuance of our common stock to our Business Manager or Real Estate Managers in these transactions may reduce the percentage of

our outstanding shares owned by our other stockholders Further if we internalize our management functions certain key employees

may not become our employees but may instead remain employees of our Business Manager and Real Estate Managers or their

respective affiliates especially if we internalize our management functions but do not acquire our Business Manager and Real Estate

Managers An inability to manage an internalization transaction could effectively result in our incurring excess costs and suffering

deficiencies in our disclosure controls and procedures or our internal control over financial reporting These deficiencies could cause

us to incur additional costs and our managements attention could be diverted from most effectively managing our investments which

could result in us being sued and incurring litigation-associated costs in connection with the internalization transaction

If we pursue the acquisition of our Business Manager and Real Estate Managers there is no assurance that we will reach an

agreement with these parties as to the terms of the transaction

Although our agreements with our Business Manager and Real Estate Managers limit the aggregate purchase price that we will pay to

acquire our Business Manager and Real Estate Managers neither the Business Manager nor the Real Estate Managers are obligated to

enter into transaction with us at any particular price If we desire to internalize our management functions by acquiring our Business

Manager and Real Estate Managers our independent directors as whole or committee thereof will have to negotiate the specific

terms and conditions of any agreement or agreements to acquire these entities including the actual purchase price subject to this limit



There is no assurance that we will be able to enter into an agreement with the Business Manager and Real Estate Managers on

mutually acceptable terms Accordingly we would have to seek alternative courses of actions to internalize our management

functions

If we seek to internalize our management functions other than by acquiring our Business Manager and Real Estate Managers we

could incur greater costs and lose key personneL

Our Business Manager and Real Estate Managers have advised our board that neither the Business Manager nor the Real Estate

Managers will agree to be acquired unless the internalization occurs in connection with listing or other liquidity event If our board

deems an internalization to be in our best interests it may decide that we should pursue an internalization by hiring our own group
of

executives and other employees or entering into an agreement with third party such as merger instead of by acquiring our

Business Manager and Real Estate Managers The costs that we would incur in this case are uncertain and may be substantial Further

we would lose the benefit of the experience of our Business Manager and Real Estate Managers

The failure of any bank in which we deposit our funds could reduce the amount of cash we have available to pay distributions and

invest in real estate assets

We have deposited our cash and cash equivalents in several banking institutions in an attempt to minimize exposure to the failure or

takeover of any one of these entities However the Federal Insurance Deposit Corporation or FDIC generally only insures limited

amounts per depositor per insured bank At December 31 2012 we had cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash deposited in

interest bearing transaction accounts at certain financial institutions exceeding these federally insured levels If any of the banking

institutions in which we have deposited funds ultimately fails we may lose our deposits over the federally insured levels The loss of

our deposits could reduce the amount of cash we have available to distribute or invest

Your return may be reduced we are required to register as an investment company under the In vestment Company Act

The company is not registered and does not intend to register itself or any of its subsidiaries as an investment company under the

Investment Company Act If we become obligated to register the company or any of its subsidiaries as an investment company the

registered entity would have to comply with variety of substantive requirements under the Investment Company Act imposing

among other things

limitations on capital structure

restrictions on specified investments

prohibitions on transactions with affiliates and

compliance with reporting record keeping voting proxy disclosure and other rules and regulations that would significantly

change our operations

The company intends to continue conducting its operations directly and through wholly or majority-owned subsidiaries so that the

company and each of its subsidiaries are exempt from registration as an investment company under the Investment Company Act

Under Section 3a of the Investment Company Act company is not deemed to be an investment company if it neither is

nor holds itself out as being engaged primarily nor proposes
to engage primarily in the business of investing reinvesting or trading in

securities Under Section 3alC of the Investment Company Act company is not deemed to be an investment company if it

neither is engaged nor proposes to engage in the business of investing reinvesting owning holding or trading in securities and does

not own or propose to acquire investment securities having value exceeding 40% of the value of its total assets on an

unconsolidated basis which we refer to as the 40% test

As of the date of this report the company and all of its wholly and majority-owned subsidiaries are not considered investment

companies under either Section 3a1A or Section 3a1C of the Investment Company Act In the event that the company or any

of its wholly or majority-owned subsidiaries would ever inadvertently fall within one of the definitions of investment company we

intend to rely on the exception provided by Section 3c5C of the Investment Company Act

Under Section 3c5C the SEC staff generally requires the company to maintain at least 55% of its assets directly in qualifying

assets to qualify for this exception Mortgage-backed securities may or may not constitute such qualifying assets depending on the

characteristics of the mortgage-backed securities including the rights that we have with respect to the underlying loans The

companys ownership of mortgage-backed securities therefore is limited by provisions of the Investment Company Act and SEC staff

interpretations

The method we use to classify our assets for
purposes

of the Investment Company Act is based in large measure upon no-action

positions taken by the SEC staff in the past These no-action positions were issued in accordance with factual situations that may be

substantially different from the factual situations we may face and number of these no-action positions were issued more than ten

years ago No assurance can be given that the SEC staff will concur with our classification of our assets In addition the SEC staff

may in the future issue further guidance that may require us to re-classify our assets for purposes
of qualifying for exemption from



regulation under the Investment Company Act If we are required to re-classif our assets we may no longer be in compliance with

the exemption from the definition of an investment company provided by Section 3c5C of the Investment Company Act

change in the value of any of our assets could cause us to fall within the definition of investment company and negatively affect

our ability to maintain our exemption from regulation under the Investment Company Act To avoid being required to register the

company or any of its subsidiaries as an investment company under the Investment Company Act we may be unable to sell assets we

would otherwise want to sell and may need to sell assets we would otherwise wish to retain In addition we may have to acquire

additional income- or loss-generating assets that we might not otherwise have acquired or may have to forgo opportunities to acquire

interests in companies that we would otherwise want to acquire and would be important to our investment strategy

If we were required to register the company as an investment company but failed to do so we would be prohibited from engaging in

our business and criminal and civil actions could be brought against us In addition our contracts would be unenforceable unless

court required enforcement and court could appoint receiver to take control of us and liquidate our business

Your investment may be subject to additional risks we make investments in Canada

We may purchase real estate assets located in Canada and may make or purchase mortgage bridge mezzanine or other loans or

participations in these loans made by borrower located in or secured by property located in Canada To the extent that we invest in

real estate assets located in Canada in addition to risks inherent in domestic real estate investments we will also be subject to

fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and the uncertainty of foreign laws and markets including but not limited to

unexpected changes in regulatory requirements difficulties in managing international operations currency exchange controls

potentially adverse tax consequences additional accounting and control
expenses

and the administrative burden associated with

complying with wide variety of foreign laws Changes in foreign currency exchange rates may adversely impact the fair values and

earnings streams of our international holdings and therefore the returns on our non-dollar denominated investments To the extent that

we make real property investments in Canada we will be subject to changes in the value of the Canadian Dollar relative to the value

of the U.S Dollar Although we may hedge our foreign currency risk we may not be able to do so successfully and may incur losses

on these investments as result of exchange rate fluctuations In addition if our REIT status is not recognized in Canada any income

or gains from Canadian sources may be subject to foreign taxation withholding taxes transfer taxes and value added taxes

Risks Related to Investments in Real Estate

There are inherent risks with real estate investments

Investments in real estate assets are subject to varying degrees of risk For example an investment in real estate cannot generally be

quickly converted to cash limiting our ability to promptly vary our portfolio in response to changing economic financial and

investment conditions Investments in real estate assets also are subject to adverse changes in general economic conditions which for

example reduce the demand for rental space Among the factors that could impact our real estate assets and the value of an investment

in us are

local conditions such as an oversupply of space or reduced demand for real estate assets of the type that we seek to acquire

including with respect to any lodging properties we may acquire quick changes in supply of and demand for rooms that are

rented or leased on day-to-day basis

inability to collect rent from tenants

vacancies or inability to rent space on favorable terms

inflation and other increases in operating costs including insurance premiums utilities and real estate taxes

increases in energy costs or airline fares or terrorist incidents which impact the propensity of people to travel and therefore

impact revenues from any lodging properties we may acquire especially because operating costs cannot be adjusted as

quickly

federal state or local regulations and controls affecting rents zoning prices of goods fuel and energy consumption water

and environmental restrictions as well as any adverse changes in these or other laws and regulations applicable to us

the relative illiquidity of real estate investments

changing market demographics

an inability to acquire and finance properties on favorable terms if at all

acts of God such as earthquakes floods or other uninsured losses and

changes or increases in interest rates and availability of financing

In addition periods of economic slowdown or recession or declining demand for real estate or the public perception that any of these

events may occur could result in general decline in rents or increased defaults under existing leases



We face significant competition in the leasing market which may decrease or prevent increases in the occupancy and rental rates

of our properties

We own properties located throughout the United States We compete with numerous developers owners and operators of commercial

properties many of which own properties similar to and in the same market areas as our properties If our competitors offer
space

at

rental rates below current market rates or below the rental rates we currently charge our tenants we may lose existing or potential

tenants and we may be pressured to reduce our rental rates below those we currently charge in order to attract new tenants and retain

existing tenants when their leases expire Also if our competitors develop additional properties in locations near our properties there

may be increased competition for creditworthy tenants which may require us to make capital improvements to properties that we

would not have otherwise made

We depend on tenants for the majority of our revenue from real property investments and lease terminations or the exercise of any

co-tenancy rights will adversely affrct our operations

Any defaults on lease payment obligations by tenant will cause us to lose the revenue associated with the relevant lease If these

defaults become significant we will be forced to use other funds to make payments on the mortgage indebtedness secured by the

impacted property to prevent foreclosure action If tenant defaults we may experience delays in enforcing our rights as landlord

and may incur substantial costs in protecting our investment In addition if tenant at single-user facility which has been designed

or built primarily for particular tenant or specific type of use fails to renew its lease or defaults on its lease obligations we may not

be able to readily market single-user facility to new tenant if at all without making substantial capital improvements or incurring

other significant re-leasing costs

Further with respect to any retail properties we acquire we have and may continue to enter into leases containing co-tenancy

provisions Co-tenancy provisions may allow tenant to exercise certain rights if among other things another tenant fails to open for

business delays its opening or ceases to operate or if percentage of the propertys gross
leasable space or particular portion of the

property
is not leased or subsequently becomes vacant tenant exercising co-tenancy rights may be able to abate minimum rent

reduce its share or the amount of its payments of common area operating expenses
and property taxes or cancel its lease In addition

in the case of leases with retail tenants the majority of the leases contain provisions giving the particular tenant the exclusive right to

sell particular types of merchandise or provide specific types of services within the particular retail center In the event of default at

one of these properties these lease provisions may limit the number and types of prospective tenants interested in leasing space at that

property

We may suffer adverse consequences due to the financial difficulties bankruptcy or insolvency of our tenants

Recent economic conditions may cause our tenants to experience financial difficulties including bankruptcy insolvency or general

downturn in their business The retail sector in particular has been and could continue to be adversely affected by weakness in the

national regional and local economies the level of consumer spending and consumer confidence the adverse financial condition of

some large retailing companies the ongoing consolidation in the retail sector the excess amount of retail space
in number of markets

and increasing competition from discount retailers outlet malls internet retailers and other online businesses As of December 31

2012 retail properties represented approximately 91.6% of our real property portfolio based on aggregate purchase price paid at

closing We cannot provide assurance that any tenant that files for bankruptcy protection will continue to pay us rent bankruptcy

filing by or relating to one of our tenants or lease guarantor would bar efforts by us to collect pre-bankruptcy debts from that tenant

or lease guarantor or its property unless we receive an order permitting us to do so from the bankruptcy court In addition we cannot

evict tenant solely because of bankruptcy The bankruptcy of tenant or lease guarantor could delay our efforts to collect past due

balances under the relevant leases and could ultimately preclude collection of these sums If lease is assumed by the tenant in

bankruptcy all pre-bankruptcy balances due under the lease must be paid to us in full If however lease is rejected by tenant in

bankruptcy we would have only general unsecured claim for damages An unsecured claim would only be paid to the extent that

funds are available and only in the same percentage as is paid to all other holders of general unsecured claims Restrictions under the

bankruptcy laws further limit the amount of any other claims that we can make if lease is rejected As result it is likely that we

would recover substantially less than the full value of the remaining rent during the term

Certain of our tenants generated significant portion of our revenue and rental payment defaults by this significant tenant could

adversely affrct our results of operations

As of December 31 2012 approximately 4.4% and 4.2% of our consolidated annualized base rental revenue was generated from

leases with Kohls Department Stores Inc and Walgreens respectively and the top five tenants in our portfolio totaled 16.1% of our

annualized base rental revenue If any of these tenants were to cease paying rent or fulfilling their other monetary obligations we

could have significantly reduced rental revenues or higher expenses until the default was cured or the properties were leased to new

tenant or tenants In addition there is no assurance that the properties could be re-leased on similaror better terms if at all



Leases representing approximately 3% excluding multi-family units of our portfolio are scheduled to expire in 2013 We may be

unable to renew leases or lease vacant space at favorable rates or at alL

As of December 31 2012 leases representing approximately 3% excluding multi-family units of our portfolio were scheduled to

expire in 2013 and an additional 4% excluding multi-family units of the square footage of our portfolio was available for lease as of

December 31 2012 We may be unable to extend or renew any of the expiring leases or we may be able to re-lease these spaces only

at rental rates equal to or below existing rental rates We also may not be able to lease
space which is currently not occupied on

acceptable terms and conditions if at all In addition some of our tenants have leases that include early termination provisions that

permit the lessee to terminate all or portion of its lease with us after specified date or upon the occurrence of certain events with

little or no compensation to us We may be required to offer substantial rent abatements tenant improvements early termination rights

or below-market renewal options to retain these tenants or attract new ones Portions of our properties may remain vacant for extended

periods of time Further some of our leases currently provide tenants with options to renew the terms of their leases at rates that are

less than the current market rate or to terminate their leases prior to the expiration date thereof If we are unable to obtain new rental

rates that are on average comparable to our asking rents across our portfolio then our ability to generate cash flow growth will be

negatively impacted

We may be required to make significant capital expenditures to improve our properties in order to retain and attract tenants

We expect that upon the expiration of leases at our properties we may be required to make rent or other concessions to tenants

accommodate requests for renovations build-to-suit remodeling and other improvements or provide additional services to our tenants

As result we may have to pay for significant leasing costs or tenant improvements in order to retain tenants whose leases are

expiring or to attract new tenants Additionally we may need to raise capital to fund these expenditures If we are unable to do so we

will not be able to fund the required expenditures This could result in non-renewals by tenants upon expiration of their leases or

inhibit our ability to attract new or replacement tenants which would result in declines in revenues from operations

Geographic concentration of our portfolio makes us particularly susceptible to adverse economic developments in the real estate

markets of those areas

As of December 31 2012 approximately 15.7% and 12.1% of our consolidated annualized base rental revenue of our consolidated

portfolio was generated by properties located in the States of Florida and Nevada respectively Accordingly our rental revenues and

property operating results are likely to be impacted by economic changes affecting these states This geographic concentration also

exposes us to risks of oversupply and competition in these real estate markets

Acquiring or attempting to acquire multiple properties in single transaction may adversely afftct our operations

From time to time we have acquired multiple properties in single transaction Portfolio acquisitions typically are more complex and

expensive than single property acquisitions and the risk that multiple-property acquisition does not close may be greater than in

single-property acquisition Portfolio acquisitions may also result in us owning investments in geographically dispersed markets

placing additional demands on our Business Manager and Real Estate Managers in managing the properties in the portfolio In

addition seller may require that group of properties be purchased as package even though we may not want to purchase one or

more properties in the portfolio In these situations if we are unable to identify another person or entity to acquire the unwanted

properties we may be required to operate or attempt to dispose of these properties We also may be required to accumulate large

amount of cash to fund such acquisitions We would expect the returns that we earn on such cash to be less than the returns on real

property Therefore acquiring multiple properties in single transaction may reduce the overall yield on our portfolio

If we acquire lodging or healthcare-related properties we will depend on third-parties to manage those facilities

In order to maintain our REIT qualification if we were to acquire any lodging or health-care related properties we would not be able

to operate any of them or participate in the decisions affecting the daily operations of these properties We would lease any lodging

and healthcare-related properties we acquired to taxable REIT subsidiary or IRS in which we may own up to 100% interest

Our TRS would enter into management agreements with eligible independent contractors that are not our subsidiaries or otherwise

controlled by us to manage these properties Thus independent operators under management agreements with our TRS would control

the daily operations of our lodging and healthcare-related properties

We would not have the authority to require these properties to be operated in particular manner or to govern any particular aspect of

the daily operations such as establishing rental rates Thus even if we believe these properties were being operated inefficiently we

likely would not be able to force the management company to change its method of operation of these properties We can only seek

redress if management company violates the terms of the applicable management agreement with the IRS and then only to the

extent of the remedies provided for under the terms of the management agreement In the event that we need to replace any

management company we may be required by the terms of the management agreement to pay substantial termination fees and may

experience significant disruptions at the affected properties
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Franchise agreements may limit our flexibility

Any lodging properties that we acquired would likely be operated pursuant to franchise or license agreements with nationally

recognized hotel brands These franchise agreements may contain specific standards for and restrictions and limitations on the

operation and maintenance of our properties We do not know whether those limitations may conflict with our ability to create specific

business plans tailored to each property and to each market

The standards may change over time in some cases at the direction of the franchisor and may restrict our TRS ability as franchisee

to make improvements or modifications to property without the consent of the franchisor In addition compliance with the standards

could require us or our TRS as franchisee to incur significant expenses or capital expenditures Action or inaction on our part or by

our TRS could result in breach of those standards or other terms and conditions of the franchise agreements and could result in the

loss or cancellation of franchise license

In connection with terminating or changing the franchise affiliation of lodging property we may be required to incur significant

expenses or capital expenditures Moreover the loss of franchise license could have material adverse effect upon the operations or

the underlying value of the property covered by the franchise because of the loss of associated name recognition marketing support

and centralized reservation systems provided by the franchisor

The lodging industry is seasonal

Acquiring lodging properties would expose us to the impact of seasonality Generally occupancy rates and hotel revenues are greater

in the second and third quarters than in the first and fourth quarters As result we would likely experience greater fluctuations in our

quarterly results of operations

The lodging market is highly competitive and generally subject to greater volatility than other market segments in which we may

invest

The lodging business is highly competitive and influenced by factors such as location room rates and quality service levels

reputation and reservation systems among many other factors There are many competitors in this market and these competitors may

have substantially greater marketing and financial resources than those available to us This competition along with other factors such

as over-building in the lodging industry and certain deterrents to traveling may increase the number of rooms available and may

decrease the average occupancy and room rates of our lodging properties The demand for rooms at any lodging properties that we

may acquire will change much more rapidly than the demand for space at other properties that we acquired

The healthcare industry is heavily regulated and existing and new laws or regulations changes to existing laws or regulations loss

of licensure or failure to obtain licensure could result in the inability of tenants at our healthcare-related facilities to make lease

payments to us

We may invest in medical office buildings and healthcare-related facilities The healthcare industry is highly regulated by federal state

and local laws and is directly affected by federal conditions of participation state licensing requirements facility inspections state

and federal reimbursement policies regulations concerning capital and other expenditures certification requirements and other laws

regulations and rules In addition healthcare facilities are subject to regulatory approvals not required for other types of real estate

Sanctions for failure to comply with these regulations and laws include but are not limited to loss of or inability to obtain licensure

fines and loss of or inability to obtain certification to participate in the Medicare and Medicaid programs as well as potential criminal

penalties The failure of any tenant to comply with these laws requirements and regulations could affect its ability to establish or

continue its operation of the facility or facilities and could adversely affect the tenants ability to make lease payments to us In

addition restrictions and delays in transferring the operations of healthcare facilities in obtaining new third-party payor contracts

including Medicare and Medicaid provider agreements and in receiving licensure and certification approval from appropriate state

and federal agencies by new tenants may affect our ability to terminate lease agreements remove tenants that violate lease terms and

replace existing tenants with new tenants at these facilities Furthermore these matters may affect new tenants ability to obtain

reimbursement for services rendered which could adversely affect their ability to pay rent to us and to pay principal and interest on

their loans from us

Recent healthcare reform legislation may affect our revenue ifwe acquire healthcare-related facilities

In March 2010 the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the Healthcare and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 were

signed into law Together the two Acts serve as the primary vehicle for comprehensive healthcare reform in the United States The

Acts are intended to reduce the number of individuals in the United States without health insurance and effect significant other

changes to the ways in which healthcare is organized delivered and reimbursed The complexities and ramifications of the new

legislation are significant and will be implemented in phased approach that began in 2010 and at least presently concludes in 2018

At this time the effects of healthcare reform and its impact on our business if we acquire healthcare-related facilities are not yet

known
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Reductions in reimbursement from third-party payors including Medicare and Medicaid could adversely affect the profitability of

tenants at any healthcare-related facilities that we may acquire and hinder their ability to make rent payments to us

Sources of revenue for tenants and operators at any healthcare-related facilities that we may acquire may include the federal Medicare

program state Medicaid programs private insurance carriers and health maintenance organizations among others Efforts by these

payors to reduce healthcare costs will likely continue which may result in reductions or slower growth in reimbursement for certain

services provided by some of these tenants In addition the failure of any of our tenants to comply with various laws and regulations

could jeopardize their ability to continue participating in Medicare Medicaid and other government-sponsored payment programs

The healthcare industry continues to face various challenges including increased government and private payor pressure on healthcare

providers to control or reduce costs We believe that tenants at healthcare-related facilities will continue to experience shift in payor

mix away from fee-for-service payors resulting in an increase in the percentage of revenues attributable to managed care payors

government payors and general industry trends that include pressures to control healthcare costs Pressures to control healthcare costs

and shift away from traditional health insurance reimbursement have resulted in an increase in the number of patients whose

healthcare coverage is provided under managed care plans such as health maintenance organizations and preferred provider

organizations In addition due to the aging of the population and the expansion of governmental payor programs we anticipate that

there will be marked increase in the number of patients reliant on healthcare coverage provided by governmental payors These

changes could have material adverse effect on the financial condition of tenants at our healthcare-related facilities

Tenants of any medical office buildings and healthcare-related facilities that we may acquire may be subject to signficant legal

action that could subject them to increased operating costs and substantial uninsured liabilities which may affect their ability to

pay their rent payments to us

Certain types of tenants of medical office buildings and healthcare-related facilities may often become subject to claims that their

services have resulted in patient injury or other adverse effects The insurance coverage maintained by these tenants may neither cover

all claims made against them nor continue to be available at reasonable cost if at all In some states insurance coverage for the risk

of punitive damages arising from professional liability and general liability claims or litigation may not in certain cases be available

due to state law Tenants in these states may be liable for punitive damage awards that are either not covered or that exceed their

insurance policy limits We also believe that there has been and will continue to be an increase in governmental investigations of

certain healthcare providers particularly in the area of Medicare/Medicaid false claims as well as an increase in enforcement actions

resulting from these investigations Insurance is not typically available to cover these losses Any adverse determination in legal

proceeding or governmental investigation whether currently asserted or arising in the future could have material adverse effect on

tenants financial condition If tenant is unable to obtain or maintain insurance coverage ifjudgments exceed their insurance

coverage if tenant is required to pay uninsured punitive damages or if tenant is subject to an uninsurable government enforcement

action the tenant could be exposed to substantial additional liabilities which may affect the tenants ability to pay rent

Delays in collecting accounts receivable by tenants at any healthcare-related facilities that we may acquire could adversely affect

their cash flows andfinancial condition and their ability to meet their obligations to us

Billing and collection of accounts receivable by our tenants at healthcare-related facilities are subject to the complex regulations that

govern Medicare and Medicaid reimbursement and rules imposed by non-government payors If these tenants fail to bill and collect on

timely basis in accordance with these regulations and rules they could be subject to payment delays that could negatively impact

their cash flows and ultimately their financial condition and their ability to meet their obligations to us

Short-term leases may expose us to the effects of declining market rent

Certain types of the properties we own such as multi-family properties typically have short-term leases generally one year or less

with tenants There is no assurance that we will be able to renew these leases as they expire or attract replacement tenants on

comparable terms if at all

If we acquire student ho using properties we may be exposed to the annual leasing cycle of student ho using properties changing

university admission and housing policies and other risks inherent in the student housing industry

Student housing properties must be almost entirely re-leased each year Thus if we acquire this type of property we will be exposed to

increased leasing risk These facilities are highly dependent on the effectiveness of their marketing and leasing efforts and personnel

during the late summer and early fall re-leasing season Changes in university admission policies can also adversely affect student

housing properties such as requirements that freshman or other classes of students live in university-owned facility resulting in

lower occupancy rates for other facilities Additionally many colleges and universities own and operate their own competing on

campus housing offering better proximity to the campus and on-campus facilities Colleges and universities may be exempt from

paying real estate taxes and may be able to borrow funds at lower interest rates than us thereby enabling them to offer lower rental

rates than competing facilities and negatively impacting our property occupancy or rental rates Federal and state requirements to

publish reports of crime or other negative publicity regarding the safety of the students residing on or near our student housing

properties may also have an adverse effect on the operations of these types of properties
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Your investment may be subject to additional risks if we invest inpublic infrastructure assets

Your investment may be subject to additional risks if we invest in public infrastructure assets Public infrastructure assets are subject

to different operating risks than more traditional investments in real properties These risks include but are not limited to

operational problems or supply disruption at facility

disruptions caused by significant catastrophic events such as major plant breakdowns pipeline or electricity line ruptures or

other disasters

the imposition of special tariffs and changes in tax laws regulatory policies and accounting standards

change in the number of users who use the assets which could negatively impact our profitability and

general changes in market sentiment towards infrastructure assets

Moreover acquiring infrastructure assets often involves an ongoing commitment to governmental agency The nature of these

commitments exposes the owners of infrastructure assets to higher level of regulatory control and risk than typically imposed on

other businesses or real estate assets Cash flows from these assets may be disrupted or altered by an adverse change in regulation by

various government authorities including regulation of rates charged to customers

In addition specific infrastructure assets may face completely unique risks For example in the case of private toll roads there are

risks relating to improper grading improper lane design and improper access States and the federal government generally do not face

suits relating to these factors because of the doctrine of sovereign immunity which would not apply to private toll road operator

Thus absent specific protective legislation any person injured on private toll road may sue the toll road owner As another example

correctional facilities entail heightened risks associated with fire safety due to prisoner incarceration and the inability to quickly exit

burning facility design prison population control issues and non-inmate safety and potentially high construction costs associated

with security features Additionally government agencies are the only likely lessees thus reducing the competitive pressures for high

lease rates Also potentially affecting lease rates would be demand for cells which could decline dramatically because of variety of

factors most particularly the crime rate but also factors such as prison sentence guidelines and parole policies

Inflation may adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations

Increases in the rate of inflation may adversely affect our net operating income from leases with stated rent increases or limits on the

tenants obligation to pay its share of operating expenses which could be lower than the increase in inflation at any given time

Inflation could also have an adverse effect on consumer spending which may impact our tenants sales and with respect to those

leases including percentage rent clauses our average rents

Operating expenses may increase in the future and to the extent these increases cannot be passed on to our tenants our cash flow

and our operating results would decrease

Operating expenses such as expenses for fuel utilities labor building materials and insurance are not fixed and may increase in the

future There is no guarantee that we will be able to pass these increases on to our tenants To the extent these increases cannot be

passed on to our tenants any increases would cause our cash flow and our operating results to decrease

We depend on the availability ofpublic utilities and services especially for water and electric power Any reduction interruption or

cancellation of these services may adversely affrct us

Public utilities especially those that provide water and electric power are fundamental for the sound operation of our assets The

delayed delivery or any material reduction or prolonged interruption of these services could allow certain tenants to terminate their

leases or result in an increase in our costs as we may be forced to use backup generators which also could be insufficient to fully

operate our facilities and could result in our inability to provide services Accordingly any interruption or limitation in the provision of

these essential services may adversely affect us

An increase in real estate taxes may decrease our income from properties

Local real property tax assessors may seek to reassess the value of property or properties at the time of acquisition Generally from

time to time our property taxes will increase as property values or assessment rates change or for other reasons deemed relevant by the

assessors An increase in the assessed valuation of property
for real estate tax purposes

will result in an increase in the related real

estate taxes on that property Although some tenant leases may permit us to pass through the tax increases to the tenants for payment

there is no assurance that renewal leases or future leases will be negotiated on the same basis Increases not passed through to tenants

will adversely affect our income cash available for distributions and the amount of distributions

CCRs may restrict our ability to operate property

We have and may continue to acquire properties that are contiguous to other parcels of real property comprising part of the same

commercial center These properties may be subject to significant covenants conditions and restrictions known as CCRs that

restrict our operation of these properties and any improvements on these properties and our ability to grant easements on such
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properties Moreover the operation and management of contiguous properties may impact those properties Currently no material

restrictions exist however compliance with CCRs in the future may adversely affect our operating costs

We do not own or control the land in any ground lease properties that we have or may acquire

We have and may continue to acquire property on land owned by governmental entity or other third party while we own leasehold

permit or similar interest This means that while we have right to use the property we do not retain fee ownership in the underlying

land Accordingly we will have no economic interest in the land or building at the expiration of the ground lease or permit As result

we will not share in any increase in value of the land associated with the underlying property Further because we do not control the

underlying land the lessor could take certain actions to disrupt our rights in the property or our tenants operation of the properties or

the case of governmental entity take the property in an eminent domain proceeding

We may be unable to sell assets or when we decide to do so

Maintaining our REIT qualification and continuing to avoid registration under the Investment Company Act as well as many other

factors such as general economic conditions the availability of financing interest rates and the supply and demand for the particular

asset type may limit our ability to sell real estate assets These factors are beyond our control We cannot predict whether we will be

able to sell any real estate asset on favorable terms and conditions if at all or the length of time needed to sell an asset

If we sell properties by providing financing to purchasers we will bear the risk of default by the purchaser

We may from time to time sell property or other asset by providing financing to the purchaser There are no limits or restrictions on

our ability to accept purchase money obligations secured by mortgage as payment for the purchase price The terms of payment to us

will be affected by custom in the area where the property being sold is located and then-prevailing economic conditions If we receive

promissory notes or other property in lieu of cash from property sales the distribution of the proceeds of sales to our stockholders or

reinvestment in other properties will be delayed until the promissory notes or other property are actually paid sold refinanced or

otherwise disposed In some cases we may receive initial down payments in cash and other property in the year of sale in an amount

less than the selling price and subsequent payments will be spread over number of
years We will bear the risk of default by the

purchaser and may incur significant litigation costs in enforcing our rights against the purchaser

Uninsured losses or premiums for insurance coverage may adversely affect your returns

The nature of the activities at certain properties we may acquire will expose us and our tenants or operators to potential liability for

personal injuries and in certain instances property damage claims In addition there are types of losses generally catastrophic in

nature such as losses due to wars acts of terrorism earthquakes floods hurricanes pollution or environmental matters that are

uninsurable or not economically insurable or may be insured subject to limitations such as large deductibles or co-payments
Insurance risks associated with potential terrorist acts could sharply increase the premiums we pay for coverage against property and

casualty claims Mortgage lenders generally require property owners to purchase specific coverage insuring against terrorism as

condition for providing mortgage bridge or mezzanine loans These policies may or may not be available at reasonable cost if at all

which could inhibit our ability to finance or refinance our properties In such instances we may be required to provide other financial

support either through financial assurances or self-insurance to cover potential losses We cannot assure you that we will have

adequate coverage for these losses In the event that any of our properties incurs casualty loss that is not fully covered by insurance

the value of the particular asset will likely be reduced by the uninsured loss In addition we cannot assure you that we will be able to

fund any uninsured losses

Potential development and construction delays and resulting increased costs and risks may hinder our operating results and

decrease our net income

We have acquired and may again in the future acquire unimproved real property or properties that are under development or

construction Investments in these properties will be subject to the uncertainties associated with the development and construction of

real property including those related to re-zoning land for development environmental concerns of governmental entities or

community groups and the developers ability to complete the property in conformity with plans specifications budgeted costs and

timetables If developer fails to perform we may resort to legal action to rescind the purchase or the construction contract or to

compel performance developers performance may also be affected or delayed by conditions beyond the developers control

Delays in completing construction could also give tenants the right to terminate preconstruction leases We may incur additional risks

when we make periodic progress payments or other advances to developers before they complete construction These and other factors

can result in increased costs of project or loss of our investment In addition we will be subject to normal lease-up risks relating to

newly constructed projects We also must rely on rental income and expense projections and estimates of the fair market value of

property upon completion of construction when agreeing upon purchase price at the time we acquire the property If our projections

are inaccurate we may pay too much for property and the return on our investment could suffer
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If we contract with development company for newly developed property our earnest money deposit made to the development

company may not be fully refunded

We may enter into one or more contracts either directly or indirectly through joint ventures with affiliates or others to acquire real

property from development company that is engaged in construction and development of commercial real properties Properties

acquired from development company may be either existing income-producing properties properties to be developed or properties

under development We anticipate that we will be obligated to pay substantial earnest money deposit at the time of contracting to

acquire these properties In the case of properties to be developed by development company we anticipate that we will be required to

close the purchase of the property upon completion of the development of the property At the time of contracting and the payment of

the earnest money deposit by us the development company typically will not have acquired title to any real property Typically the

development company will only have contract to acquire land development agreement to develop building on the land and an

agreement with one or more tenants to lease all or part of the property upon its completion We may enter into contract with the

development company even if at the time we enter into the contract we have not yet raised sufficient proceeds in our offering to enable

us to close the purchase of such property However we may not be required to close purchase from the development company and

may be entitled to refund of our earnest money in the following circumstances

the development company fails to develop the property

all or specified portion of the pre-leased tenants fail to take possession under their leases for any reason or

we are unable to raise sufficient proceeds from our offering to pay the purchase price at closing

The obligation of the development company to refund our earnest money will be unsecured and we may not be able to obtain refund

of such earnest money deposit from it under these circumstances since the development company may be an entity without substantial

assets or operations

We may obtain only limited warranties when we purchase property and would have only limited recourse in the event our due

diligence did not identify any issues that lower the value of our property

The seller of property often sells the property
in its as is condition on where is basis and with all faults without any

warranties of merchantability or fitness for particular use or purpose In addition purchase agreements may contain only limited

warranties representations and indemnifications that will only survive for limited period after the closing The purchase of

properties with limited warranties increases the risk that we may lose some or all of our invested capital in the property as well as the

loss of rental income from that property

We have acquired properties in regions that are particularly susceptible to natural disasters

We have acquired and may continue to acquire properties located in geographical areas including in the states of Florida Louisiana

and Texas that are regularly impacted by severe storms hurricanes and flooding In addition according to some experts global

climate change could result in heightened hurricane activity thus further impacting these areas Natural disasters in these or other

areas may cause damage to our properties beyond the scope
of our insurance coverage thus requiring us to make substantial

expenditures to repair these properties and resulting in loss of revenues from these properties We have acquired 22 properties and

may acquire additional properties located in regions that are particularly susceptible to natural disasters which can be exposed to more

severe weather than properties located in other regions Elements such as salt water and humidity in these areas can increase or

accelerate wear on the properties weatherproofing and mechanical electrical and other systems and cause mold issues over time As

result we may incur additional operating costs and expenditures for capital improvements at properties that we have acquired and

may continue to acquire in these areas

The costs of complying with environmental laws and other governmental laws and regulations may adversely affect us

All real property and the operations conducted on real property are subject to federal state and local laws and regulations relating to

environmental protection and human health and safety These laws and regulations generally govern wastewater discharges air

emissions the operation and removal of underground and above-ground storage tanks the use storage treatment transportation and

disposal of solid and hazardous materials and the remediation of contamination associated with disposals We also are required to

comply with various local state and federal fire health life-safety and similar regulations Some of these laws and regulations may

impose joint and several liability on tenants owners or operators for the costs of investigating or remediating contaminated properties

These laws and regulations often impose liability whether or not the owner or operator knew of or was responsible for the presence of

the hazardous or toxic substances The cost of removing or remediating could be substantial In addition the presence of these

substances or the failure to properly remediate these substances may adversely affect our ability to sell or rent property or to use the

property as collateral for borrowing

Environmental laws and regulations also may impose restrictions on the manner in which property may be used or businesses may be

operated and these restrictions may require substantial expenditures by us Environmental laws and regulations provide for sanctions

in the event of noncompliance and may be enforced by governmental agencies or in certain circumstances by private parties Third

parties may seek recovery from owners or operators of real properties for personal injury or property damage associated with exposure
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to released hazardous substances Compliance with new or more stringent laws or regulations or stricter interpretations of existing

laws may require material expenditures by us For example various federal regional and state laws and regulations have been

implemented or are under consideration to mitigate the effects of climate change caused by greenhouse gas emissions Among other

things green building codes may seek to reduce emissions through the imposition of standards for design construction materials

water and energy usage and efficiency and waste management These requirements could increase the costs of maintaining or

improving our existing properties or developing new properties

Our properties may contain or develop harmful mold which could lead to liability for adverse health effects and costs of

remediating the problem

The presence of mold at any of our properties could require us to undertake costly program to remediate contain or remove the

mold Mold growth may occur when moisture accumulates in buildings or on building materials Some molds may produce airborne

toxins or irritants Concern about indoor exposure to mold has been increasing because exposure to mold may cause variety of

adverse health effects and symptoms including allergic or other reactions The presence of mold could
expose us to liability from our

tenants their employees and others if property damage or health concerns arise

We may incur significant costs to comply with the Americans With Disabilities Act or similar laws

Our properties generally are subject to the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 as amended which we refer to as the Disabilities

Act Under the Disabilities Act all places of public accommodation are required to comply with federal requirements related to access

and use by disabled persons The Disabilities Act has separate compliance requirements for public accommodations and

commercial facilities that generally require that buildings and services be made accessible and available to people with disabilities

In addition with respect to any apartment properties we also must comply with the Fair Housing Amendment Act of 1988 or

FHAA which requires that apartment communities first occupied after March 13 1991 be accessible to handicapped residents and

visitors

The requirements of the Disabilities Act or FHAA could require removal of access barriers and could result in the imposition of

injunctive relief monetary penalties or in some cases an award of damages We attempt to acquire properties that comply with the

Disabilities Act and the FHAA or place the burden on the seller or other third party such as tenant to ensure compliance with these

laws However we cannot assure you that we will be able to acquire properties or allocate responsibilities in this manner We may
incur significant costs to comply with these laws

Terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or war may affect the markets in which we operate our operations and our profitability

We may acquire real estate assets located in areas that are susceptible to attack In addition any kind of terrorist activity including

terrorist acts against public institutions or buildings or modes of public transportation including airlines trains or buses could lessen

travel by the public which could have negative effect on any of our properties especially if we acquire lodging properties These

attacks may directly impact the value of our assets through damage destruction loss or increased security costs Although we may
obtain terrorism insurance we may not be able to obtain sufficient

coverage to fund any losses we may incur Risks associated with

potential acts of terrorism could sharply increase the premiums we pay for
coverage against property and casualty claims Further

certain losses resulting from these types of events are uninsurable or not insurable at reasonable costs

More generally any terrorist attack other act of violence or war including armed conflicts could result in increased volatility in or

damage to the United States and worldwide financial markets and economy Additionally increased economic volatility could

adversely affect our tenants ability to pay rent on their leases or our ability to fund our operations including raising additional capital

We may have increased exposure to liabilities as result of any participation by us in Section 1031 Exchange Transactions

We may enter into transactions that qualif for like-kind exchange treatment under Section 1031 of the Code referred to herein as

1031 Exchange Transactions Real estate acquired through 1031 Exchange Transaction is commonly structured as the acquisition

of real estate owned in co-tenancy arrangements as tenants-in-common with persons referred to as 1031 Participants generally

held in tax pass-through entities including single-member limited liability companies or similarentities Changes in tax laws may
adversely affect 1031 Exchange Transactions Owning co-tenancy interests involves risks generally not otherwise present with an

investment in real estate such as

the risk that co-tenant may at any time have economic or business interests or goals that are or that become inconsistent

with our business interests or goals

the risk that co-tenant may be in position to take action contrary to our instructions or requests or contrary to our policies

or objectives or

the possibility that co-tenant might become insolvent or bankrupt which may be an event of default under mortgage loan

financing documents or allow bankruptcy court to reject the tenants in common agreement or management agreement

entered into by the co-tenants owning interests in the property
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Actions by co-tenant might have the result of subjecting the property to liabilities in excess of those contemplated and may have

the effect of reducing your returns

If our interests become adverse to those of the other co-tenants in 1031 Exchange Transaction we may not have the contractual right

to purchase the co-tenancy interests from the other co-tenants Even if we are given the opportunity to purchase the co-tenancy

interests we cannot guarantee that we will have sufficient funds available to complete purchase

In addition we may desire to sell our co-tenancy interests in given property at time when the other co-tenants do not desire to sell

their interests Therefore we may not be able to sell our interest in property at the time we would like to sell We also expect it to be

more difficult to find willing buyer for our co-tenancy interests in property than it would be to find buyer for property we

owned outright Further agreements that contain obligations to acquire unsold co-tenancy interests in properties may be viewed by

institutional lenders as contingent liability against our cash or other assets limiting our ability to borrow funds in the future

Risks Related to Investments in Other Real Estate Assets

Through owning equity interests in REITs or other real estate operating companies that invest in real estate or real estate-related

assets we are subject to the risks impacting each entity assets

We have invested and may continue to invest in real estate-related securities Equity securities are always unsecured and

subordinated to other obligations of the issuer Investments in real estate-related equity securities are subject to numerous risks

including limited liquidity in the secondary trading market in the case of unlisted or thinly traded securities substantial market

price volatility resulting from among other things changes in prevailing interest rates in the overall market or related to specific

issuer as well as changing investor perceptions of the market as whole REIT or real estate securities in particular or the specific

issuer in question subordination to the liabilities of the issuer the possibility that earnings of the issuer may be insufficient to

meet its debt service obligations or to pay distributions and with respect to investments in real estate-related preferred equity

securities the operation of mandatory sinking fund or call/redemption provisions during periods of declining interest rates that could

cause the issuer to redeem the securities In addition investments in real estate-related securities involve special risks relating to the

particular issuer of the securities including the financial condition and business outlook of the issuer Issuers of real estate-related

securities generally invest in real estate or real estate-related assets and are subject to the inherent risks associated with real estate-

related investments discussed herein Investing in real estate-related securities exposes our results of operations and financial

condition to the factors impacting the trading prices of publicly-traded
entities

Recent market conditions and the risk of continued market deterioration may reduce the value of any real estate related securities

in which we may invest

Mortgage loans experienced increasing rates of delinquency foreclosure and loss during the recent dislocations in the world credit

markets These and other related events significantly impacted the capital markets associated not only with mortgage-backed

securities asset-backed securities and collateralized debt obligations but also with the credit and financial markets as whole

Investing significant amounts in real estate-related securities including CMBS will expose our results of operations and financial

condition to the volatility of the credit markets

Because there may be significant uncertainty in the valuation of or in the stability of the value of certain securities holdings the fair

values of these investments might not reflect the prices that we would obtain if we sold these investments Furthermore these

investments are subject to rapid changes in value caused by sudden developments that could have material adverse effect on the

value of these investments

To the extent that these volatile market conditions persist or deteriorate they may negatively impact our ability to both acquire and

potentially sell our real estate related securities holdings at price and on terms acceptable to us and we may be required to recognize

impairment charges or unrealized losses

Our investments in mortgage mezzanine bridge and other loans and other debt may be affected by unfavorable real estate market

conditions which could decrease the value of those assets

If we make or invest in mortgage mezzanine or other real estate-related loans we will be at risk of defaults by the borrowers on

those loans These defaults may be caused by many conditions beyond our control including interest rate levels and local and other

economic conditions affecting real estate values We will not know whether the value of the properties ultimately securing our loans

will remain at the level existing on the date of origination If the value of the underlying properties decreases our risk will increase

because of the lower value of the security associated with such loans Our real estate-related debt will be similarlyaffected by real

estate market conditions
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If we make or invest in mortgage mezzanine bridge or other real estate-related loans our loans will be subject to interest rate

fluctuations that will affect our returns as compared to market interest rates accordingly the value ofyour investment would be

subject to fluctuations in interest rates

If we make or invest in fixed-rate long-term loans and interest rates rise the loans could yield return that is lower than then-current

market rates If interest rates decrease we will be adversely affected to the extent that loans are prepaid because we may not be able to

make new loans at the higher interest rate If we invest in variable-rate loans and interest rates decrease our revenues will also

decrease For these reasons if we invest in mortgage mezzanine bridge or other real estate-related loans our returns on those loans

and the value of
your

investment will be subject to fluctuations in interest rates

The CMBS in which we invest are subject to all of the risks of the underlying mortgage loans and the risks of the securitization

process

CMBS are securities that evidence interests in or are secured by single commercial mortgage loan or pool of commercial

mortgage loans Accordingly these securities are subject to all of the risks of the underlying mortgage loans

In rising interest rate environment the value of CMBS may be adversely affected when payments on underlying mortgages do not

occur as anticipated resulting in the extension of the securitys effective maturity and the related increase in interest rate sensitivity of

longer-term instrument The value of CMBS may also change due to shifts in the markets perception of issuers and regulatory or tax

changes adversely affecting the mortgage securities market as whole In addition CMBS are subject to the credit risk associated with

the performance of the underlying mortgage properties In certain instances third-party guarantees or other forms of credit support

designed to reduce credit risk may not be effective due for example to defaults by third-party guarantors

CMBS are also subject to several risks created through the securitization process Generally CMBS are issued in classes or tranches

similar to mortgage loans To the extent that we invest in subordinate class or tranche we will be paid interest only to the extent that

there are funds available after paying the senior class To the extent the collateral pooi includes delinquent loans subordinate classes

will likely not be fully paid Subordinate CMBS are also subject to greater credit risk than those CMBS that are more highly rated

Further the ratings assigned to any particular class of CMBS may prove to be inaccurate Thus any particular class of CMBS may be

riskier and more volatile than the rating may suggest all of which may cause the returns on any CMBS investment to be less than

anticipated

Any mortgage loans that we originate or purchase will be subject to the risks of delinquency and foreclosure

We may originate and purchase mortgage loans Mortgage loans are subject to risks of delinquency and foreclosure and risks of loss

Typically we will not have recourse to the personal assets of our borrowers The ability of borrower to repay loan secured by an

income-producing property generally depends upon the successful operation of the property rather than upon the existence of

independent income or assets of the borrower If the net operating income of the property is reduced the borrowers ability to repay

the loan may be impaired propertys net operating income can be affected by among other things

increased costs including with respect to any lodging properties added costs imposed by franchisors for improvements or

operating changes required from time to time under the franchise agreements

poor real estate management decisions

property location and condition

competition from comparable types of properties

changes in specific industry segments

declines in regional or local real estate values or occupancy rates and

increases in interest rates real estate tax rates and other operating expenses

We will bear the risks of loss of principal to the extent of any deficiency between the value of the collateral and the principal and

accrued interest of the mortgage loan In the event of the bankruptcy of mortgage loan borrower the mortgage loan to that borrower

will be deemed to be collateralized only to the extent of the value of the underlying collateral at the time of bankruptcy as determined

by the bankruptcy court and the lien securing the mortgage loan will be subject to the avoidance powers of the bankruptcy trustee or

debtor-in-possession to the extent the lien is unenforceable under state law Foreclosure of mortgage loan can be an expensive and

lengthy process that could have substantial negative effect on our anticipated return on the foreclosed mortgage loan We may also

be forced to foreclose on certain properties be unable to sell these properties and be forced to incur substantial expenses to operate or

improve the property

The mezzanine loans involve greater risks of loss than senior loans secured by income-producing real properties

We may invest in mezzanine loans that take the form of subordinated loans secured by second mortgages on the underlying real

property or loans secured by pledge of the ownership interests of either the entity owning the real property or the entity that owns the

entity owning the real property These types of investments involve higher degree of risk than if we invest in the senior mortgage

secured by income producing real property because if borrower defaults on mezzanine loan or debt senior to loan we have
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invested in or in the event of borrower bankruptcy our mezzanine loan would be satisfied only after the senior debt is satisfied As

result we may not recover some or all of our investment

The B-Notes in which we may invest may be subject to additional risks relating to the privately negotiated structure and terms of

the transaction which may result in losses to us

We may invest in B-Notes which are typically secured by first mortgage on single large commercial property or group of

related properties and subordinated to an A-Note secured by the same first mortgage on the same collateral As result if

borrower defaults there may not be sufficient funds remaining for B-Note holders after payment to the A-Note holders Because each

transaction is privately negotiated B-Notes can vary
in their structural characteristics and risks For example the rights of holders of

B-Notes to control the process following borrower default may be limited in certain investments We cannot predict the terms of

each B-Note investment Further B-Notes typically are secured by single property and so reflect the increased risks associated with

single property compared to pool of properties

Bridge loans may involve greater risk of loss than conventional mortgage loans

We may provide bridge loans secured by first lien mortgages on properties to borrowers who are typically seeking short-term capital

to be used in an acquisition development or refinancing of real estate The borrower may have identified an undervalued asset that has

been undermanaged or is located in recovering market The market in which the asset is located may not recover according to the

borrowers projections or if the borrower fails to improve the quality of the assets management or the value of the asset the borrower

may not receive sufficient return on the asset to satisfy the bridge loan and we may not recover some or all of our investment

In addition owners usually borrow funds under conventional mortgage loan to repay bridge loan In these cases we may be

exposed to borrowers ability to obtain permanent financing to repay our bridge loan which could depend on market conditions and

other factors Bridge loans are also subject to risks of borrower defaults bankruptcies fraud losses and special hazard losses that are

not covered by standard hazard insurance In the event of any default under bridge loans held by us we bear the risk of loss of

principal and nonpayment of interest and fees to the extent of any deficiency between the value of the mortgage collateral and the

principal amount of the bridge loan To the extent we suffer such losses with respect to our investments in bridge loans the value of

our company and of our common stock may be adversely affected

Investment in non-conforming and non-investment grade loans may involve increased risk of loss

Loans we may acquire or originate may not conform to conventional loan criteria applied by traditional lenders and may not be rated

or may be rated as non-investment grade Non-investment grade ratings for these loans typically result from the overall leverage of

the loans the lack of strong operating history for the properties underlying the loans the borrowers credit history the properties

underlying cash flow or other factors As result loans we acquire or originate may have higher risk of default and loss than

conventional loans Any loss we incur may reduce distributions to stockholders and adversely affect the value of our common stock

We may be required to repurchase loans that we have sokL

If any of the loans we originate or acquire and sell do not comply with representations and warranties that we make about certain

characteristics of the loans the borrowers and the underlying properties we may be required to repurchase those loans or replace them

with substitute loans In addition in the case of loans that we have sold instead of retained we may be required to indemnify persons

for losses or expenses incurred as result of breach of representation or warranty Repurchased loans typically require significant

allocation of working capital to be carried on our books and our ability to borrow against such assets may be limited Any significant

repurchases or indemnification payments could materially and adversely affect our financial condition and operating results

Risks Associated with Debt Financing

Volatility in the financial markets and challenging economic conditions could adversely affect our ability to secure debt financing

on attractive terms and our ability to service any future indebtedness that we may incur

The domestic and international commercial real estate debt markets could become very volatile like recent years as result of among

other things the tightening of underwriting standards by lenders and credit rating agencies This could result in less availability of

credit and increasing costs for what is available If the overall cost of borrowing increases either by increases in the index rates or by

increases in lender spreads the increased costs may result in existing or future acquisitions generating lower overall economic returns

and potentially reducing future cash flow available for distribution If these disruptions in the debt markets persist our ability to

borrow monies to finance the purchase of or other activities related to real estate assets will be negatively impacted If we are unable

to borrow monies on terms and conditions that we find acceptable we likely will have to reduce the number of properties we can

purchase and the return on the properties we do purchase may be lower In addition we may find it difficult costly or impossible to

refinance indebtedness which is maturing
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Further economic conditions could negatively impact commercial real estate fundamentals and result in lower occupancy lower rental

rates and declining values in our real estate portfolio and in the collateral securing any loan investments we may make which could

have various negative impacts Specifically the value of collateral securing any loan investment we may make could decrease below

the outstanding principal amounts of such loans requiring us to pledge more collateral

Borrowings may reduce the funds available for distribution and increase the risk of loss since defaults may cause us to lose the

properties securing the loans

We typically borrow money to finance portion of the purchase price of assets that we acquire We may also borrow money for other

purposes to among other things satisfy the requirement that we distribute at least 90% of our REIT annual taxable income subject

to certain adjustments to our stockholders or as is otherwise
necessary or advisable to assure that we continue to qualify as REIT

for federal income tax purposes Over the long term however payments required on any amounts we borrow reduce the funds

available for among other things acquisitions capital expenditures for existing properties or distributions to our stockholders because

cash otherwise available for these purposes is used to pay principal and interest on this debt

Defaults on loans secured by property or properties we own may result in us losing the property or properties securing the loan that

is in default as result of foreclosure actions initiated by lender For tax purposes foreclosure is treated as sale of the property or

properties for purchase price equal to the outstanding balance of the debt secured by the property or properties If the outstanding

balance of the debt exceeds our tax basis in the property or properties we would recognize taxable gain on the foreclosure but would

not receive any cash proceeds We also may fully or partially guarantee any monies that subsidiaries borrow to purchase or operate

properties In these cases we will likely be responsible to the lender for repaying the loans if the subsidiary is unable to do so If any

mortgage contains cross-collateralization or cross-default provisions more than one property may be affected by default

If we are unable to borrow at favorable rates we may not be able to acquire new assets

If we are unable to borrow money at favorable rates we may be unable to acquire additional real estate assets or refinance existing

loans at maturity Further we may enter into loan agreements or other credit arrangements that require us to pay interest on amounts

we borrow at variable or adjustable rates Increases in interest rates increase our interest costs If interest rates are higher when we
refinance our loans our expenses

will increase and we may not be able to pass on this added cost in the form of increased rents

thereby reducing our cash flow and the amount available for distribution to you Further during periods of rising interest rates we

may be forced to sell one or more of our properties in order to repay existing loans which may not permit us to maximize the return

on the particular properties being sold

Lenders may restrict certain aspects of our operations which could among other things limit our ability to make distributions to

you

The terms and conditions contained in any of our loan documents may require us to maintain cash reserves limit the
aggregate amount

we may borrow on secured and unsecured basis require us to satisfy restrictive financial covenants prevent us from entering into

certain business transactions such as merger sale of assets or other business combination restrict our leasing operations or require

us to obtain consent from the lender to complete transactions or make investments that are ordinarily approved only by our board of

directors In addition secured lenders may restrict our ability to discontinue insurance coverage on mortgaged property even though

we may believe that the insurance premiums paid to insure against certain losses such as losses due to wars acts of terrorism

earthquakes floods hurricanes pollution or environmental matters are greater than the potential risk of loss Our credit facility in

particular contains certain financial and operating covenants including among other things leverage ratios coverage ratios as well

as limitations on our ability to incur secured indebtedness In addition our credit facility could also limit our ability to pay
distributions More specifically without lender consent we may not declare and pay distributions if any default under the agreement

then exists or if distributions excluding any distributions reinvested through our DRP for the then-current quarter and the three

immediately preceding fiscal quarters in the aggregate for such period would exceed 95% of our funds from operations or FF0 for

such period If distributions did exceed 95% of our FF0 we would be required to reduce distributions unless the lenders agreed to

waive the requirement There is no assurance that the lenders would agree to waive the requirement if that became necessary The

credit facility also contains customary default provisions including the failure to timely pay debt service issued thereunder and the

failure to comply with the financial and operating covenants These covenants could limit our ability to obtain additional funds needed

to address liquidity needs or pursue future acquisitions In addition the failure to comply with any of these covenants could cause

default and accelerate payment of advances under the credit facility Violating the covenants would likely result in us incurring higher

financing costs and fees or an acceleration of the maturity date of advances under the credit facility all of which would have material

adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition

Interest-only indebtedness may increase our risk of default and ultimately may reduce our funds available for distribution to our

stockholders

We have obtained and may continue to enter into mortgage indebtedness that does not require us to pay principal for all or portion

of the life of the debt instrument During the period when no principal payments are required the amount of each scheduled payment
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is less than that of traditional amortizing mortgage loan The principal balance of the mortgage loan is not reduced except in the

case of prepayments After the interest-only period we may be required either to make scheduled payments of principal and interest

or to make lump-sum or balloon payment at or prior to maturity These required principal or balloon payments will increase the

amount of our scheduled payments and may increase our risk of default under the related mortgage loan if we do not have funds

available or are unable to refinance the obligation

Increases in interest rates could increase the amount of our debt payments and adversely affect our ability to make distributions to

our stockholders

We have borrowed money including under our Credit Facility which bears interest at variable rates and therefore are exposed to

increases in costs in rising interest rate environment Increases in interest rates would increase our interest expense on any variable

rate debt as well as any debt that must be refinanced at higher interest rates at the time of maturity Our future earnings and cash flows

could be adversely affected due to the increased requirement to service our debt and could reduce the amount we are able to distribute

to our stockholders As of December 31 2012 we had $282476 or 22.61% of our total debt that bore interest at variable rates of

which $50140 matures in 2013 We do not have any variable interest debt maturing in 2014

To hedge against interest rate fluctuations we have and may use derivative financial instruments Derivative financial instruments

may be costly and ineffective

From time to time we have used and may continue to use derivative financial instruments to hedge exposures to changes in interest rates

on loans secured by our properties
Derivative instruments include interest rate swap contracts interest rate cap or floor contracts futures

or forward contracts options or repurchase agreements Our actual hedging decisions are determined in light ofthe facts and circumstances

existing at the time of the hedge and may differ from time to time There is no assurance that our hedging activities will have positive

impact on our results of operations or financial condition We might be subject to costs such as transaction fees or breakage costs if we

terminate these arrangements

To the extent that we use derivative financial instruments to hedge against interest rate fluctuations we are exposed to credit risk basis

risk and legal enforceability risks In this context credit risk is the failure of the counterparty to perform under the terms of the derivative

contract If the fair value of derivative contract is positive the counterparty owes us which creates credit risk for us Basis risk occurs

when the index upon which the contract is based is more or less variable than the index upon which the hedged asset or liability is based

thereby making the hedge less effective Finally legal enforceability risks encompass general contractual risks including the risk that the

counterparty will breach the terms of or fail to perform its obligations under the derivative contract particularly in light of current market

conditions Further the REIT provisions of the Code may limit our ability to hedge the risks inherent to our operations We may be unable

to manage these risks effectively

We may enter into derivative contracts that could expose us to contingent liabilities in the future

Derivative financial instruments may require us to fund cash payments upon the early termination of derivative agreement caused by

an event of default or other early termination event The amount due would be equal to the unrealized loss of the open swap positions

with the respective counterparty and could also include other fees and charges In addition some of these derivative arrangements may

require that we maintain specified percentages of cash collateral with the counterparty to fund potential liabilities under the derivative

contract We may have to make cash payments in order to maintain the required percentage of collateral with the counterparty
These

economic losses would be reflected in our results of operations and our ability to fund these obligations and financial condition would

depend on the liquidity of our respective assets and access to capital at the time

We may acquire or finance properties with lock-out provisions which may prohibit us from selling property or may require us to

maintain specified debt levels for period of years on some properties

The terms of any loan that we may enter into may preclude us from pre-paying the principal amount of the loan or could restrict us

from selling or otherwise disposing of or refinancing properties For example lock-out provisions may prohibit us from reducing the

outstanding indebtedness secured by any of our properties refinancing this indebtedness on non-recourse basis at maturity or

increasing the amount of indebtedness secured by our properties Lock-out provisions could impair our ability to take other actions

during the lock-out period In particular lock-out provisions could preclude us from participating
in major transactions that could

result in disposition of our assets or change in control even though that disposition or change in control might be in the best

interests of our stockholders As of December 31 2012 we had 41 loans with lock-out provisions in effect totaling $633029 or

approximately 55% of our total mortgage debt

We may be contractually obligated to purchase property even if we are unable to securefinancingfor the acquisition

We typically finance portion
of the purchase price for each property that we acquire However to ensure that our offers are as

competitive as possible we generally do not enter into contracts to purchase property that include financing contingencies Thus we

may be contractually obligated to purchase property even if we are unable to secure financing for the acquisition In this event we

may choose to close on the property by using cash on hand which would result in less cash available for our operations and
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distributions to stockholders Alternatively we may choose not to close on the acquisition of the property and default on the purchase

contract If we default on any purchase contract we could lose our earnest money and become subject to liquidated or other

contractual damages and remedies

The total amount we may borrow is limited by our charter

Our charter generally limits the total amount we may borrow to 300% of our net assets equivalent to 75% loan-to-asset value ratio

unless our board of directors including majority of our independent directors determines that higher level is appropriate and the

excess in borrowing is disclosed to stockholders in our next quarterly report along with the justification for the excess This limit could

adversely affect our business including

limiting our ability to purchase real estate assets

causing us to lose our REIT status if we cannot borrow to fund the monies needed to satisfy the REIT distribution

requirements

causing operational problems if there are cash flow shortfalls for working capital purposes and

causing the loss of property if for example financing is
necessary to cure default on mortgage

Risks Related to Conflicts of Interest

There are conflicts of interest between us and affiliates of our sponsor that may affect our acquisition ofproperties and financial

performance

Our sponsor and Inland Private Capital Corporation IPCC sponsored other REITs real estate exchange private placement limited

partnerships and limited liability companies Two of the REITs Inland American Real Estate Trust Inc and Inland Real Estate Income

Trust Inc are managed by affiliates of our Business Manager Two other REITs Inland Real Estate Corporation Inc and Retail

Properties of America Inc formally known as Inland Western Retail Real Estate Trust Inc is self-managed but our sponsor and its

affiliates continue to hold significant investment in these entities We may be seeking to buy real estate assets at the same time as

certain of these other programs Further certain programs sponsored by our sponsor or IPCC own and manage the type of properties

that we own and in the same geographical areas in which we own them Therefore our properties may compete for tenants with other

properties owned and managed by these other programs Persons performing services for our Real Estate Managers may face conflicts

of interest when evaluating tenant leasing opportunities for our properties and other properties owned and managed by these programs
and these conflicts of interest may have an adverse impact on our ability to attract and retain tenants

Our sponsor may face conflict of interest in allocating personnel and resources between its affiliates our Business Manager and

our Real Estate Managers

We rely to great extent on persons performing services for our Business Manager and Real Estate Managers and their affiliates to

manage our day-to-day operations Some of these persons also provide services to one or more investment programs previously

sponsored by our sponsor These individuals face competing demands for their time and service and may have conflicts in allocating
their time between our business and assets and the business and assets of our sponsor its affiliates and the other programs formed and

organized by our sponsor In addition if another investment program sponsored by our sponsor decides to internalize its management
functions in the future it may do so by hiring and retaining certain of the persons currently performing services for our Business

Manager and Real Estate Managers and if it did so would likely not allow these persons to perform services for us

We do not have arm s-length agreements with our Business Manager our Real Estate Managers or any other affiliates of IREIC

None of the agreements and arrangements with our Business Manager our Real Estate Managers or any other affiliates of our sponsor

was negotiated at arms-length These agreements may contain terms and conditions that are not in our best interest and would not

otherwise be applicable if we entered into arms length agreements with third parties

Our Business Manager and its affiliates face conflicts of interest caused by their compensation arrangements with us which could

result in actions that are not in the long-term best interests of our stockholders

We pay significant fees to our Business Manager Real Estate Managers and other affiliates of our sponsor for services provided to us
Most significantly our Business Manager receives fees based on the aggregate book value including acquired intangibles of our

invested assets Further our Real Estate Managers receive fees based on the gross income from properties under management Other

parties related to or affiliated with our Business Manager or Real Estate Managers may also receive fees or cost reimbursements from

us These compensation arrangements may cause these entities to take or not take certain actions For example these arrangements

may provide an incentive for our Business Manager to borrow more money than prudent to increase the amount we can invest

Ultimately the interests of these parties in recciving fees conflict with the interest of our stockholders in earning income on their

investment in our common stock
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We rely on entities affiliated with our sponsor to identify real estate assets

We rely on Inland Real Estate Acquisitions Inc IREA and other affiliates of our sponsor to identify suitable investment

opportunities for us Other public or private programs sponsored by our sponsor or IPCC also rely on these entities to identify

potential investments These entities invest in some of the same property types that we seek and have in some cases rights of first

refusal or other pre-emptive rights to the properties that IREA identifies Our right to acquire properties identified by IREA is subject

to the exercise of any prior rights vested in these entities We may not therefore be presented with opportunities to acquire properties

that we otherwise would be interested in acquiring

Three of our seven directors face conflicts of interest because of their positions or affiliations with our real estate manager and our

business manager

Three of our directors Mr Parks Ms Gujral and Mr Lazarus also serve as officers or directors of other entities affiliated with Real Estate

Manager or Business Manager Their affiliation with these other entities could result in conflicts with our business and interests that are

most likely to arise in their participating in deliberations or voting on matters by our board of directors related to among others

enforcing our agreements with the Business Manager or Real Estate Manager and their affiliates

property sales which reduce the amount of property management fees payable to our Real Estate Manager

Risks Related to Our Corporate Structure

Our board of directors may change our investment policies without stockholder approval which could alter the nature of your

investment

Our charter requires that our independent directors review our investment policies at least annually to determine that the policies we

are following are in the best interest of our stockholders These policies may change over time The methods of implementing our

investment policies may also vary as new investment techniques are developed Our investment policies the methods for

implementing them and our other objectives policies and procedures may be altered by majority of the directors which must

include majority of the independent directors without the approval of our stockholders As result the nature of your investment

could change without
your

consent change in our investment strategy may among other things increase our exposure to interest

rate risk default risk and commercial real property market fluctuations all of which could materially adversely affect our ability to

achieve our investment objectives

Our charter authorizes us to issue additional shares of stock which may reduce the percentage of our common stock owned by our

other stockholders subordinate your rights or discourage third party from acquiring us

Investors who purchased shares in our public offering will not have preemptive rights to purchase any shares issued by us in the

future Our charter authorizes us to issue up to 2.5 billion shares of capital stock of which 2.46 billion shares are classified as common

stock and 40 million are classified as preferred stock We may in the sole discretion of our board

sell additional shares in future offerings

issue equity interests in private offering of securities

classify or reclassify any unissued shares of common or preferred stock by setting or changing the preferences conversion or

other rights voting powers restrictions limitations as to dividends or other distributions qualifications or terms or

conditions of redemption of the stock

amend our charter from time to time to increase or decrease the aggregate number of shares or the number of shares of any

class or series that we have authority to issue

issue shares of our capital stock in exchange for real estate assets

issue shares of our capital stock to our Business Manager or Real Estate Managers in connection with any business

combination between us and any of them or

cause dilution of our earnings per common share due to the conversion of redeemable noncontrolling interests into common

shares

Future issuances of common stock will reduce the percentage of our outstanding shares owned by our other stockholders Further our

board of directors could authorize the issuance of stock with terms and conditions that could subordinate the rights of the holders of

our current common stock or have the effect of delaying deferring or preventing change in control of us including an extraordinary

transaction such as merger tender offer or sale of all or substantially all of our assets that might provide premium price for our

stockholders
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Our rights and the rights of our stockholders to recover claims against our officers directors Business Manager and Real Estate

Managers are limited

Under our charter we may generally indemnif our directors our Business Manager our Real Estate Managers and their respective

affiliates for any losses or liabilities suffered by any of them and hold these persons or entities harmless for any loss or liability

suffered by us as long as these persons or entities have determined in good faith that the course of conduct that caused the loss or

liability was in our best interest these persons or entities were acting on our behalf or performing services for us the loss or

liability was not the result of the negligence or misconduct of the directors gross negligence or willful misconduct of the independent

directors Business Manager the Real Estate Managers or their respective affiliates or the indemnity or agreement to hold

harmless is recoverable only out of our net assets and not from our stockholders As result we and our stockholders may have more

limited rights against our directors officers employees and agents our Business Manager and our Real Estate Managers and their

respective affiliates than might otherwise exist under common law In addition we may be obligated to fund the defense costs

incurred by our directors officers employees and agents or our Business Manager and the Real Estate Managers and their respective

affiliates in some cases

Our board of dfrectors may in the future adopt certain measures under Maryland law without stockholder approval that may have

the effect of making it less likely that you would receive control premiumforyour shares

Corporations organized under Maryland law with class of registered securities and at least three independent directors are permitted

to protect themselves from unsolicited proposals or offers to acquire the company by electing to be subject by charter or bylaw

provision or board of directors resolution and notwithstanding any contrary charter or bylaw provision to any or all of five

provisions

staggering the board of directors into three classes

requiring two-thirds vote of stockholders to remove directors

providing that only the board can fix the size of the board

providing that all vacancies on the board regardless of how the vacancy was created may be filled only by the affirmative

vote of majority of the remaining directors in office and for the remainder of the full term of the class of directors in which

the vacancy occurred and

requiring that special stockholders meetings be called only by holders of shares entitled to cast majority of the votes entitled

to be cast at the meeting

These provisions may discourage an extraordinary transaction such as merger tender offer or sale of all or substantially all of our

assets all of which might provide premium price for
your shares

Further under the Maryland Business Combination Act we may not engage in any merger or other business combination with an

interested stockholder or any affiliate of that interested stockholder for period of five years after the most recent date on which the

interested stockholder became an interested stockholder After the five-year period ends any merger or other business combination

with the interested stockholder must be recommended by our board of directors and approved by the affirmative vote of at least

80% of all votes entitled to be cast by holders of outstanding shares of our voting stock and

two-thirds of all of the votes entitled to be cast by holders of outstanding shares of our voting stock other than those shares

owned or held by the interested stockholder with whom or with whose affiliate the business combination is to be effected or

held by an affiliate or associate of the interested stockholder unless among other things our stockholders receive minimum

payment for their common stock equal to the highest price paid by the interested stockholder for its common stock

Our directors have adopted resolution exempting any business combination involving us and The Inland Group or any affiliate of

The Inland Group including our Business Manager and Real Estate Managers from the provisions of this law

Our charter places limits on the amount of common stock that any person may own without the prior approval of our board of

directors

To maintain our qualification as REIT no more than 50% of the outstanding shares of our common stock may be beneficially

owned directly or indirectly by five or fewer individuals at any time during the last half of each taxable
year other than the first

taxable year for which an election to be REIT has been made Our charter prohibits any persons or groups from owning more than

9.8% in value of our outstanding stock or more than 9.8% in value or in number of shares whichever is more restrictive of our

outstanding common stock without the prior approval of our board of directors These provisions may have the effect of delaying

deferring or preventing change in control of us including an extraordinary transaction such as merger tender offer or sale of all or

substantially all of our assets that might involve premium price for holders of our common stock Further any person or group

attempting to purchase shares exceeding these limits could be compelled to sell the additional shares and as result to forfeit the

benefits of owning the additional shares
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Our charter perm its our board of directors to issue prefe rred stock on terms that may subordinate the rights of the holders of our
current common stock or discourage third party from acquiring us

Our board of directors is permitted subject to certain restrictions set forth in our charter to issue up to forty million shares of preferred

stock without stockholder approval Further our board may classify or reclassify any unissued common or preferred stock and

establish the preferences conversions or other rights voting powers restrictions limitations as to dividends and other distributions

qualifications and terms or conditions of redemption of the stock and may increase or decrease the aggregate number of shares or the

number of shares of any class or series that we have authority to issue without stockholder approval Thus our board of directors

could authorize us to issue shares of preferred stock with terms and conditions that could subordinate the rights of the holders of our

common stock or have the effect of delaying deferring or preventing change in control of us including an extraordinary transaction

such as merger tender offer or sale of all or substantially all of our assets that might provide premium price for holders of our

common stock

Maryland law limits in some cases the ability of third party to vote shares acquired in control share acquisition

The Maryland Control Share Acquisition Act provides that control shares of Maryland corporation acquired in control share

acquisition have no voting rights except to the extent approved by stockholders by vote of two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast

on the matter Shares of stock owned by the acquirer by officers or by employees who are directors of the corporation are excluded

from shares entitled to vote on the matter Control shares are voting shares of stock which if aggregated with all other shares of

stock owned by the acquirer or in respect of which the acquirer can exercise or direct the exercise of voting power except solely by
virtue of revocable proxy would entitle the acquirer to exercise voting power in electing directors within specified ranges of voting

power Control shares do not include shares the acquiring person is then entitled to vote as result of having previously obtained

stockholder approval control share acquisition means the acquisition of issued and outstanding control shares The control share

acquisition statute does not apply to shares acquired in merger consolidation or share exchange if the corporation is party to the

transaction or to acquisitions approved or exempted by the charter or bylaws of the corporation Our bylaws contain provision

exempting from the Control Share Acquisition Act any and all acquisitions of our stock by any person There can be no assurance that

this provision will not be amended or eliminated at any time in the future

Federal Income Tax Risks

If we fail to maintain our qualification as REIT our operations and distributions to stockholders will be adversely affected

Qualification as REIT involves the application of highly technical and complex rules related to among other things the composition

of our assets the income generated by those assets and distributions paid to our stockholders There are limited judicial or

administrative interpretations regarding these rules The determination of various factual matters and circumstances not entirely within

our control may affect our ability to continue to qualify as REIT In addition new legislation new regulations administrative

interpretations or court decisions could significantly change the tax laws with respect to qualifying as REIT or the federal income tax

consequences of such qualification

If we were to fail to qualify as REIT without the benefit of certain relief provisions in any taxable year

we would not be allowed to deduct distributions paid to stockholders when computing our taxable income

we would be subject to federal including any applicable alternative minimum tax and state income tax on our taxable

income at regular corporate rates

we would be disqualified from being taxed as REIT for the four taxable
years following the year during which we failed to

qualify unless entitled to relief under certain statutory provisions

we would have less cash to pay distributions to stockholders and

we may be required to borrow additional funds or sell some of our assets in order to pay corporate tax obligations we may
incur as result of being disqualified

In addition if we were to fail to qualify as REIT we would not be required to pay distributions to stockholders and all distributions

to stockholders that we did pay would be subject to tax as regular corporate dividends to the extent of our current and accumulated

earnings and profits This means that under current law which is subject to change our U.S stockholders who are taxed as

individuals would be taxed on our dividends at long-term capital gains rates through 2012 and that our corporate stockholders would

be entitled to the dividends received deduction with respect to such dividends subject in each case to applicable limitations under the

Code
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The taxation of distributions to our stockholders can be complex however distributions that we make to our stockholders

generally will be taxable as ordinaiy income

Distributions that we make to our taxable stockholders out of current and accumulated earnings and profits and not designated as

capital gain dividends or for tax years beginning before January 2013 qualified dividend income generally will be taxable as

ordinary income However portion of our distributions may be designated by us as capital gain dividends generally taxable as

long-term capital gain to the extent that they are attributable to net capital gain recognized by us be designated by us as qualified

dividend income generally to the extent they are attributable to dividends we receive from any taxable REIT subsidiaries or certain

other taxable corporations in which we own shares of stock or constitute return of capital generally to the extent that they

exceed our current and accumulated earnings and profits as determined for U.S federal income tax purposes return of capital is not

taxable but has the effect of reducing the basis of stockholders investment in our common stock Distributions that exceed our

current and accumulated earnings and profits and stockholders basis in our common stock generally will be taxable as capital gain

To maintain our REIT status we may be forced to borrow funds during unfavorable market conditions to make distributions to our

stockholders

To qualify as REIT we must distribute to our stockholders each year 90% of our taxable income subject to certain adjustments and

excluding any net capital gain At times we may not have sufficient funds to satisfy these distribution requirements and may need to

borrow funds to make these distributions and maintain our REIT status and avoid the payment of income and excise taxes These

borrowing needs could result from differences in timing between the actual receipt of cash and inclusion of income for federal

income tax purposes the effect of non-deductible capital expenditures the creation of reserves or required debt

amortization payments We may need to borrow funds at times when market conditions are unfavorable Further if we are unable to

borrow funds when needed for this purpose we would have to find alternative sources of funding or risk losing our status as REIT

If we were considered to actually or constructi vely pay prefrrential
dividend to certain of our stockholders our status as

REIT could be adversely affrcted

The requirement that we annually distribute to our stockholders at least 900/0 of our REIT taxable income is determined without regard

to the deduction for dividends paid and excluding net capital gain In order for distributions to be counted as satisfying the annual

distribution requirements for REITs and to provide us with REIT-level tax deduction the distributions must not be preferential

dividends dividend is not preferential
dividend if the distribution is pro rata among all outstanding shares of stock within

particular class and in accordance with the preferences among different classes of stock as set forth in our organizational documents

Guidance from the Internal Revenue Service generally permits discount in the price paid for stock purchased
under distribution

reinvestment plan of up to 5% of the value of the stock without creating preferential dividend Currently however there is

uncertainty as to the Internal Revenue Services position regarding whether certain arrangements that REITs have with their

stockholders could give rise to the inadvertent payment of preferential dividend e.g the pricing methodology for stock purchased

under distribution reinvestment plan inadvertently causing greater than 5% discount on the price of such stock purchased There is

no de minimis exception with respect to preferential dividends therefore if the Internal Revenue Service were to take the position that

we inadvertently paid preferential dividend we may be deemed to have failed the 90% distribution requirement and our status as

REIT could be terminated for the year in which the determination is made if we were unable to cure such failure

Certain of our business activities are potentially subject to the prohibited transaction tax

Our ability to dispose of property during the first two years following acquisition is restricted to substantial extent as result of our

REIT status Under applicable provisions of the Code regarding prohibited
transactions by REITs we will be subject to 100% tax on

any gain realized on the sale or other disposition of any property other than foreclosure property we own directly or through any

wholly owned subsidiary or entity in which we are treated as partner excluding our taxable REIT subsidiaries that is deemed to be

inventory or property held primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of trade or business Determining whether property is

inventory or otherwise held primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of trade or business depends on the particular facts

and circumstances surrounding each property We cannot provide assurance that any particular property we own directly or through

any wholly owned subsidiary or entity in which we are treated as partner excluding our taxable REIT subsidiaries will not be

treated as inventory or property held primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of trade or business The Code sets forth

safe harbor for REITs that wish to sell property without risking the imposition of the 100% tax however there is no assurance that we

will be able to qualify for the safe harbor Even if we do not hold property
for sale in the ordinary course of trade or business there is

no assurance that our position will not be challenged by the Internal Revenue Service especially if we make frequent sales or sales of

property in which we have short holding periods
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Certain fees paid to us may affect our REIT status

Income received in the nature of rental subsidies or rent guarantees in some cases may not qualify as rental income from real estate

and could be characterized by the Internal Revenue Service as non-qualifying income for purposes
of satisfying the 75% and 95%

gross income tests required for REIT qualification If the aggregate of non-qualifying income under the 95% gross income test in any

taxable year ever exceeded 5% of our gross revenues for the taxable year or non-qualifying income under the 75% gross income test in

any taxable year ever exceeded 25% of our gross revenues for the taxable year we could lose our REIT status for that taxable year
and

the four taxable years following the year
of losing our REIT status

Complying with the REIT requirements may force us to liquidate otherwise attractive investments

To qalify as REIT we must ensure that at the end of each calendar quarter at least 75% of the value of our assets consists of cash

cash items certain government securities and qualified real estate assets including shares of stock in other REITs certain mortgage

loans and mortgage backed securities The remainder of our investment in securities other than qualified government securities

qualified real estate assets and taxable REIT subsidiaries generally may not include more than 10% of the outstanding voting

securities of any one issuer or more than 10% of the total value of the outstanding securities of any one issuer In addition in general

no more than 5% of the value of our assets other than qualified government securities qualified real estate assets and taxable REIT

subsidiaries may consist of the securities of any one issuer and no more than 25% of the value of our total assets may be securities

including securities issued by our taxable REIT subsidiaries excluding government securities stock issued by our qualified REIT

subsidiaries and other securities that qualify as REIT real estate assets In order to meet these tests we may be required to forego

investments we might otherwise make Thus compliance with the REIT requirements may hinder our performance

If we fail to comply with these requirements at the end of any calendar quarter we must correct the failure within thirty days after the

end of the calendar quarter to avoid losing our REIT status and suffering adverse tax consequences As result we may be required to

liquidate otherwise attractive investments

The taxable mortgage pool rules may increase the taxes that we or our stockholders incur and may limit the manner in which we

conduct securitizations

If we securitize mortgages certain of our securitizations could be considered to result in the creation of taxable mortgage pools for

federal income tax purposes As REIT provided that we own 100% of the equity interests in taxable mortgage pooi we generally

would not be adversely affected by the characterization of the securitization as taxable mortgage pool Certain categories of

stockholders however such as foreign stockholders eligible for treaty or other benefits stockholders with net operating losses and

certain tax-exempt stockholders that are subject to unrelated business income tax could be subject to increased taxes on portion of

their dividend income from us that is attributable to the taxable mortgage pool In addition to the extent that our stock is owned by

tax-exempt disqualified organizations such as certain government-related entities and charitable remainder trusts that are not

subject to tax on unrelated business income we will incur corporate-level tax on portion of our income from the taxable mortgage

pool In that case we are authorized to reduce and intend to reduce the amount of our distributions to any disqualified organization

whose stock ownership gave
rise to the tax Moreover we would be precluded from selling equity interests in these securitizations to

outside investors or selling any debt securities issued in connection with these securitizations that might be considered to be equity

interests for federal income tax purposes These limitations may prevent us from using certain techniques to maximize our returns

from securitization transactions

Our ability to dispose of some of our properties may be constrained by their tax attributes

Federal tax laws may limit our ability to sell properties and this may affect our ability to sell properties without adversely affecting

returns to our stockholders These restrictions may reduce our ability to respond to changes in the performance of our investments

Our ability to dispose of some of our properties is constrained by their tax attributes Properties which we own for significant period

of time often have low tax bases If we dispose of low-basis properties outright in taxable transactions we may recognize significant

amount of taxable gain that we must distribute to our stockholders in order to avoid tax and potentially if the gain does not qualify as

net capital gain in order to meet the minimum distribution requirements of the Code for REITs which in turn would impact our cash

flow To dispose of low basis or tax-protected properties efficiently we may use like-kind exchanges which qualify for non-

recognition of taxable gain but can be difficult to consummate and result in the property for which the disposed assets are exchanged

inheriting their low tax bases and other tax attributes including tax protection covenants

You may have tax liability on distributions that you elect to reinvest in our common stock

If you participate in our distribution reinvestment plan you will be deemed to have received and for income tax purposes
will be

taxed on the fair market value of the share of our common stock that you receive in lieu of cash distributions As result unless you

are tax-exempt entity you will have to use funds from other sources to pay your tax liability
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In certain circumstances we may be subject tofrderal state and local income taxes as REIT

Even if we maintain our status as REIT we may become subject to federal state and local income taxes For example

We will be subject to tax on any undistributed income We will be subject to 4% nondeductible excise tax on the amount if

any by which distributions we pay in any calendar year plus amounts retained for which federal income tax was paid are less

than the sum of 85% of our ordinary income 95% of our capital gain net income and 100% of our undistributed income from

prior years

If we have net income from the sale of foreclosure property that we hold primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary

course of business or other non-qualifying income from foreclosure property we must pay tax on that income at the highest

corporate income tax rate

If we sell property other than foreclosure property that we hold primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of

business our gain would be subject to the 100% prohibited transaction tax

We will be subject to 100% penalty tax on certain amounts if the economic arrangements of our tenants our taxable REIT

subsidiaries and us are not comparable to similararrangements among unrelated parties

Certain equity participation in mortgage loans may result in taxable income and gains from these properties which could

adversely impact our REIT status

If we participate under mortgage loan in any appreciation of the properties securing the mortgage loan or its cash flow and the

Internal Revenue Service characterizes this participation as equity we might have to recognize income gains and other items from

the property This could affect our ability to maintain our status as REIT

Complying with REIT requirements may limit our ability to hedge effectively

The REIT provisions of the Code may limit our ability to hedge the risks inherent to our operations Under current law any income

that we generate from derivatives or other transactions intended to hedge our interest rate risk with respect to borrowings made or to

be made to acquire or carry real estate
assets generally will not constitute gross income for purposes of the 75% and 95% income

requirements applicable to REITs In addition any income from certain other qualified hedging transactions would generally not

constitute gross income for purposes of both the 75% and 95% income tests However we may be required to limit the use of hedging

techniques that might otherwise be advantageous which could result in greater risks associated with interest rate or other changes than

we would otherwise incur

Legislative or regulatory action could adversely affect investors

Changes to the tax laws are likely to occur and these changes may adversely affect the taxation of stockholder Any such changes

could have an adverse effect on an investment in our shares or on the market value or the resale potential of our assets You are urged

to consult with your own tax advisor with respect to the status of legislative regulatory or administrative developments and proposals

and their potential effect on an investment in our shares

The maximum tax rate on qualified dividends paid by corporations to individuals is 20% REIT dividends however generally do not

constitute qualified dividends and consequently are not eligible for the current reduced tax rates Therefore our stockholders will pay

federal income tax on distributions out of our current and accumulated earnings and profits excluding distributions of amounts either

subject to corporate-level taxation or designated as capital gain dividend at the applicable ordinary income rate the maximum of

which is 39.6% In addition this income also might be subject to the 3.8% Medicare surtax on certain investment income However as

REIT we generally would not be subject to federal or state corporate income taxes on that portion of our ordinary income or capital

gain that we distribute currently to our stockholders and we thus expect to avoid the double taxation to which other corporations are

typically subject

Future legislation might result in REIT having fewer tax advantages and it could become more advantageous for company that

invests in real estate to elect to be taxed for federal income tax purposes as corporation As result our charter provides our board

of directors with the power under certain circumstances to revoke or otherwise terminate our REIT election and cause us to be taxed

as corporation without the vote of our stockholders Our board of directors has fiduciary duties to us and our stockholders and could

only cause changes in our tax treatment if it determines in good faith that such changes are in the best interest of our stockholders

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

28



Item Properties

All dollar amounts are stated in thousands except share data per share amounts rent per square foot and rent per
unit

We own interests in 133 retail properties four office properties two industrial properties and two multi-family properties As of

December 31 2012 we through our wholly-owned subsidiaries owned fee simple interests or controlling interest in the joint

ventures in all of the properties listed below The majority of properties are encumbered by mortgages totaling $1156582

As of December 31 2012 and 2011 annualized base rent per square foot averaged $13.51 and $13.39 respectively for all properties

other than the multi-family properties and $12098 and $9403 per unit respectively for the multi-family properties Annualized base

rent is calculated by annualizing the current in-place monthly base rent for leases including any tenant concessions such as rent

abatement or allowances which may have been granted

As of December 31 2012

Square Physical Economic

Property Location Footage/Units Occupancy Occupancy

Retail

Merrimack Village Center Merrimack NH 82.292 100.0% 100.0%

Pleasant Hill Commons Kissimmee FL 70642 94.6% 94.6%

Regal Court Shreveport LA 363174 96.1% 96.1%

Draper Crossing Draper UT 167148 99.3% 99.3%

Tradition Village Center Port St Lucie FL 112.421 74.4% 74.4%

The Landing at Tradition Port St Lucie FL 359775 90.4% 90.4%

Temple Terrace Temple Terrace FL 87.2 13 93.8% 93.8%

Kohls at Calvine Pointe Elk Grove CA 89887 100.0% 100.0%

Lake City Commons Lake City FL 66.5 10 90.7% 94.2%

Publix Shopping Center St Cloud FL 78820 100.0% 100.0%

Kohls Bend River Promenade Bend OR 69.000 100.0% 100.0%

Whispering Ridge Omaha NE 69676 100.0% 100.0%

Bell Oaks Shopping Center Newburgh IN 9481 100.0% 100.0%

Colonial Square Town Center Fort Myers FL 212354 86.1% 98.9%

Shops at Village Walk Fort Myers FL 78533 88.2% 93.7%

Lima Marketplace Fort Wayne IN 106880 98.7% 98.7%

Dollar General- Anton Anton AL 9014 100.0% 100.0%

Dollar General- Collins Collins GA 9014 100.0% 100.0%

Dollar General- Decatur Decatur AL 9014 100.0% 100.0%

Dollar General- Dublin Dublin GA 10640 100.0% 100.0%

Dollar General- Duncanville Duncanville AL 9026 100.0% 100.0%

Dollar General- Excel Frisco City AL 8982 100.0% 100.0%

Dollar General- LaGrange LaGrange GA 9014 100.0% 100.0%

Dollar General- Milledgeville Milledgeville GA 9014 100.0% 100.0%

Dollar General- Uriah Uniah AL 9100 100.0% 100.0%

Waxahachie Crossing Waxahachie TX 97127 98.8% 98.8%

Village at Bay Park Ashwaubenon WI 180.754 96.7% 96.7%

Northcrest Shopping Center Charlotte NC 133674 897% 100.0%

Prattville Town Center Prattville AL 168.842 98.6% 98.6%

Landatown Commons Virginia Beach VA 409771 93.9% 93.9%

Silver Springs Pointe Oklahoma City OK 135028 97.4% 97.4%

Copps Grocery Store Neenab WI 61065 1000% 1000%

University Town Center Norman OK 158516 99.1% 100.0%

Pick Save Grocery Store Burlington WI 48403 100.0% 100.0%

Walgreens Lake Mary Lake Mary FL 21370 100.0% 100.04

Walgreens Plaza Jacksonville NC 42219 83.6% 83.6%

Walgreens Heritage Square Conyers GA 22385 95.8% 95.8%

Perimeter Woods Charlotte NC 303353 961% 100.0%

Draper Peaks Draper UT 229817 85.3% 93.2A

Shoppes at Prairie Ridge Pleasant Prairie WI 232629 96.6% 100.0%

Fairgrounds Crossing Hot Springs AR 155127 98.7% 98.76

Mullins Crossing Evans GA 291168 98.5% 100.0%

Fox Point Neenah WI 171.121 98.1% 98.1%
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Property

Harvest Square

Palm Coast Landing

Dollar General -tcamore

Dollar General Market Port St Joe

Hamilton Crossing

Dollar General Buffalo

Shoppóat BscIJiHs

Shoppes at Hawk Ridge

Bayonne Crossing

Eastside Junction

Shops at Julingios Creek

Dollar General Store Lillian

Dollar Oenere Marlnt Slâcntn

Dollar General Store Clanton

BB4t- Plantation

BBT Wilmington

KeyBat- Beackwaad

KeyBank Euclid

Mentor

KeyBank Pepper Pike

Kayknk ShakrHalghts

Regions Bank Acworth

ReonsBank-Aa
Dollar General Store

Dollareneral Store

South Elgin Commons

Walgteees Berlin

Walgreens Brandford

Wlgrsens Brockton

Walgreens Derry

Wa1W$ Dover

Walgreens Ledgewood

Walgs Mehose

Walgreens Mount Ephraim

Waigreens Sewdll

Saxon Crossing

Dollar General Store- Enterprise

Dollar General Store Odenville

BP Gordonsville

BP Fontaine

BP Monticello

BP Seminole

Citgo- Gordonsvlue

BJs at Richie Station

Dollar 1eera1 Market- Candler

Shops at Moore

KoWiwnroigs
Dollar General Market Vienna

Centre Point Continons

Dollar General Store Borger

Dolly General Store- Brookshite

Dollar General Store Bullard

Dollar 3enera1 Store Cisco

Dollar General Store Glen Rose

DollGç$ral Store- Hami
Dollar General Store Itasca

Dollar Genend Store Joaquni

Location

NatvesttAL

Palm Coast FL

Sycamote AL

Port St Joe FL

Alcoa Th

Buffalo NY

BrÆSOMQ

Lake St Louis MO

Bayonne NJ

Athens GA

Jacksonville FL

Lillian AL

SIOc01bAL

Clanton AL

P1antation EL

Wilmington NC

Beachwood OH

Euclid OH

Mentor OH

Pepper Pike OH

Shaker He1 OH

Acworth GA

Alpbaretta GA

Marbuiy AL

G0beftown AL

Elgin IL

Ber1incT

Brandford CT

Brocko MA

Deny NH

DoverNH

Ledgewood NJ

Mehose MA
Mount Ephraim NJ

Seweil NJ

Orange City FL

EnterpriseAL

Odenville AL

Gordonaville VA

Charlottesville VA

Charlottesville VA

Charlottesville VA

Oordonsville VA

Capital Heights MD

candler se

Moore OK

clnmainQA

Vienna GA

BrentonEL

Borger TX

W0kshireTX

Bollard TX

cscTx
Glen Rose TX

lkcetX
Itasca TX

Josn TX

Square

Footage/Units

70000

171297

9026

20707

1794

10566

447$

75951

35841

79700

40207

9026

20707

10566

4375

3750

933

3852

4460

7879

4231

3353

7049

9026

12446

128000

14820

13548

1704

14820

14418

14696

.160

14739

14820

119894

9002

9100

$7S6

3589

2257

2573

4136

117875

30700

259903

86$R4

20707

9014

9100

4014

12480

91o0
9014

12480

As of December 31 2012

Physical

Occupancy

952%

97.6%

100.0%

100.0%

97.6%

100.0%

100.0%

98.2%

93.1%

89.3%

100.0%

100.0%

1o00%

100.0%

1000%

100.0%

100%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

1000%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

1000%

99.0%

100%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

I000%

96.6%

100.0%

100.0%

1000%

100.0%

100.0%

1O0l%

100.0%

100.0%

Economic

Occupancy

924
100.0%

100$
100.0%

100.0%

100.0l9

100.0%

100O%

93.1%

100.0%

100.0%

l0L0
100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

I00.04

100.0%

100o

100.0%

IOOMo

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.04

100.0%

104
100.0%

99.0%

100o
100.0%

100.0%

100.04

100.0%

100.04

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%
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Property

Dollar General Store Llano

Doll rOe tore Memphis

Dollar General Store Mt Vernon

D8torePd
Dollar General Store Rockdale

Dollar gneza1 St reS$V
Dollar General Store Van Horn

Lake ChConunons

Pathmark Seaford

Path UpperDarby

Pathmark Wilmington

Schnucks Festus

Dollar General Store Anson

Dollar Oene Store East Bernard

City Center

fl

Crossing at Killingly Commons

Wheattand Town Center

Dollar General Store Hertford

Landings at Ocean Isle Beach

University Town Center Phase II

1eneri
Dollar General Market Canton

6ryCorner

Centennial Center

Eastern Beltway

Et$
Lowes Plaza

Siemens Building

Thu WarCabIeDivlsktRQ

Elementis Worldwide Global HQ

Hasten Office Building

IndustrIal

StemensOas Turbine Sereic DMsinn

FedEx Distribution Centers

Multi4amlly

The Crossings at Hillcroft

One Webster

City Center

Portfolio Totals

Location

Llano TX

MemphisTX

Mt Vernon TX

P1ne1and1X

Rockdale TX

Van Horn TX

LakeCiFL

Seaford NY

UDàtbP4
Wilmington DE

SttmisMG
Festus MO

Anson TX

EastBerna4TX

White Plains NY

Dayville CT

Da11aX

Hertford NC

Ocean Isle Beach NC

14 Tucem ZiI

Norman OK

Canton MS

Lss$V
Las Vegas NV

Lasyegs

Las Vegas NV

Las Vegas NV

As of December 312012

Square Physical Economic

Footage/Units Occupancy Occupancy

12000 100.0% 100.0%

9100 U0.e% 1000%

9100 100.0% 100.0%

Jij914 100.0% 100.0%

9014 100.0% 100.0%

iOO.0%

12500 100.0% 100.0%

16.291 1000% 100.0%

41030 100.0% 100.0%

5Z791 1000% 100.0%

48622 100.0% 100.0%

6iS14 00.0% 100.0%

52223 100.0% 100.0%

ioern

9100 100.0% 100.0%

9014 00.O% 100.0%

365905 84.7% 100.0%

23U3Li 99.s% 995%

395539 94.4% 100.0%

150103 96.5% 1000%

12406 100.0% 100.0%

100.0% 1000%

53220 94.5% 94.5%

801$5 89.7% 100.0%

194917 95.2% 100.0%

910O 100.0% 100.0%

20707 100.0% 100.0%

444fl 809% 80.9%

857831 95.0% 96.2%

193009 814% 94.6%

525226 99.8% 99.8%

96% 924
30208 63.6% 63.6%

105106 100.0% 100.0%

10Z924 l000% 100.0%

65552 100.0% 100.0%

13$908 100.0% 100.0%

160000 100.0% 100.0%

256815 100.0% 100.0%

300units 91.1% 91.1%

120 uiæts 86.8% 86.8%

24 units 100.0% 100.0%

Buffalo Grove IL

East Syracuse $Y

East Windsor NJ

1revidence RI

Deer PETX
Houston TX

Houston TX

CheIseaMA

White Plains NY

__________ 977%
Economic occupancy excludes square footage associated with an eamout component At the time of acquisition certain

properties have an eamout component to the purchase price meaning we did not pay portion of the purchase price at closing

for certain vacant spaces although we own the entire property We are not obligated to settle this contingent purchase price

unless the seller obtains leases for the vacant spaces within the time limits and parameters set forth in the applicable acquisition

agreement
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The following table sets forth summary as of December 31 2012 of lease expirations scheduled to occur during each of the

calendar years from 2013 to 2017 and thereafter assuming no exercise of renewal options or early termination rights for leases

commenced on or prior to December 31 2012 and does not include multi-family leases

Percent of

Percent of Total Total Annualized

Number Gross Leasable Total Annualized Annualized Base

of Area of Expiring Gross Leasable Base Rent Base Rent of Rent per

Expiring Leases Area of Expiring of Expiring Expiring Leased

Lease Expiration Year Leases Square Footage Leases Leases Leases Square Foot

2013 139 358865 3.0% 7585 4.3% 21.14

2014 118 427862 3.6% 8774 5.0% 20.51

2015 107 337039 2.8% 6577 3.7% 19.51

2016 127 493534 4.2% 8398 4.8/o 17.02

2017 143 815842 6.9% 14205 8.0% 17.41

Thereafter 465 9441368 79.5% 130942 74.2% 13.87

Leased Total 1099 11874510 100.0% 176481 100.0% 14.86

Represents the base rent in place at the time of lease expiration

Includes month-to-month leases

The following table sets forth our top five tenants in our portfolio based on annualized base rent for leases in-place on December 31

2012 and does not include multi-family leases

Percent of

Percent of Portfolio Annualized

Gross Leasable Portfolio Total Total Total Base

Number of Area Square Gross Leasable Annualized Annualized Rent per

Tenant Leases Footage Area Base Rent Base Rent Square Foot

Kohls Department Stores Inc 10 832839 6.7% 7587 4.4% 9.11

Walgreens 14 204167 1.7% 7299 4.2% 35.75

Dollar General 43 490241 4.0% 4945 2.9% 10.09

PetSmart 15 281848 2.3% 4178 2.4% 14.82

RossDressForLess 12 342967 2.8% 3757 2.2% 10.95

1P tfl/ IOL QI
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The
following table sets forth summary of our tenant diversity for our entire portfolio and is based on leases in-place on

December 31 2012

Square Footage Including Percent of Total
Tenant Type

Multi-family Units Square Footage
Dollar stores and off price clothing 2079333 16.9%

Grocery
1412151 11.5%

Lifestyle health clubs books and phones 1200379 9.8%

Department 1176736 9.6%

Home Improvement 768894 6.3%

Restaurants and fast food
728882 5.9%

Home goods 706674 5.8%

Clothing and accessories
704556 5.7%

Sporting goods
607982 4.9%

Multi-family 429288 3.5%

Consumer services salons cleaners and banks 428727 3.5%

Industrial

416815 3.4%

Commercial office
409490 3.3%

Pet supplies 405372 3.3%

Health doctors and health food 388310 3.2%

Electronics
257731 2.1%

Other
164214 1.3%

Total
12285534 100.0%

Item Legal Proceedings

We are not party to and none of our properties is subject to any material pending legal proceedings

Item Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable

PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

All dollar amounts are stated in thousands except per share amounts

Market Information

There is no established public trading market for our shares of common stock Our board of directors plans to meet with investment
bankers to discuss creating liquidity event for our stockholders Accordingly series of meetings have been scheduled with

investment bankers in the first and second quarters of 2013

The Financial Industry Regulatory Authority or FINRA requires registered broker-dealers including the soliciting dealers who had
sold shares in our best efforts offering to disclose in customers account statement an estimated value for REITs securities if the
annual report of that REIT discloses per share estimated value The FINRA rules currently prohibit broker-dealers from using per
share estimated value developed from data that is more than eighteen months old This in effect prohibits the broker-dealers from

using per share offering price from an issuers last best efforts offering for more than eighteen months after the termination of that

offering Thus beginning in February 2014 which is eighteen months or any lesser period of time prescribed by FINRA after our last

best efforts offering of our shares of common stock our board of directors anticipates publishing new estimated per share value of

our shares based on the recommendation of our Business Manager Although the FINRA rules provide no guidance regarding the

methodology used to determine estimated value per share our board of directors has adopted policy requiring the engagement of an

independent third party at the applicable time to review the valuation approach used by the Business Manager to estimate the value
of our shares including the underlying assumptions made by the Business Manager and the valuation conclusion and to make that

report accessible to soliciting dealers
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Stockholders

As of March 2013 we had 27719 stockholders of record

Distributions

We currently pay distributions based on daily record dates payable monthly in arrears For 2012 we paid distributions that equal to

daily amount equal to $0.00 1639344 which if paid each day for the 366-day period would equal to $0.60 per share or 6.0%

annualized rate based on purchase price of $10.00 per share During the years
ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 we paid

cash distributions which were paid monthly in arrears to stockholders totaling $51767 $23641 and $7031 respectively
For federal

income tax purposes
for the years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 38% 27% and 19% of the distributions constituted

nondividend distribution respectively

Notification Regarding Payments of Distributions

Stockholders should be aware that the method by which stockholder has chosen to receive his or her distributions affects the timing

of the stockholders receipt of those distributions Specifically under our transfer agents payment processing procedures distributions

are paid in the following manner

those stockholders who have chosen to receive their distributions via ACH wire transfers receive their distributions on the

distribution payment date as determined by our board of directors

those stockholders who have chosen to receive their distributions by paper check are typically mailed those checks on the

distribution payment date but sometimes paper checks are mailed on the day following the distribution payment date and

for those stockholders holding shares through broker or other nominee the distributions payments are wired or paper

checks are mailed to the broker or other nominee on the day following the distribution payment date

All stockholders who hold shares directly in record name may change at any time the method through which they receive their

distributions from our transfer agent .and those stockholders will not have to pay any fees to us or our transfer agent to make such

change Also all stockholders are eligible to participate at no cost in our DRP Accordingly each stockholder may select the timing of

receipt of distributions from our transfer agent by selecting the method above that corresponds to the desired timing for receipt of the

distributions Because all stockholders may elect to have their distributions sent via ACH wire on the distribution payment date or

credited on the distribution payment date to their DRP we will treat all of our stockholders regardless of the method by which they

have chosen to receive their distributions as having constructively received their distributions from us on the distribution payment

date for federal income tax purposes

Stockholders who hold shares directly in record name and who would like to change their distribution payment method should

complete Change of Distribution Election Form This form should also be complete by stockholders who would like to participate

in our DRP This form is available on our website under Investor Relations-Forms

We note that the payment method for stockholders who hold shares through broker or nominee is determined by the broker or

nominee Similarly the payment method for stockholders who hold shares in tax-deferred account such as an IRA is generally

determined by the custodian for the account Stockholders that currently hold shares through broker or other nominee and would like

to receive distributions via ACH wire or paper check should contact their broker or other nominee regarding their processes
for

transferring shares to record name ownership Similarly stockholders who hold shares in tax deferred account may need to hold

shares outside of their tax-deferred accounts to change the method through which they receive their distributions Stockholders who

hold shares through tax-deferred account and who would like to change the method through which they receive their distributions

should contact their custodians regarding the transfer process and should consult their tax advisor regarding the consequences of

transferring shares outside of tax-deferred account

Share Repurchase Program

We adopted share repurchase program effective August 24 2009 The program was amended and restated effective as of May 20

2010 Under the amended program we may make ordinary repurchases which are defined as all repurchases other than upon the

death of stockholder at prices ranging from 92.5% of the share price as defined in the program for stockholders who have owned

their shares continuously for at least one year but less than two years to 100% of the share price for stockholders who have owned

their shares continuously for at least four years In the case of exceptional repurchases which are defined as repurchases upon the

death of stockholder we may repurchase shares at repurchase price equal to 100% of the share price

With respect to ordinary repurchases we may make repurchases only if we have sufficient funds available to complete the repurchase

In any given calendar month we are authorized to use only the proceeds generated from our distribution reinvestment plan during that

month to fund ordinary repurchases under the program provided that if we have excess funds during any particular month we may

but are not obligated to carry those excess funds to the subsequent calendar month for the purpose
of making ordinary repurchases

Subject to funds being available in the case of ordinary repurchases we further will limit the number of shares repurchased during
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October 2012

November 2012

December 2012

Total

any calendar year to 5% of the number of shares of common stock outstanding on December 31st of the previous calendar year With

respect to exceptional repurchases we are authorized to use all available funds to repurchase shares In addition the one-year holding

period and 5% limit described herein will not apply to exceptional repurchases We must however receive the written request for an

exceptional repurchase within one year after the death of the stockholder

The share repurchase program will immediately terminate if our shares are listed on any national securities exchange In addition our

board of directors in its sole discretion may amend suspend in whole or in part or terminate our share repurchase program In the

event that we amend suspend or terminate the share repurchase program however we will send stockholders notice of the change at

least thirty days prior to the change and we will disclose the change in report filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on

either Form 8-K Form 10-Q or Form 10-K as appropriate Further our board reserves the right in its sole discretion at any time and

from time to time to reject any requests for repurchases For ordinary repurchases shares repurchased through the share repurchase

program are fully funded from proceeds generated through the distribution reinvestment plan For the year ended December 31 2012

and 2011 we processed all of the requests we received for share repurchases

The table below outlines the shares of common stock we repurchased all of which were ordinary and exceptional repurchased

pursuant to our share repurchase program during the quarter ended December 31 2012

Maximum Number or
Approximate Dollar

Total Requests Total Number of Shares Value of Shares or
Received for Total Number Repurchased as Part of Units that May Yet Be

Shares of Shares Average Price Publicly Announced Purchased Under the

Repurchased Repurchased Paid per Share Plans or Programs Plans or Programs

66489 66489 50

42742 42742 9.43

31 143 31143 930

140374 140374 9.44

66489

42742

31143

140374

description of the maximum number of shares that may be purchased under our repurchase program is included in the

narrative preceding this table

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

None

Use of Proceeds from Registered Securities

We completed best efforts offering on our shares of common stock on August 23 2012 We are continuing to offer shares of our

common stock to stockholders that have elected to participate in our DRP We sold total of 110485936 shares generating

$1099311 in aggregate gross offering proceeds in the best efforts offering As of December 31 2012 we had sold 5323426

shares generating $50573 in aggregate gross offering proceeds through the DRP

Through the close of the best efforts offering which was completed on August 23 2012 we have incurred the following costs in

connection with the issuance and distribution of the registered securities

Type of Costs Amount

Offering costs to related parties 107497

Offering costs paid to non-related parties 10685

Total offering costs 118182

Offering costs to related parties include selling commissions marketing contributions and due diligence expense

reimbursements paid to Inland Securities Corporation which reallowed paid all or portion of these amounts to soliciting

dealers No selling commissions are paid on shares issued through the distribution reinvestment plan

From the effective date of the best efforts offering through the close of the best efforts offering the net offering proceeds to us from

the best efforts offering excluding the DRP and the share repurchase program after deducting the total expenses incurred described

above were $981129 As of December 31 2012 we had used all of these net proceeds to purchase and to fund capital improvements

on interests in real estate and to invest in marketable securities

Recent Shares of Unregistered Securities

None
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Item Selected Financial Data

The following table shows our selected financial data relating to our consolidated historical financial condition and results of

operations This selected data should be read in conjunction with Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations and the consolidated financial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this report in

thousands except share and per share amounts

December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Total assets 2393523 1010386 450114 26439 1299

Mortgages credit facility and securities margin

payable 1249422 464956 192871

Period from June

30 2008

inception through

For the years ended December 31 December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Total income 134335 72115 18198 96

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders 2616 2279 1743 297 70

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders

percommonsharebasicanddiluteda 0.03 0.05 0.13 0.81 3.48

Distributions declared to common stockholders 54687 25263 8203 212

Distributions per weighted average common share 0.60 0.60 0.60 0.15

Cash flows provided by operating activities 56670 274872 2658 342 34

Cash flows used in investing activities 1215402 454168 346755 9691

Cash flows provided by financing activities 1134777 445649 369262 25369 434

Weighted average
number of common shares

outstanding basic and diluted 91146154 42105681 13671936 367888 20000

The net income loss attributable to common stockholders per common share basic and diluted is based upon the weighted

average number of common shares outstanding for the year or period ended The distributions per common share are based

upon the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding for the year or period ended
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Certain statements in this Managements Discussion andAnalysis of Financial Condition andResults of Operations and elsewhere

in this Annual Report on Form 10-K constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act

and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act Words such as may anticipates

expects intends plans believes seeks estimates would could should and variations of these words and

similar expressions are intended to identforward-looking statements

These forward-looking statements are not historical facts but reflect the intent belief or current expectations our management based

on their knowledge and understanding of the business and industry the economy and other future conditions These statements are not

guarantees offuture performance and we caution stockholders not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements Actual

results may differ materially from those expressed or forecasted in the forward-looking statements due to variety of risks

uncertainties and other factors including but not limited to thefactors listed and described under Risk Factors in this Annual

Report on Form 10-K and the factors described below

our investment policies and strategies are very broad and permit us to invest in numerous types of commercial real

estate

we cannot generate sufficient cash flowfrom operations tofullyfund distributions some or all of our distributions may
be paidfrom other sources including cash flow generated by investing activities which will reduce the amount of money

available to invest in assets

no public market currently exists and one may never exist for our shares and we are not required to liquidate

we may borrow up to 300% of our net assets and principal and interest payments will reduce thefunds available for

distribution

we do not have employees and rely on our Business Manager and Real Estate Managers to manage our business and

assets

employees of our Business Manager and three of our directors are also employed by our Sponsor or its affiliates and

face competing demands for their time and service and may have conflicts in allocating their time to our business and

assets

we do not have arms length agreements with our Business Manager Real Estate Managers or any other affiliates of our

Sponsor

we may pay sign Icant fees to our Business Manager Real Estate Managers and other affiliates of our Sponsor

our Business Manager could recommend investments in an attempt to increase its fees which are generally based on

percentage of our invested assets and in certain cases the purchase price for the assets and

we may fail to continue to qualify as REIT

Forward-looking statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K reflect our managements view only as of the date of this Report and

may ultimately prove to be incorrect or false We undertake no obligation to update or revise forward-looking statements to reflect

changed assumptions the occurrence of unanticipated events or changes to future operating results We intendfor these forward-

looking statements to be covered by the applicable saft harbor provisions created by Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E

of the Exchange Act

The following discussion and analysis relates to the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 You should read the following

discussion and analysis along with our consolidated financial statements and the related notes included in this report Unless otherwise

noted all dollar amounts are stated in thousands except share data per share amounts rent per square foot and rent per unit

Overview

We are Maryland corporation sponsored by Inland Real Estate Investment Corporation IREIC or the Sponsor and formed to

acquire and develop commercial real estate located in the United States and Canada We also may invest in other real estate assets

such as interests in real estate investment trusts or REITs or other real estate operating companies that own these assets joint

ventures and commercial mortgage debt We may originate or invest in real estate-related loans made to third parties Our primary

investment objectives are to balance investing in real estate assets that produce attractive current yield and long-term risk-adjusted

retums to our stockholders with our desire to preserve
stockholders capital and to pay sustainable and predictable distributions to our

stockholders At December 31 2012 the Company owned 133 retail properties four office properties and two industrial properties

collectively totaling 12.4 million square feet and two multi-family properties totaling 444 units As of December 31 2012 our

portfolio had weighted average physical and economic occupancy of 95.7% and 97.7% respectively Economic occupancy excludes

square footage associated with an eamout component At the time of acquisition certain properties have an eamout component to the

purchase price meaning we did not pay portion of the purchase price at closing related to certain vacant spaces although we own
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the entire property We are not obligated to settle this contingent purchase price obligation unless the seller obtains leases for the

vacant space
within the time limits and parameters set forth in the applicable acquisition agreement

As of December 31 2012 and 2011 annualized base rent per square
foot averaged $13.51 and $13.39 respectively for all properties

other than the multi-family properties and $12098 and $9403 per unit respectively for the multi-family properties Annualized base

rent is calculated by annualizing the current in-place monthly base rent for leases including any tenant concessions such as rent

abatement or allowances which may have been granted

On August 24 2009 we commenced our best efforts offering to sell up to 500000000 shares of our common stock at price equal

to $10.00 per
share on best efforts basis We were also authorized to sell up to 50000000 shares of our common stock at price

equal to $9.50 per
share to stockholders who elected to participate in our distribution reinvestment plan or DRP The best efforts

portion of the offering was completed on August 23 2012 However on July 19 2012 we filed registration statement with the SEC

under which we will continue to issue shares to existing stockholders pursuant to the DRP We elected to be taxed as REIT

commencing with the tax year ended December 31 2009 and intend to continue to qualif as REIT for federal income tax purposes

Market Outlook

Now that the national election of 2012 is behind us we know that the state of the economy was the most important issue on everyones

minds There are pressing matters of national security which were debated prior to the election but the vast majority of air time and

media exposure concerned such things as jobs political gridlock federal and state budgets the national debt and related matters In

the last few months prior to the election moderately good news concerning the job market helped the majority of the electorate decide

to keep the administration in office This despite the fact that in the past five years none of the fiscal policy initiatives emanating from

the government has resulted in sustained recovery from the recession of 2008-2009

From our perspective the economic conditions described above have resulted in the investing public placing premium on platforms

that are perceived as relatively less volatile than the stock market Real estate has been the beneficiary of this trend The FTSE

NAREIT US Real Estate Index indicated that the overall return of REITs in 2012 was 20.14% as compared to the 9.14% average

return seen on the NASDAQ Dow Jones and SP 500 We have seen this affect our business in at least two ways First the

competition for the acquisition of well located stable real estate assets has been intense over the past year Second we benefitted from

increased investor interest in our program In the eight months in 2012 that we raised capital we received total of approximately

$536094 which represented 48.8% of the aggregate we collected We were fortunate in that our acquisition pipeline was robust in

2012 so were able to invest all of the capital collected by the end of the year

Although we faced stiff competition for acquisitions the long industry track record of our Sponsor helped us secure number of

properties that were not presented for sale to the general market This resulted in our acquisition of more than $1 billion in assets in

2012 Further we believe many sellers were concerned with uncertainty of transaction execution by potential buyers Thus our readily

available cash from the offering as reported on our quarterly filings in 2012 provided evidence that the liquidity necessary for us to

meet our commitments to purchase properties would not be an issue

Our business plan from inception has been to finance our properties at target of approximately 50% to 55% percent of their

acquisition cost We benefitted in 2012 from extremely favorable interest rates Our debt is generally long term with the majority at

fixed rates and with our overall weighted average interest rate at 4.13% per annum at December 31 2012 That metric when

combined with our average economic occupancy rate for the portfolio of 97.7% has enabled us to provide consistent returns to our

stockholders We expect that trend to continue

2012 Company Highlights

Specific 2012 achievements include

Acquiring 92 properties totaling 6.8 million square feet and 144 multi-family units for $1191719 net of debt assumed

and other prorations

Financing 89 properties through borrowing $624340 and assuming $92195 in secured first mortgages with combined

weighted average stated interest rate of 3.45% per annum and an aggregate weighted average maturity of 8.9 years

Declaring and paying distributions totaling $0.60 per
share on an annualized basis and fully funding all distributions

from cash flow from operations

Generating gross proceeds excluding DRP proceeds totaling $536094 from our best-efforts offering which closed on

August 23 2012
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

General

Our principal demands for funds are to acquire real estate and real estate-related assets to pay capital expenditures including tenant

improvements to pay our operating expenses including property operating expenses to pay principal and interest on our outstanding

indebtedness to fund repurchases of previously issued common stock and to pay distributions to our stockholders and redeemable

noncontrolling interest holders We seek to fund our cash needs for items other than asset acquisitions capital expenditures and related

financings from operations Our cash needs for acquisitions including any contingent earnout payments capital improvements and

related financings have been funded primarily from the sale of our shares including through our DRP as well as debt financings Our

primary source to fund our future cash needs including cash to fund earnout payments are expected to come from our undistnbuted

cash flow from operations and proceeds from our DRP as well as secured or unsecured financings including proceeds from lines of

credit The maximum total eamout payments which are expected to be paid during the next three years related to our acquisitions was

$77592 at December 31 2012 and will not materially affect our liquidity During the year ended December 31 2012 we paid $1189

of capital expenditures and tenant improvements We anticipate an increase in our capital expenditures including tenant improvements

in future years relating to signing new leases as our tenants leases expire and as our properties age

As of December 31 2012 $73500 was outstanding on our line of credit with an interest rate of 1.90% per annum under which we

may borrow on an unsecured basis up to $105000 Our general strategy is to target borrowing 55% of the total fair market value of

our assets on portfolio basis As of December 31 2012 our borrowings did not exceed our target of 55% of the total fair market

value of our assets For these purposes the fair market value of each asset is equal to the purchase price paid for the asset or the value

reported in the most recent appraisal of the asset whichever is the later to occur Our charter limits the amount we may borrow to

300% of our net assets as defined in our charter unless any excess borrowing is approved by the board of directors including

majority of the independent directors and is disclosed to our stockholders in our next quarterly report along with justification for the

excess As of December 31 2012 our borrowings did not exceed 300% of our net assets and we had principal balance outstanding

on mortgage loans of $1156582 with weighted average stated interest rate including interest rate swaps of 4.32% per annum

As of December 31 2012 our consolidated joint ventures had issued $47215 in noncontrolling interests which will become

redeemable at future dates generally no earlier than in 2015 but generally no later than 2022 based on certain redemption criteria The

redeemable noncontrolling interests are not mandatory redeemable We may issue common stock or pay cash or both in connection

with redemption

As of December 31 2012 we had $40941 in marketable securities which were mainly invested in real estate-related equity securities

of publicly traded companies and publicly traded corporate bonds and had borrowed $17872 on margin which had the effect of

increasing our overall return

As of December 31 2012 and 2011 we owed $2532 and $1909 respectively to our Sponsor and its affiliates for business

management fees not otherwise waived advances from these parties used to pay administrative and offering costs and certain accrued

expenses
which are included in due to related parties on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets These amounts represent non-

interest bearing advances by the Sponsor and its affiliates which the Company intends to repay

Distributions

We generated sufficient cash flow from operations determined in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

U.S GAAP to fully fund distributions paid during the year ended December 31 2012 Cash retained by us of $7695 from the

waiver of the business management fee for the year ended December 31 2012 by our Business Manager had the effect of increasing

cash flow from operations for this period because we did not have to use cash to pay the fee However even if the Business Manager

had not waived this business management fee during the year ended December 31 2012 we would have still generated sufficient cash

flow from operations to fund $48975 of $51767 distributions paid for the period There is no assurance that any deferral or waiver of

any fee or reimbursement will be available to fund distributions in the future

We intend to fund cash distributions to our stockholders from cash generated by our operations and other non-U.S GAAP measures

such as funds from operations FF0 Cash generated by operations is not equivalent to our net income from continuing operations

also as determined under U.S GAAP or our taxable income for federal income tax purposes If we are unable to generate sufficient

cash flow from operations determined in accordance with U.S GAAP to fully fund distributions some or all of our distributions may
be paid from cash flow generated from investing activities including the net proceeds from the sale of our assets In addition we may
fund distributions from among other things advances or contributions from our Business Manager or IREIC or from the cash retained

by us in the case that our Business Manager defers or waives all or portion of its business management fee or waives its right to be

reimbursed for certain expenses As noted above deferral or waiver of any fee or reimbursement owed to our Business Manager has

the effect of increasing cash flow from operations for the relevant period because we do not have to use cash to pay any fee or

reimbursement which was deferred or waived during the relevant period We will however use cash in the future if we pay any fee or

reimbursement that was deferred Neither our Business Manager nor IREIC has any obligation to provide us with advances or
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contributions and our Business Manager is not obligated to defer or waive any portion of its business management fee or

reimbursements Further there is no assurance that these other sources will be available to fund distributions

We have not funded any distributions from the net proceeds from the sale of our shares In addition we have not funded any

distributions from the proceeds generated by borrowings and do not intend to do so

We intend to continue paying distributions for future periods in the amounts and at times as determined by our board of directors

During the
years

ended December 31 20122011 and 2010 we paid distributions in the amount of $51767 $23641 and $7031

respectively Our 2012 distributions were funded from cash flows from operations determined in accordance with U.S GAAP On

March 10 2011 our Sponsor forgave $1500 in liabilities related to advances used to pay administrative and offering costs prior to the

commencement of our best efforts offering that were previously funded to the Company and treated this as capital contribution to

cover portion of distributions paid related to the
year

ended December 31 2010 For U.S GAAP purposes the monies contributed

by our Sponsor have been treated as capital contributions from our Sponsor although our Sponsor has not received and will not

receive any additional shares of our common stock for making any of these contributions For federal income tax purposes these

contributions may be considered taxable income under certain circumstances Our Sponsor is not obligated to continue to contribute

monies to fund future distributions nor is there any assurance that it will do so if cash flows from operations or borrowings are not

sufficient to cover them The amount and timing of distributions may vary and there is no assurance that we will continue to pay

distributions at the existing rate if at all

One of our objectives is to provide cash distributions to our stockholders from cash generated by our operations determined under U.S

GAAP Cash generated from operations is not equivalent to our net income from continuing operations as determined under U.S

GAAP

summary of the distributions declared distributions paid and cash flows used in operations for the years ended December 31 2012

2011 and 2010 follows

Distributions Paid

Distributions Cash Flows

Years ended Distributions Declared Per Share Reinvested From Funds From

December 31 Declared Cash via DRP Total Operations Operations

$68 O4l8 iui 56670 55830

2011 25263 0.60 8984 14657 $23641 27872 26672

2010 8203 0.60 2530 4501 7031 2658 3911

Assumes share was issued and outstanding each day during the period

Funds from operations is defined in the following section

During 2010 IREIC contributed $2889 to fund payment of distributions Subsequently on March 10 2011 IREIC forgave

$1500 in liabilities related to noninterest bearing advances that were previously funded to the Company For U.S GAAP

purposes this forgiveness of debt was treated as capital contribution from our Sponsor although our Sponsor has not received

and will not receive any additional shares of our common stock for making this contribution

Share Repurchase Program

We have share repurchase program designed to provide limited liquidity to eligible stockholders During the year ended

December 31 2012 we used $8449 to repurchase 889335 shares Since the start of the program through December 31 2012 we

have used $10504 to repurchase an aggregate of 1101924 shares

During the
year

ended December 31 2012 we received requests to repurchase 889335 shares and fulfilled requests for all of these

shares The average per share repurchase price during this period was $9.50 and these repurchases were funded from proceeds from

our distribution reinvestment plan

Cash Flow Analysis

For the year ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Net cash flows provided by operating ativities 56670 27872 2658

Net cash flows used in investing activities 1215402 454168 346755

Net cash flows provided by financing activities 1134777 445649 369262

Net cash provided by operating activities was $56670 $27872 and $2658 for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively The funds generated in 2012 and 2011 were primarily from property operations from our real estate portfolio The
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increase from 2010 to 2011 as well as 2011 to 2012 is due to the growth of our real estate portfolio and related full period property

operations in 2011 and 2012

Net cash flows used in investing activities were $1215402 $454168 and $346755 for the
years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and

2010 respectively We used $1191719 $447559 and $330530 during the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively to purchase properties and $19543 $12362 and $5646 to purchase marketable securities net of sales during the years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Net cash flows provided by financing activities were $1134777 $445649 and $369262 for the years ended December 31 2012

2011 and 2010 respectively Of these amounts cash flows from financing activities of $567443 $322879 and $230368

respectively resulted from the sale of our common stock in our best efforts offering and through our DRP We generated $675470

$185697 and $169243 respectively from net loan proceeds from borrowings secured by properties in our portfolio and on the line of

credit We generated used $16580 $2 14 and $1507 respectively from net borrowings from securities margin debt We used

$54269 $33741 and $24305 respectively to pay offering costs We used $5833 $3458 and $3025 for the
years

ended December

31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively to pay loan fees and deposits related to financing on our closed and potential acquisitions

Funds from Operations and Mod j/ied Funds from Operations

The historical cost accounting rules used for real estate assets require among other things straight-line depreciation of buildings and

improvements which implies that the value of real estate assets diminishes predictably over time especially if such assets are not

adequately maintained or repaired and renovated as required by relevant circumstances We believe that since real estate values

historically rise and fall with market conditions including inflation interest rates the business cycle unemployment and consumer

spending the presentation of operating results for REIT using historical cost accounting alone may be less informative and

insufficient Therefore we utilize certain non-U.S GAAP supplemental performance measures due to certain unique operating

characteristics of real estate companies One non-U.S GAAP supplemental performance measure that we consider is known as funds

from operations or FF0 The National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts or NAREIT an industry trade group

promulgated this measure which it believes more accurately reflects the operating performance of REIT As defined by NAREIT
FF0 means net income computed in accordance with U.S GAAP excluding gains or losses from sales of property plus depreciation

and amortization on real property adding back real estate impairment charges and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships

and joint ventures in which we hold an interest While impairment charges are added back in the calculation of FF0 we caution that

due to the fact that impairments to the value of any property are typically based on reductions in estimated future undiscounted cash

flows compared to current carrying value declines in the undiscounted cash flows which led to the impairment charges reflect

declines in property operating performance which may be permanent From inception through December 31 2012 we have not had

any impairment charges and therefore no adjustments to FF0 have been necessary for impairment charges We believe our FF0

calculation complies with NAREITs definition described above

Changes in the accounting and reporting promulgations under U.S GAAP for acquisition fees and expenses from capitalization

depreciation model to an expensed-as-incurred model that were put into effect in 2009 and certain other changes to U.S GAAP

accounting for real estate intangible assets subsequent to the establishment of NAREITs definition of FF0 have impacted the

reporting of operating income Specifically acquisition fees and expenses for all industries are accounted for as operating expenses

and no longer capitalized as they were prior to 2009 We do not pay acquisition fees to our Business Manager or its affiliates but we

do incur acquisition related costs Under U.S GAAP acquisition related costs are characterized as operating expenses in determining

operating income These expenses are paid in cash by us and therefore will reduce net income and cash available to be distributed to

our stockholders The acquisition of real estate assets and the corresponding expenses associated with that process has been key

operational feature of our business plan in order to generate operating income and cash flow in order to make distributions to our

stockholders Publicly registered non-listed REITs typically engage in significant amount of acquisition activity and thus incur

significant acquisition related costs during their initial years of investment and operation Although other start up entities likewise

may engage in significant acquisition activity during their initial years non-listed REITs are unique in that they typically have

limited timeframe during which they acquire significant number of properties and thus incur significant acquisition related costs

More specifically as disclosed elsewhere herein we use the proceeds raised in our best efforts offering to acquire properties

Because the offering is completed our acquisition activity is expected to decline and acquisition related costs are likewise expected to

decrease in future periods Thus management believes that acquisition related costs will not be significant cost to us going forward

Due to the above factors and other unique features of publicly registered non-listed REITs the Investment Program Association or

IPA an industry trade group has standardized measure known as modified funds from operations or MFFO which the IPA has

promulgated as supplemental measure for publicly registered non-listed REITs and which may be another appropriate supplemental

measure to reflect the operating performance of non-listed REIT

MFFO excludes costs that are more reflective of investing activities including acquisition related costs that affect our operations only

in periods in which properties are acquired and other non-operating items that are included in FF0 By excluding expensed

acquisition related costs the use of MFFO provides information consistent with the investing and operating performance of the

properties in our portfolio Additionally fair value adjustments which are based on the impact of current market fluctuations and

underlying assessments of general market conditions may not be directly related or attributable to our current operating performance
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By excluding such market changes that may reflect anticipated and unrealized gains or losses we believe that MFFO may provide

both investors and analysts on going forward basis an indication of our operating performance Because MFFO may be

recognized measure of operating performance within the non-listed REIT industry MFFO and the adjustments used to calculate it may

be useful in order to evaluate our performance against other non-listed REITs MFFO is not equivalent to our net income or loss as

determined under U.S GAAP as detailed in the table below and MFFO may not be useful measure of the impact of long-term

operating performance on value if we continue to acquire significant amount of properties Our disclosure of MFFO and the

adjustments used to calculate it presents our performance in manner that reflects certain characteristics that are unique to non-listed

REITs and that may be useful to investors MFFO should only be used to assess our operating performance during our best efforts

offering because it excludes acquisition costs that have negative effect on our operating performance during the periods in which

properties are acquired We do not pay acquisition fees to our Business Manager or its affiliates which would be classified as

acquisition related costs under U.S GAAP

We believe our definition of MFFO non-U.S GAAP measure is consistent with the IPAs Guideline 2010-01 Supplemental

Performance Measure for Publicly Registered Non-Listed REITs Modified Funds from Operations or the Practice Guideline

issued by the IPA in November 2010 The Practice Guideline defines MFFO as FF0 further adjusted for the following items as

applicable included in the determination of U.S GAAP net income acquisition fees and expenses amounts relating to deferred rent

receivables and amortization of above and below market lease assets and liabilities which are adjusted in order to reflect such

payments from U.S GAAP accrual basis to cash basis of disclosing the rent and lease payments accretion of discounts and

amortization of premiums on debt investments mark-to-market adjustments included in net income nonrecurring gains or losses

included in net income from the extinguishment or sale of debt hedges foreign exchange derivatives or securities holdings where

trading of such holdings is not fundamental attribute of the business plan unrealized gains or losses resulting from consolidation

from or deconsolidation to equity accounting and after adjustments for consolidated and unconsolidated partnerships and joint

ventures with such adjustments calculated to reflect MFFO on the same basis The accretion of discounts and amortization of

premiums on debt investments nonrecurring unrealized gains and losses on hedges foreign exchange derivatives or securities

holdings unrealized gains and losses resulting from consolidations as well as other listed cash flow adjustments are adjustments made

to net income in calculating the cash flows provided by operating activities and in some cases reflect gains or losses which are

unrealized and may not ultimately be realized Inasmuch as interest rate hedges are not fundamental part of our operations it is

appropriate to exclude such nonrecurring gains and losses in calculating MFFO as such gains and losses are not reflective of on-going

operations We believe our MFFO calculation complies with the IPAs Practice Guideline described above

However the calculation of FF0 and MFFO may vary
from entity to entity since capitalization and expense policies tend to vary from

entity to entity Items that are capitalized do not impact FF0 and MFFO whereas items that are expensed reduce FF0 and MFFO

Consequently our presentation of FF0 and MFFO may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures presented by other REITs

FF0 and MFFO does not represent cash flows from operations as defined by U.S GAAP it is not indicative of cash available to fund

all cash flow needs nor is it indicative of liquidity including our ability to pay distributions and should not be considered as an

alternative to net income as determined in accordance with U.S GAAP for purposes of evaluating our operating performance

Management uses the calculation of FF0 and MFFO for several reasons We use FF0 and MFFO to compare our operating

performance to that of other REITs to assess our historical operating performance and we compute FF0 and MFFO as part of our

acquisition process to determine whether proposed investment will satisfy our investment objectives

We believe that the use of FF0 and MFFO which excludes the impact of real estate related depreciation and amortization provides

more complete understanding of our operating performance to investors and to management and when compared year over year

reflects the impact on our operations from trends in occupancy rates rental rates operating costs general and administrative expenses

and interest costs However FF0 and MFFO should not be construed to be equivalent to or substitute for U.S GAAP net income or

in its applicability in evaluating our financial performance U.S GAAP measures should be construed as more relevant measures of

financial performance and considered more prominently than the non-U.S GAAP FF0 and MFFO measures and the adjustments to

U.S GAAP in calculating FF0 and MFFO However we believe that the U.S GAAP measures and the non-U.S GAAP FF0 and

MFFO measures taken together do provide useful presentation of our operating performance

Presentation of this information is intended to provide information which may be useful to investors as they compare the operating

performance of different REITs and to give investors insight into our historical operations although it should be noted that not all

REITs calculate FF0 and MFFO the same way so comparisons with other REITs may not be meaningful The exclusion of

impairments limits the usefulness of FF0 and MFFO as historical operating performance measure since an impairment indicates that

the propertys operating performance has been permanently affected Further MFFO has limitations as performance measure for an

entity engaged in an offering such as ours where the price of share of common stock is stated value and there is no net asset value

determination during the offering stage and for period thereafter MFFO may be useful in assisting investors in assessing our

historical operating performance and in particular after the offering and acquisition stages are complete and net asset value is

disclosed FF0 and MFFO are not useful measures in evaluating net asset value because impairments are taken into account in

determining net asset value but not in determining FF0 and MFFO
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Neither the SEC nor any other regulatory body has passed judgment on the acceptability of the adjustments that the company uses to

calculate FF0 or MFFO In the future the SEC or another regulatory body may decide to standardize the allowable adjustments across

the non-listed REIT industry and we would have to adjust the calculations and characterization of FF0 or MFFO

For the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 we paid distributions of $51767 $23641 and $7031 respectively For the

years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 we generated FF0 of $55830 $26672 and $3911 respectively MFFO of $60827

$29453 and $5816 respectively and cash flow from operations of $56670 $27872 and $2658 respectively

The table below represents reconciliation of our net income loss attributable to common stockholders to FF0 and MFFO for years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 dollars in thousands except per share amounts

Year ended December

2012 2011 2010

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders 2616 2279 1743

Add

Depreciation and amortization related to investment properties 53239 28980 5669

Less

Noncontrolling interests share of depreciation and amortization related to

investment properties 25 29 15
Funds from operations FF0 55830 26672 3911

Add

Acquisition related costs 5868 2963 1.953

Amortization of acquired above and below market leases net 2855 2015 455

Noncontrolling interests share of amortization of acquired below market leases and

straight-line rental income 24 19

Less

Straight-line rental income 3706 1856 524

Realizçd gain on sale pfmarketable securities 26 365

Modified funds from operations MFFO 60827 29453 5816

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding basic and diluted 91146154 42105681 13671936

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders per common share basic and

diluted 0.03 0.05 0.13

Funds from operations attributable to common stockholders per common share basic

and diluted 0.61 0.63 0.29

Modified funds from operations attributable to common stockholders per common
share basic and diluted 0.67 0.70 0.43

Changes in the accounting and reporting promulgations under U.S GAAP for acquisition fees and expenses from

capitalizationldepreciation model to an expensed-as-incurred model that were put into effect in 2009 and certain other changes

to U.S GAAP accounting for real estate intangible assets subsequent to the establishment of NAREITs definition of FF0 have

impacted the reporting of operating income Specifically acquisition fees and expenses for all industries are accounted for as

operating expenses
and no longer capitalized as they were prior to 2009

The acquisition of real estate assets and the corresponding expenses associated with that process is key operational feature of

our business plan in order to generate operating income and cash flow in order to make distributions to our stockholders By

excluding expensed acquisition costs MFFO may provide useful supplemental information that is comparable for each type of

real estate investment and is consistent with managements analysis of the investing and operating performance of our

properties Such information may be comparable only for non-listed REITs that have completed their acquisition activity and

have other similaroperating characteristics Acquisition related costs include payments to affiliates of our Business Manager or

third parties however we do not pay acquisition fees to our Business Manager or its affiliates Acquisition related costs under

U.S GAAP are considered operating expenses and are included in the determination of net income and income from continuing

operations both of which are performance measures under U.S GAAP These expenses are paid in cash by us and therefore

this cash will not be available to distribute to our stockholders All paid and accrued acquisition related costs will have negative

effects on returns to investors the potential for future distributions and cash flows generated by us Because our best efforts

offering is completed management believes that acquisition related costs will not be significant cost to us going forward

Under U.S GAAP certain intangibles are accounted for at cost and are assumed to diminish predictably in value over time and

amortized similar to depreciation and amortization of other real estate related assets that are excluded from FF0 However

because real estate values and market lease rates historically rise or fall with market conditions we believe by excluding
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charges relating to amortization of these intangibles MFFO may provide useful supplemental information on the operating

performance of the real estate

Under U.S GAAP our rental receipts are allocated to periods using straight-line methodology This may result in income

recognition that is different than underlying contract terms By adjusting for these items to reflect such payments from U.S

GAAP accrual basis to cash basis of disclosing the rent and lease payments we believe MFFO may provide useful

supplemental information on the realized economic impact of lease terms providing insight on the contractual cash flows of

such lease terms

We have adjusted for gains or losses included in net income loss from the sale of securities holdings where trading of such

holdings is not fundamental attribute of the business plan because they are items that may not be reflective of on-going

operations

Results of Operations

The following discussions are based on our consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

These sections describe and compare our results of operations for the years
ended December 31 2012 20 and 2010 We generate

almost all of our net operating income from property operations In order to evaluate our overall portfolio management analyzes the

net operating income of properties that we have owned and operated for both periods presented in their entirety referred to herein as

same store properties By evaluating the property net operating income of our same store properties management is able to

monitor the operations of our existing properties for comparable periods to measure the performance of our current portfolio and

determine the effects of our new acquisitions on net income Property net operating income non-U.S GAAP measure is also

meaningful as an indicator of the effectiveness of our management of properties because property net operating income excludes

certain items that are not reflective of the effectiveness of our management such as depreciation and amortization and interest

expense

Comparison of the Years ended December 31 2012 and 2011

total of 27 of our investment properties were acquired on or before January 2011 and represent our same store properties during

the
years

ended December 31 2012 and 2011 Other investment properties as reflected in the table below include one

redevelopment and properties acquired after January 2011 For the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 114 and 22 properties

were included in other investment properties respectively The following table presents the property net operating income broken

out between same store and other investment properties prior to straight-line rental income amortization of lease intangibles

interest depreciation amortization and bad debt expense
for the

years
ended December 31 2012 and 2011 along with reconciliation

to net income loss attributable to common stockholders calculated in accordance with U.S GAAP
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Year ended December 31

Property operating revenue

Same store investment properties 27 properties

Rental income

Tenant recovery income

Other property income

Other investment properties

Rental income

Tenant recovery income

Other property income

Total property income

Property operating expenses

Same store investment properties 27 properties

Property operating expenses

Real estate taxes

Other investment properties

Property operating expenses

Real estate taxes

Total property operating expenses

Property net operating income

Same store investment properties 27 properties

Other investment properties

Total property net operating income

Other income

Tenant recovery income related to priorperiods

Straight-line rents

Amortization of lease intangibles

Interest and dividend income

Realized gain on sale of marketable securities

Equity in income of unconsolidated entities

Total other Income

Other expenses

Bad debt
expense

Depreciation and amortization

General and administrative expenses

Acquisition related costs

Interest expense

Business management fee

Total other expenses

Net income loss

Less net loss income atinbutable to redeemable noncontroiing interests

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders

33417

7047

75567 25158

15405 4653

1159 245

133884 72316

7527

4999

12875 4419

8971 2609

34372 19689

29227 29599

70285 2028
99512 52627

43
1856

2014
871

365

819 396

53239 28980

4269 2770

5868 2963

34001 19835

1500 1000

99696 55944

2866 2177

250 102

2616 2279

2012 2011

1289

33073

7769

1418

7481

5180

400

3706

2855

2556

26

17 105

3050 1140
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On same store basis comparing the results of operations
of the investment properties owned during the year ended December 31

2012 with the results of the same investment properties during the year ended December 31 2011 property net operating income

decreased $372 with total property income decreasing $507 and total property operating expenses decreasing $135 for the year ended

December 31 2012 as compared to the year
ended December 31 2011 These variances are explained by each component below

Rental income increased $344 on same store basis for the year ended December 31 2012 as compared to the year
ended

December 31 2011 primarily due to the effect of new tenants taking occupancy of previously vacant spaces On an aggregate

portfolio basis rental income increased $50753 for the year
ended December 31 2012 as compared to the year

ended December 31

2011 reflecting an increase in rental income from our other investment properties during the 2012 The increase is result of the 114

investment properties acquired after January 2011

Tenant recovery income decreased $722 on same store basis for the year
ended December 31 2012 as compared to the year

ended

December 31 2011 primarily due to decrease in real estate tax expenses as discussed below which directly affected the amount of

tenant recovery income and decrease in the recovery percentage which resulted in us recognizing less recovery
income On an

aggregate portfolio basis tenant recovery
income increased $10030 for the year ended December 31 2012 as compared to the year

ended December 31 2011 reflecting an increase in tenant recovery income on other investment properties The increase is result of

the 114 investment properties acquired after January 2011

Other property income decreased $129 on same store basis for the year ended December 31 2012 as compared to the year ended

December 31 2011 On an aggregate portfolio basis other property income increased $785 for the year ended December 31 2012 as

compared to the year ended December 31 2011 The increase is result of the 114 investment properties acquired after January

2011

Property operating expenses
increased $46 on same store basis for the year

ended December 31 2012 as compared to the year

ended December 31 2011 primarily due to an increase in insurance premiums during the year
ended December 31 2012 as compared

to the prior period On an aggregate portfolio basis total property operating expenses increased $8502 for the year
ended

December 31 2012 as compared to the year
ended December 31 2011 The increase is result of the 114 investment properties

acquired after January 2011

Real estate tax expense
decreased $181 on same store basis for the year ended December 31 2012 as compared to the year

ended

December 31 2011 The decrease in real estate tax expense during 2012 can be attributed to decreases in assessed values of our

investment properties by the various taxing authorities On an aggregate portfolio basis total real estate tax expense increased $6181

for the year ended December 31 2012 as compared to the year ended December 31 2011 The increase is result of the 114

investment properties acquired after January 2011

Total other income increased $1910 for the year ended December 31 2012 as compared to the year ended December 31 2011

primarily due to an increase in interest and dividend income which is result of the increased investments in our marketable securities

portfolio and an increase in straight line rent from greater number of properties in our portfolio This increase was partially offset by

adjustments to tenant recovery income resulting from differences in estimated expense recoveries billed and actual expenses and an

increase in amortization of lease intangibles from greater number of properties in our portfolio and write-offs of certain acquired

above market lease intangibles

Bad debt expense
increased $423 for the year

ended December 31 2012 as compared to the year ended December 31 2011 The

increase in bad debt expense is primarily due to increased estimated tenant reserves for uncollectible accounts and write offs due to

tenant failures We periodically
review the collectability of outstanding receivables Allowances are taken for those balances that we

have reason to believe may be uncollectible including any amounts relating to straight-line rent receivables Amounts deemed to be

uncollectible are written off

Depreciation
and amortization increased $24259 for the year ended December 31 2012 as compared to the years ended

December 31 2011 The increase in depreciation and amortization is primarily due to the increase in the number of properties in our

portfolio
from 49 properties

owned as of December 31 2011 compared to 141 properties owned as of December 31 2012

General and administrative expenses
increased $1499 for the year ended December 31 2012 as compared to the year ended

December 31 2011 The increase is primarily due to an increase in payroll reimbursements paid to the Business Manager professional

fees state taxes and information technology costs mortgage servicing fees and investment advisor fees resulting from the growth of

the portfolio

Acquisition costs increased $2905 for the year
ended December 31 2012 as compared to the year

ended December 31 2011

primarily due to an increase in the number of potential and actual acquisitions we pursued during the year ended December 31 2012

compared to the year ended December 31 2011 and $533 adjustment related to an increase in estimated deferred investment

property obligations due to changes in the underlying liability assumptions where we are expected to pay more than originally

anticipated
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Interest expense
increased $14166 for the

year
ended December 31 2012 as compared to the

year
ended December 31 2011 The

increase in interest
expense

is primarily due to $784466 increase in mortgage payables credit facility and security margin payable

from December 31 2011 to December 31 2012

Business management fee was $1500 for the year ended December 31 2012 as compared to $1000 for the year ended December 31

2011 For the year ended December 31 2012 the Business Manager could have been paid business management fee in the amount

equal to $9195 but the Business Manager permanently waived $7695 of this fee

Comparison of the Years ended December 31 201 and 2010

Only one of our investment properties was acquired on or before January 2010 for this reason the use of the same store

comparison was not provided The following table presents the property net operating income prior to straight-line rental income

amortization of lease intangibles interest depreciation amortization and bad debt
expense

for the years ended December 31 2011 and

2010 along with reconciliation to net income loss attributable to common stockholders calculated in accordance with U.S GAAP

Year ended December 31

2011 2010

Property operating revenue

Rental income 58231 14255

Tenant recovery income 12422 3275

Other property income 1663 592

Total property income 72316 18122

Property operating expenses

Property operating expenses 11900 3054

Real estate taxes 7789 2262

Total property operating expenses 19689 5316

Property net operating income 52627 12806

Other income

Tenant recovery income related to priorperiods 43
Straight-line rents 1856 524

Amortization of lease intangibles 2014 455

Interest and dividend income 871 358

Reaized gain loss on sale of majketable securities 365

Equity in income of unconsolidated entities 105

Total other Income 1140 433

Other expense

Bad debt expense 396 267

Depreciation and amortization 28980 5669

General and administrative expenses 2770 1872

Acquisition related costs 2963 1953

Interest expense 19.835 4522

Business management fee 1000 603

Total other expenses 55944 14886

Net loss 2177 1647

Less net los attributable to noncpntrolling interests 102 96

Net loss attributable to common stockholders 2279 1743
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Rental income increased $43976 for the year ended December 31 2011 as compared to the year ended December 31 2010 as result

of the 48 investment properties acquired after January 2010

Tenant recovery income increased $9147 for the year ended December 31 2011 as compared to the year
ended December 31 2010

as result of the 48 investment properties acquired after January 2010

Other property income increased $1071 for the year ended December 31 2011 as compared to the year ended December 31 2010

The increase is result of the 48 investment properties acquired after January 2010

Total property operating expenses increased $8846 for the
year

ended December 31 2011 as compared to the year
ended

December 31 2010 The increase is result of the 48 investment properties acquired after January 2010

Total real estate tax expense increased $5527 for the
year

ended December 31 2011 as compared to the
year

ended December 31

2010 The increase is result of the 48 investment properties acquired after January 2010

Total other income increased $707 for the
year

ended December 31 2011 as compared to the year
ended December 31 2010

primarily due to the increase in straight line rent from greater number of properties in our portfolio which we acquired in the fourth

quarter of 2010 and during 2011

Bad debt expense increased $129 for the year ended December 31 2011 as compared to the year ended December 31 2010 The

increase in bad debt expense is primarily due to increased estimated tenant reserves for uncollectible accounts and write offs due to

tenant failures We periodically review the collectability of outstanding receivables Allowances are taken for those balances that we

have reason to believe may be uncollectible including any amounts relating to straight-line rent receivables Amounts deemed to be

uncollectible are written off

Depreciation and amortization increased $23311 for the year ended December 31 2011 as compared to the year ended December 31

2010 The increase in depreciation and amortization is primarily due to the increase in the number of properties in our portfolio from

27 properties owned as of December 31 2010 compared to 49 properties owned as of December 31 2011

General and administrative expenses
increased $898 for the year ended December 31 2011 as compared to the year ended

December 31 2010 As certain of these costs are variable the increase is primarily due to the growth of the portfolio

Acquisition costs increased $1010 for the year ended December 31 2011 as compared to the
year

ended December 31 2010

primarily due to an increase in the number of potential and actual acquisitions we pursued during the year ended December 31 2011

compared to the year ended December 31 2010 and relate to transaction costs for both closed and potential transactions These costs

mainly include third-party costs such as appraisals environmental studies legal fees as well as time and travel expense

reimbursements to affiliates of our Sponsor

Interest expense increased $15313 for the year ended December 31 2011 as compared to the
year

ended December 31 2010 The

increase in interest expense
is primarily due to $278225 increase in mortgage payables from December 31 2010 to December 31

2011

Business management fee was $1000 December 31 2011 for the year ended as compared to $603 for the year ended December 31

2010 For the year
ended December 31 2011 the Business Manager could have been paid business management fee in the amount

equal to $4807 but the Business Manager permanently waived $3807 of this fee

Investment in Unconsolidated Entities

In 2009 we became member of limited liability company formed as an insurance association captive the Insurance Captive

which is owned in equal proportions by us and three other REITs sponsored by the Companys Sponsor and serviced by an affiliate of

our Business Manager We entered into the Insurance Captive to stabilize insurance costs manage our exposures and recoup expenses

through the functions of the captive program

CriticalAccounting Policies

critical accounting policy is one that we believe would materially affect our operating results or financial condition and requires

management to make estimates or judgments in certain circumstances We believe that our most critical accounting policies relate to

the valuation and purchase price allocation of investment properties recognition of rental income valuation of marketable securities

and redeemable noncontrolling interests These judgments often result from the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that

are inherently uncertain U.S GAAP requires information in financial statements about accounting principles methods used and

disclosures pertaining to significant estimates The following disclosure discusses judgments known to management pertaining to

trends events or uncertainties that were taken into consideration upon the application of critical accounting policies and the likelihood

that materially different amounts would be reported upon taking into consideration different conditions and assumptions
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Revenue Recognition

We commence revenue recognition on our leases based on number of factors In most cases revenue recognition under lease

begins when the lessee takes possession of or controls the physical use of the leased asset Generally this occurs on the lease

commencement date The determination of who is the owner for accounting purposes of the tenant improvements determines the

nature of the leased asset and when revenue recognition under lease begins If we are the owner for accounting purposes of the

tenant improvements then the leased asset is the finished space and revenue recognition begins when the lessee takes possession of

the finished space typically when the improvements are substantially complete

If we conclude we are not the owner for accounting purposes of the tenant improvements the lessee is the owner then the leased

asset will be the unimproved space and any tenant improvement allowances funded under the lease are treated as lease incentives

which reduces revenue recognized over the term of the lease In these circumstances we begin revenue recognition when the lessee

takes possession of the unimproved space for the lessee to construct their own improvements We consider number of different

factors to evaluate whether it or the lessee is the owner of the tenant improvements for accounting purposes The determination of who

owns the tenant improvements for accounting purposes is subject to significant judgment

We recognize rental income on straight-line basis over the term of each lease The difference between rental income earned on

straight-line basis and the cash rent due under the provisions of the lease agreements is recorded as deferred rent receivable and is

included as component of accounts and rents receivable in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets Due to the impact of the

straight-line basis rental income generally will be greater than the cash collected in the early years
and decrease in the later years of

lease We periodically review the collectability of outstanding receivables Allowances are taken for those balances that we deem to be

uncollectible including any amounts relating to straight-line rent receivables

Reimbursements from tenants for recoverable real estate tax and operating expenses are accrued as revenue in the period the

applicable expenses are incurred We make certain assumptions and judgments in estimating the reimbursements at the end of each

reporting period We do not expect the actual results to materially differ from the estimated reimbursement

We recognize lease termination income if there is signed termination letter agreement all of the conditions of the agreement have

been met the tenant is no longer occupying the property and amounts due are considered collectible Upon early lease termination we

provide for losses related to unrecovered intangibles and other assets As lessor we defer the recognition of contingent rental

income such as percentage rent until the specified target that triggered the contingent rental income is achieved

Acquisition of Investment ProDerties

We are required to determine the total purchase price of each acquired investment property which includes estimating any contingent

consideration to be paid or received in future periods We are required to allocate the purchase price of each acquired investment

property between land building and improvements acquired above market and below market leases in-place lease value and any

assumed financing that is determined to be above or below market terms In addition we are required to allocate portion of the

purchase price to the value of customer relationships if any The allocation of the purchase price is an area that requires judgment and

significant estimates We use the information contained in the independent appraisal obtained at acquisition or other market sources as

the basis for the allocation to land and building and improvements

The aggregate value of intangibles is measured based on the difference between the stated price and the property value calculation as

if vacant We determine whether any financing assumed is above or below market based upon comparison to similar financing terms

for similar investment properties We also allocate portion of the purchase price to the estimated acquired in-place lease costs based

on estimated lease execution costs for similar leases as well as lost rent payments during assumed lease up period when calculating as

if vacant fair values We also evaluate each acquired lease based upon current market rates at the acquisition date and we consider

various factors including geographical location size and location of leased
space

within the investment property tenant profile and the

credit risk of the tenant in determining whether the acquired lease is above or below market

After an acquired lease is determined to be above or below market we allocate portion of the purchase price to such above or below

acquired leases based upon the present value of the difference between the contractual lease rate and the estimated market rate The

determination of the discount rate used in the present value calculation is based upon the risk free rate This discount rate is

significant factor in determining the market valuation which requires our judgment of subjective factors such as market knowledge

economics demographics location visibility age
and physical condition of the property The portion of the purchase price allocated

to acquired above market lease value and acquired below market lease value are amortized on straight-line basis over the term of the

related lease as an adjustment to rental income For below market lease values the amortization period includes any renewal periods

with fixed rate renewals
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The acquisition of certain properties included earnout components to the purchase price meaning we did not pay portion of the

purchase price of the property at closing although we own the entire property We are not obligated to pay the contingent portion of

the purchase prices unless space which was vacant at the time of acquisition is later leased by the seller within the time limits and

parameters set forth in the acquisition agreements The earnout payments are based on predetermined formula applied to rental

income received The earnout agreements have limited obligation period ranging from one to three years
from the date of

acquisition If at the end of the time period certain space has not been leased occupied and rent producing we will have no further

obligation to pay additional purchase price consideration and will retain ownership of that entire property Based on our best estimate

we have recorded liability for the potential future eamout payments using estimated fair value measurements at the date of

acquisition which include the lease-up periods market rents probability of occupancy and discount rate We have recorded this

eamout amount as additional purchase price of the related properties and as liability included in deferred investment property

acquisition obligations on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets The liability increases as the anticipated payment date draws

near based on present value such increases in the liability are recorded as amortization expense on the accompanying consolidated

statements of operations and other comprehensive income We record changes in the underlying liability assumptions to acquisition

related costs on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and other comprehensive income

Impairment of Investment Property

We assess the carrying values of our respective long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying amounts of these assets may not be fully recoverable Recoverability of the assets is measured by comparison of the carrying

amount of the asset to the estimated future undiscounted cash flows In order to review our assets for recoverability we consider

current market conditions as well as our intent with respect to holding or disposing of the asset Fair value is determined through

various valuation techniques including discounted cash flow models quoted market values and third party appraisals where

considered necessary If our analysis indicates that the carrying value of the long-lived asset is not recoverable on an undiscounted

cash flow basis we recognize an impairment charge for the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the current estimated fair

value of the real estate property

We estimate the future undiscounted cash flows based on our intent as follows for real estate properties that we intend to hold

long-term including land held for development properties currently under development and operating buildings recoverability is

assessed based on the estimated future net rental income from operating the property and termination value and ii for real estate

properties that we intend to sell including land parcels properties currently under development and operating buildings recoverability

is assessed based on estimated proceeds from disposition that are estimated based on future net rental income of the property and

expected market capitalization rates

The use of projected future cash flows is based on assumptions that are consistent with our estimates of future expectations and the

strategic plan we use to manage our underlying business However assumptions and estimates about future cash flows including

comparable sales values discount rates capitalization rates revenue and expense growth rates and lease-up assumptions which impact

the discounted cash flow approach to determine value are complex and subjective Changes in economic and operating conditions and

our ultimate investment intent that occur subsequent to the impairment analyses could impact these assumptions and result in future

impairment charges of the real estate properties

In addition we evaluate our equity method investments for impairment indicators The valuation analysis considers the investment

positions in relation to the underlying business and activities of our investments

Impairment of Marketable Securities

We assess our investments in marketable securities for impairments decline in the market value of any available-for-sale or held-to-

maturity security below cost that is deemed to be other-than-temporary will result in an impairment to reduce the carrying amount to

fair value The impairment will be charged to earnings and new cost basis for the security will be established To determine whether

an impairment is other-than-temporary we consider whether we have the ability and intent to hold the investment until market price

recovery and consider whether evidence indicating the cost of the investment is recoverable outweighs evidence to the contrary

Evidence considered in this assessment includes the reasons for the impairment the severity and duration of the impairment changes

in value subsequent to year-end forecasted performance of the investee and the general market condition in the geographic area or

industry the investee operates in We consider the following factors in evaluating our securities for impairments that are other than

temporary

declines in REIT stocks and the stock market relative to our marketable security positions

the estimated net asset value NAy of the companies we invest in relative to their current market prices

future growth prospects and outlook for companies using analyst reports and company guidance including dividend

coverage NAV estimates and growth in funds from operations or FF0 and

duration of the decline in the value of the securities
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Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests

Certain of our consolidated joint ventures have issued units to noncontrolling interest holders that are redeemable at the noncontrolling

interest holders option for cash or into our common shares at our option If the noncontrolling interest holder seeks redemption of its

units for our common shares the joint ventures may redeem the units through issuance of our common shares or through cash

settlement at the redemption price The redemption is at the option of the holder after passage of time or upon the occurrence of an

event that is not solely within the control of any of the joint ventures Because redemption of the noncontrolling interests is outside of

the applicable joint ventures control the interests are presented on the consolidated balance sheets outside of permanent equity as

redeemable noncontrolling interests None of the noncontrolling interests are currently redeemable but it is probable that the

noncontrolling interests will become redeemable Based on such probability we measure and record the noncontrolling interests at

their maximum redemption amount at each balance sheet date Any adjustments to the carrying amount of the redeemable

noncontrolling interests for changes in the maximum redemption amount are recorded to additional paid in capital in the period of the

change

At issuance the fair value of the redeemable noncontrolling interests were estimated by applying the income approach which

included significant inputs that are not observable including discount rates and redemption values

Contractual Obligations

We have provided partial guarantee on nine mortgages payable of our subsidiaries As of December 31 2012 these guarantees

totaled to an aggregate recourse amount of $70435

From time to time we acquire properties subject to the obligation to pay the seller additional monies depending on the future leasing

and occupancy of the property These eamout payments are based on predetermined formula Each earnout agreement has time

limit generally one to three years and other parameters regarding the obligation to pay any additional monies If at the end of the time

period certain space has not been leased and occupied we will not have any further obligation As of December 31 2012 and 2011

we had liabilities of $70580 and $25290 respectively recorded on the consolidated balance sheet as deferred investment property

acquisition obligations The maximum potential payment is $77592 at December 31 2012

As of December 31 2012 we had $47215 in redeemable noncontrolling interests which will become redeemable at future dates

generally no earlier than in 2015 but generally no later than 2022 based on certain redemption criteria The redeemable noncontrolling

interests are not mandatory redeemable We may issue common stock or pay cash or both if they are redeemed

The table below presents on consolidated basis our obligations and commitments to make future payments under debt obligations

including interest as of December 31 2012 Debt obligations under non-hedged debt which is subject to variable rates are based on

interest rates as of December 31 2012

Payments due by period

2018 and

Total 2013 2014/2015 2016/2017 Thereafter

rnncipai payments on long-term debt 1156582 50824 106654 169597 829507

Interest payments on long-term debt 395889 49785 96520 83383 166201

Securities margin payable 17872 17872

Credit facility 73500 73500

Total 1643843 118481 276674 252980 995708

The long-term debt obligations exclude net mortgage premiums of $1468 associated with debt assumed at acquisition net of

accumulated amortization as of December 31 2012

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We currently have no off-balance sheet arrangements that are reasonably likely to have material current or future effect on our

financial condition changes in financial condition revenues or expenses results of operations liquidity capital expenditures or

capital resources
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Subsequent Events

Our board of directors declared distributions payable to stockholders of record each day beginning on the close of business on January

2013 through the close of business on March 31 2013 Distributions were declared in daily amount equal to $0.00 164384 per

share which if paid each day for 365-year period would equate to $0.60 per
share or 6.0% annualized rate based on purchase

price of $10.00 per share Distributions were and will continue to be paid monthly in arrears as follows

In January 2013 total distributions declared for the month of December 2012 were paid in the amount equal to $5831

of which $2295 was paid in cash and $3535 was reinvested through the Companys DRP resulting in the issuance of an

additional 372150 shares of common stock

In February 2013 total distributions declared for the month of January 2013 were paid in the amount equal to $5865 of

which $2315 was paid in cash and $3550 was reinvested through the Companys DRP resulting in the issuance of an

additional 373642 shares of common stock

In March 2013 total distributions declared for the month of February 2013 were paid in the amount equal to $5311 of

which $2103 was paid in cash and $3209 was reinvested through the Companys DRP resulting in the issuance of an

additional 337757 shares of common stock

On February 14 2012 we entered into $14900 interest rate swap associated with the loan secured by first mortgage on the Hasbro

Office Building located in Providence Rhode Island This swap bears interest at fixed rate equal to thirty-day LIBOR plus 2.15%

per annum and was effective on February 14 2012 and matures on December 31 2022 The swap effectively hedges the interest

payment under the hedged portion of the loan to fixed rate equal to 4.25% per annum

On February 20 2012 we entered into $14750 loan secured by first mortgage on The Corner located in Tucson Arizona This

loan bears interest at fixed rate equal to 4.10% per annum and matures on March 2023
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Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Dollar amounts are stated in thousands

Interest Rate Risk

We may be exposed to interest rate changes primarily as result of long-term debt used to purchase properties or other real estate

assets maintain liquidity and fund capital expenditures or operations Including derivative financial instruments we currently have

limited exposure to financial market risks through fixing our interest rates on all long-term debt as of December 31 2012 except some

mortgages payable the securities margin payable and the credit facility As of December 31 2012 we had outstanding debt which is

subject to fixed interest rates and variable rates of $983350 and $264604 respectively bearing interest at weighted average interest

rates equal to 4.68%
per annum and 2.55% per annum respectively including the effect of interest rate hedging

If market rates of interest on all non-hedged debt which is subject to variable rates as of December 31 2012 permanently
increased by

1% 100 basis points the increase in interest expense on all debt would decrease future earnings and cash flows by approximately

$2825 annually If market rates of interest on all non-hedged debt which is subject to variable rates as of December 31 2012

permanently decreased by 1% 100 basis points the decrease in interest expense on all debt would increase future earnings and cash

flows by the same amount

We use derivative financial instruments to hedge exposures to changes in interest rates on loans secured by our assets and investments

in commercial mortgage-backed securities Derivative instruments may include interest rate swap contracts interest rate cap or floor

contracts futures or forward contracts options or repurchase agreements Our actual hedging decisions will be determined in light of

the facts and circumstances existing at the time of the hedge and may differ from our currently anticipated hedging strategy If we use

derivative financial instruments to hedge against interest rate fluctuations we will be exposed to both credit risk and market risk

Credit risk is the failure of the counterparty to perform under the terms of the derivative contract If the fair value of derivative

contract is positive the counterparty will owe us which creates credit risk for us because the counterparty may not perform Market

risk is the adverse effect on the value of financial instrument that results from change in interest rates We will seek to manage the

market risk associated with interest-rate contracts by establishing and monitoring parameters that limit the types and degree of market

risk that may be undertaken There is no assurance we will be successful

Our board has established policies and procedures regarding our use of derivative financial instruments for purposes of fixing or

capping floating interest rate debt if it qualifies as an effective hedge pursuant to U.S GAAP for principal amounts up to $50000 per

transaction

Derivatives

The following table summarizes our interest rate swap contracts outstanding as of December 31 2012

Pay Fixed Receive Floating Notional Fair Value as of

Date Entered Effective Date Maturity Date Rate Rate Index Amount December 31 2012

March 112011 AprilS2011 November52015 5.01% monthLlBOR 9350 489

June 22 2011 June 242011 June 222016 4.47% month LIBOR 13359 678

October 28 2011 November 2011 October 21 2016 3.75% month LIBOR 10837 387

May 92012 May 2012 May 92017 3.38% month LIBOR 10150 211

June 1320121 June 102011 December 10 2018 5.17% month LIBOR 49391 5428

July 242012 JuLy 262012 July 202017 3.09% month LIBOR 4677 44

October 12012 April 12014 March 29 2019 3.85% month LIBOR 45000 315

October 22012 October 2012 October 12017 3.73% month LIBOR 24750 299

October 2012 October 2012 October 2019 3.15% month LIBOR 10808 109

December 20 2012 December 20 2012 December 20 2017 3.36% month LIBOR 9900 118

Total 188222 8078

Assumed at the time of acquisition of Waigreens NE Portfolio with then fair value of $5219
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Securities Price Risk

Securities price risk is risk that we will incur economic losses due to adverse changes in eqtæty and debt security prices Our
exposure

to changes in equity and debt security prices is result of our investment in these types of securities Market prices are subject to

fluctuation and therefore the amount realized in the subsequent sale of an investment may significantly differ from the reported
market value Fluctuation in the market prices of security may result from any number of factors including perceived changes in the

underlying fundamental characteristics of the issuer the relative price of alternative investments interest rates default rates and

general market conditions Additionally amounts realized in the sale of particular security may be affected by the relative quantity of

the security being sold We do not currently engage in derivative or other hedging transactions to manage our security price risk

While it is difficult to project what factors may affect the prices of equity and debt sectors and how much the effect might be the table

below illustrates the impact of ten percent increase and ten percent decrease in the price of the equity and debt securities held by us

would have on the fair value of the securities as of December 31 2012

Fair Value

Assuming

Hypothetical

10% Decrease

Fair Value

Assuming

Hypothetical 10%
IncreaseCost Fair Value

E4uitycurities 28943 31I
Debt securities 9001 9710 10681 8739

Total marketable securities 37943 41.941 O35 L384
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc and subsidiaries the

Company as of December 31 2012 and 2011 and the related consolidated statements of operations and other comprehensive

income equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31 2012 In connection with our audits

of the consolidated financial statements we have also audited the financial statement schedule III These consolidated financial

statements and financial statement schedule III are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express

an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule III based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those

standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of

material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial position of

Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc and subsidiaries as of December 31 2012 and 2011 and the results of their operations and

their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31 2012 in conformity with U.S generally accepted

accounting principles Also in our opinion the related financial statement schedule III when considered in relation to the basic

consolidated financial statements taken as whole presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein

Is KPMG LLP

Chicago Illinois

March 13 2013
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INLAND DIVERSIFIED REAL ESTATE TRUST INC

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

December

Assets 2012 2011

Investment properties note

Land 391109 170459

Building and improvements 1648073 632187

Construction in progress
2637 69

Total 2041819 802715

Less accumulated depreciation 54843 20044

Net investment properties 1986976 782671

Cash and cash equivalents 36299 60254

Restricted cash and escrows note 6173 4550

Investment in marketable securities note 40941 17903

Investment in unconsolidated entities notes and 249 232

Accounts and rents receivable net of allowance of $1159 and $643 respectively 13365 5639

Acquired lease intangibles net note 284512 131456

Deferred costs net 10095 5390

Other assets 14913 2291

Total assets 2393523 1010386

Liabilities and Faulty

Mortgages credit facility
and securities margin payable note 1249422 464956

Accrued offering expenses
211

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
7068 2717

Distributions payable 5831 2911

Accrued real estate taxes payable 4903 2684

Deferred investment property acquisition obligations note 14 70580 25290

Other liabilities 21527 6.553

Acquired below market lease intangibles net note 50462 17505

Due to related parties note 2532 1909

Total liabilities 1412325 524736

Commitments and contingencies

Redeemable noncontrolling interests note 10 47215

Equity

Preferred stock $.00 par value 40000000 shares authorized none outstanding

Common stock $.001 par value 2460000000 shares authorized 114727439 and 58431177

shares issued and outstanding as of December 31 2012 and December 2011 respectively
115 58

Additional paid in capital net of offering costs of $118182 and $64127 as of

December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 respectively
1024289 521025

Accumulated distributions and net loss 90138 38067

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 283 1763

Total Company stockholders equity 933983 481253

Noncontrolling interests 4397

Total equity
933983 485650

Total liabilities and equity 2393523 1010386

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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INLAND DIVERSIFIED REAL ESTATE TRUST INC

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Other Comprehensive Income

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

Years ended December 31

eom
Rental income

Tenant recovery income

Other property income

Tcome
Expenses

nal and adminlstrativ expenses

Acquisition related costs

Poperty operating expenses

Real estate taxes

lepreeiation and amortization

Business management fee-related party note

expenses

Operating income

1nJMdŁn4therincomi

Realized gain loss on sale of marketable securities

Interest expense

Equity in income of unconsolidated entities

Net incoineloss

Less net income attributable to noncontrolling interests

Less net income attrlbutate to redeemable noncontrolling interests

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders

tianome to corn sçqcklders per common share basic and

dllUt4note 13

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding basic and diluted

otnptehensive incoine

Net income loss

Other comprehensive income

Unrealized gain loss on marketable securities

Unrealized loss on derivatives

Gain loss reclassified into earnings from other comprehensive income on the sale of

marketable securities

Conprehensive income lcss

Less comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests

Less comprehensive incoEie attributable to redeemable nonconttofling interests

Comprehensive income loss attributable to common stockholders

2012 2011 2010

109835 58073 14324

2052

2448 1663 592

4269

5868 2963 1953

t32t

13970 7789 2262

1500 1000 603

5798
____________

34268 16317 2518

871 35%

26 365

34
17 105

Z886
41 102 96

209
2616 2279 1743$S

91146154 42105681 13671936

2866 2177 1647

3495 269 162

l9$9

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

26 365

41 102 96

209
________________ ________________

4096 4206 1579
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INLAND DIVERSIFIED REAL ESTATE TRUST INC

Consolidated Statements of Equity

For the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Dollars in thousands

Accumulated

Additional Accumulated Other

Number of Common Paid-In Distributions Comprehensive Noncontrolling

Shares Stock Capital and Net Loss Income Loss Interests Total

Balance atianuary 12010 2958096 23354 579 22778

Dstrfbutions declar$ 8203 8.203

Distributions paid to noncontrolling interests 94 94

PToteeds from offering 22719372 23 225759 225782

Offering costs 24415 24415

Proceeds from distribution reinvestment p1n 473790 4501 4501

Shares repurchased 30387 289 289

Dscounts on shares jsued to affiliates apSeS 83 83

Contributions from sponsor note 2889 2889

CtSIbUdOnR from optro1ling intems 4400 4400

Unrealized gain on marketable securities 162 162

Net loss income 1.743 96 1647

Balaiae at DecentbÆ 2010 26120871 26 231882 10525 164 4402 225949

Distributions declared 25263 25263

fl4Jut4esjapaW to.fl ontrollingic4g 107 107

Proceeds from offering 30949567 31 308191 308.222

OflŁrlng cots 33493 33493

Proceeds from distribution reinvestment plan 1542941 14656 14.657

$essspwvhassd 182202 1766 1766

Discounts on shares issued to affiliates note 55 55

Vbutleosfronsqmrnote8 1500 1500

Unrealized loss on marketable securities 269 269

UieaUzed loss on desvatives 1293 1293

Gain on sale of marketable securities reclassified

into earnings from other comprehensive loss 365 365

Net loss income 2279 102 2117

Balance at December 312011 58431177 58 521025 38067 1763 4397 485650

DlIbutions declared 5487 54687

Distributions paid to noncontrolling interests 2720 2720

WCe4om offri 53885826 54 536040 536094

Offering costs 54055 54055

ewdsom distribudotlnvestinetp1n 3299771 31345 31349

Shaisrepurchased 889.335 8448 8449

Dliàounts on sharsàued to affiliates note 294 294

Purchase of noncontrolling interests 1.912 1718 3630

Vnrealized gain on msthmsble secwitins- 3495 3495

Unrealized loss on derivatives 1989 1989

GaMiauified inseninga from other

sbiye incntp th sale of te 26 26

Net income excluding income attributable to

redeemable noncontrolling interests of $209 2616 41 2657

Dalence at December 31 2012 114727439 115 1024289 90138 283 9983

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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INLAND DIVERSIFIED REAL ESTATE TRUST INC

Cash flowa from

Net income loss

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Dollars in thousands

Depreciation and amortization

rnosa$noeb tfltcosts
Amortization of acquired above market leases

market1eas

Straight-line rental income

Discount on shares issued to affiliates

Payment ofleasinges

Realized gain loss on sale of marketable securities

hÆges asSets and liabilities

Restricted escrows

Aciounts ntsan
Other assets

cunt payable and edpàises
Accrued real estate taxes payable

OtheliabWties

Due to related parties

4ºtesSb twpded ty nMli

Purchase of investment properties

esdaÆ
Purchase of marketable securities

kofmbIcSectEkle
Restricted escrows

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activitiesd1ii
Proceeds from the distribution reinvestment plan

repwchsed

Payment of offering costs

mortgages payable

Principal payments on mortgage payable

from credit facility

Principal payments on credit facility

efrom$esmargdabt
Principal payments on securities margin debt

Payrnen ofloan fees and diposits

Distributions paid

Years ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

2866 2177 1647

53239 28980 5669

4496 3000 705

14I4W
3706 1856 524

294 55 83

26 365
kI

65 1885 293

1110 640 438

855 811 271

499 644 981

iLPL
1191719 447559 330530

II11$I7
21371 19185 5714

2951 7340 8853

_______________ _______
12154021 4168 346755

14657 4501

33741 24305

48254 21172

3000

31349

54269
8434O
22370

55000
ZIse464

4884

1767

15495 137
O$

23.641 7031

Payment of preferred return to redeemable noncontrolling interests 109
ononconóHiflfltcts IØà

Contribution from sponsor
889

flTàd1 byfiatiiii ___________________
Net etrease increase in cash iiàn
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 60254 40 901 5736

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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INLAND DIVERSIFIED REAL ESTATE TRUST INC

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Dollars in thousands

continued

Years ended December 31
2012 2011 2010

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

In conjunction with the purchase of investment properties the Company acquired
assets and assumed liabilities as follows

Land 220650 83797 84162

Building and improvements 1014650 400305 222028

Construction in progress 2218 372

Acquired in-place lease intangibles 150915 59168 58585

Acquired above market lease intangibles 22553 11616 16157

Acquired below market lease intangibles 34598 9816 8414
Assumption of mortgage debt at acquisitioit 92195 85528 21951
Non-cash mortgage premium 445 1358 280
Tenant improvement payable 1597 123 26
Deferred investment property acquisition obligations 57990 24753 12849
Payments related to deferred inveitment

property acquisition obligations 15962 14679

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 118 327
Othr liabilities 12367 2506 2941
Restricted escrows 266 2800 758

Deferred costs 913 75

Accounts and rents receivable 364 246

Otherassets 11381 256 134

Accrued real estate taxes payable 1364 1090 1054
Issuance of redeemable noncontrolling Interest 47115 4400
Purchase of investment properties 1191719 447559 330530

Cash paid for interest 31486 17575 3854
Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities

Distributionspayable 5831 2911 1289

Contributions from sponsor forgiveness of debt 1500

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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INLAND DIVERSIFIED REAL ESTATE TRUST INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

Organization

Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc which may be referred to as the Company we us or our was formed on June 30

2008 inception to acquire and develop diversified portfolio of commercial real estate investments located in the United States and

Canada The Company has entered into Business Management Agreement the Agreement with Inland Diversified Business

Manager Advisor Inc the Business Manager to be the Business Manager to the Company The Business Manager is related

party to our sponsor Inland Real Estate Investment Corporation the Sponsor In addition Inland Diversified Real Estate Services

LLC Inland Diversified Asset Services LLC Inland Diversified Leasing Services LLC and Inland Diversified Development Services

LLC which are indirectly controlled by the four principals of The Inland Group Inc collectively
the Real Estate Managers serve

as the Companys real estate managers The Company was authorized to sell up to 500000000 shares of common stock Shares at

$10.00 each in its best efforts offering which commenced on August 24 2009 and up to 50000000 shares at $9.50 each issuable

pursuant
to the Companys distribution reinvestment plan DRP The best efforts portion of the offering was completed on

August 23 2012

The Company provides the following programs to facilitate investment in the Companys shares and limited liquidity for stockholders

The Company allows stockholders to purchase additional shares from the Company by automatically reinvesting distributions through

the DRP subject to certain share ownership restrictions Such purchases under the DRP are not subject to any selling commissions

and are made at price of $9.50 per share

The Company is authorized to repurchase shares under the share repurchase program as amended SRP if requested subject to

among other conditions funds being available In any given
calendar month proceeds used for the SRP for ordinary repurchases

cannot exceed the proceeds
from the DRP for that month In addition the Company will limit the number of ordinary shares

repurchased during any calendar year to 5% of the number of shares of common stock outstanding on December 3l of the previous

year However in the case of repurchases made upon the death of stockholder known as exceptional repurchases the Company is

authorized to use any funds to complete the repurchase and neither the limit regarding funds available from the DRP nor the 5% limit

will apply The SRP will be terminated if the Companys shares become listed for trading on national securities exchange In

addition the Companys board of directors in its sole direction may amend suspend or terminate the SRP

At December 31 2012 the Company owned 133 retail properties four office properties and two industrial properties collectively

totaling 12.4 million square
feet and two multi-family properties totaling 444 units As of December 31 2012 the portfolio had

weighted average physical occupancy and economic occupancy of 95.7% and 97.7% respectively Economic occupancy excludes

square footage associated with an earnout component At the time that we acquired certain properties the purchase agreement

contained an earnout component to the purchase price meaning the Company did not pay portion of the purchase price at closing

related to certain vacant spaces although it owns the entire property The Company is not obligated to settle this contingent purchase

price unless the seller obtains leases for the vacant space
within the time limits and parameters

set forth in the applicable acquisition

agreement note 14

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

General

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S GAAP and require management to

make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and

liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting

periods Actual results could differ from those estimates

Certain amounts in the prior period consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform with the current year

presentation

Information with respect to square footage units and occupancy is unaudited

Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company as well as all wholly owned subsidiaries

and entities in which the Company has controlling financial interest Interests of third parties in these consolidated entities are

reflected as noncontrolling interests in the accompanying consolidated financial statements Wholly owned subsidiaries generally

consist of limited liability companies LLCs All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation
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INLAND DiVERSIFIED REAL ESTATE TRUST INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

Each property is owned by separate legal entity which maintains its own books and financial records and each entitys assets are not

available to satisfy the liabilities of other affiliated entities except as otherwise disclosed in notes and 14

The Company consolidates the operations of joint venture if it determines that its either the primary beneficiary of variable interest

entity VIE or has substantial influence and control of the entity The primary beneficiary is the party that has the ability to direct

the activities that most significantly impact the entitys economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses and right to receive

the returns from the VIE that would be significant to the VIE There are significant judgments and estimates involved in determining

the primary beneficiary of variable interest entity or the determination of who has control and influence of the entity When the

Company consolidates an entity the assets liabilities and results of operations will be included in the consolidated financial

statements

In instances where the Company is not the primary beneficiary of variable interest entity or it does not control the joint venture the

Company uses the equity method of accounting Under the equity method the operations of joint venture are not consolidated with

the Companys operations but instead its share of operations would be reflected as equity in income of unconsolidated entities on the

consolidated statements of operations and other comprehensive income Additionally the Companys investment in the entities is

reflected as investment in unconsolidated entities on the consolidated balance sheets

Offering and Organizational Costs

Costs associated with our best efforts offering were deferred and charged against the gross proceeds of the best efforts offering

upon the sale of shares Formation and organizational costs were expensed as incurred

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all demand deposits and money market accounts and all short-term investments with maturity of three

months or less at the date of purchase to be cash equivalents The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents at financial

institutions The combined account balances at one or more institutions periodically exceed the Federal Depository Insurance

Corporation FDIC insurance coverage and as result there is concentration of credit risk related to amounts on deposit in

excess of FDIC insurance coverage The Company believes that the risk is not significant as the Company does not anticipate the

financial institutions non-performance

Restricted Cash and Escrows

Restricted cash and the offsetting liability which is recorded in accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of funds received from

investors in the amounts of $0 and $1657 as of December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 respectively relating to shares of the

Company to be purchased by such investors which settlement has not occurred as of the balance sheet date Restricted escrows of

$6173 and $2893 as of December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 respectively primarily consist of cash held in escrow based on

lender requirements for collateral or funds to be used for the payment of insurance real estate taxes tenant improvements leasing

commissions and acquisition related earnouts note 14

Revenue Recognition

The Company commences revenue recognition on its leases based on number of factors In most cases revenue recognition under

lease begins when the lessee takes possession of or controls the physical use of the leased asset Generally this occurs on the lease

commencement date The determination of who is the owner for accounting purposes of the tenant improvements determines the

nature of the leased asset and when revenue recognition under lease begins If the Company is the owner for accounting purposes of

the tenant improvements then the leased asset is the finished space and revenue recognition begins when the lessee takes possession

of the finished space typically when the improvements are substantially complete If the Company concludes it is not the owner for

accounting purposes of the tenant improvements the lessee is the owner then the leased asset is the unimproved space and any

tenant improvement allowances funded by the Company under the lease are treated as lease incentives which reduces revenue

recognized over the term of the lease In these circumstances the Company begins revenue recognition when the lessee takes

possession of the unimproved space
for the lessee to construct their own improvements The Company considers number of different

factors to evaluate whether it or the lessee is the owner of the tenant improvements for accounting purposes The determination of who

owns the tenant improvements for accounting purposes is subject to significant judgment

Rental income is recognized on straight-line basis over the term of each lease The difference between rental income earned on

straight-line basis and the cash rent due under the provisions of the lease agreements is recorded as deferred rent receivable and is

included as component of accounts and rents receivable in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets Due to the impact of the

straight-line basis rental income generally will be greater than the cash collected in the early years and decrease in the later years
of
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INLAND DIVERSIFIED REAL ESTATE TRUST INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

lease The Company periodically reviews the collectability of outstanding receivables Allowances are taken for those balances that the

Company deems to be uncollectible including any amounts relating to straight-line rent receivables

Reimbursements from tenants for recoverable real estate tax and operating expenses are accrued as revenue in the period the

applicable expenses are incurred The Company makes certain assumptions and judgments in estimating the reimbursements at the end

of each reporting period The Company does not expect the actual results to materially differ from the estimated reimbursement

The Company records lease tennination income if there is signed termination agreement all of the conditions of the agreement have

been met the tenant is no longer occupying the property and amounts due are considered collectible Upon early lease termination the

Company provides for gains or losses related to unrecovered intangibles and other assets

As lessor the Company defers the recognition of contingent rental income such as percentage rent until the specified target that

triggered the contingent rental income is achieved

Capitalization and Depreciation

Real estate acquisitions are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation Improvement and betterment costs are capitalized and

ordinary repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred

Transactional costs in connection with the acquisition of real estate properties and businesses are expensed as incurred

Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line method Building and improvements are depreciated based upon estimated

useful lives of 30 years and 5-15 years for furniture fixtures and equipment and site improvements

Tenant improvements are amortized on straight-line basis over the shorter of the life of the asset or the term of the related lease as

component of depreciation and amortization expense Leasing fees are amortized on straight-line basis over the term of the related

lease as component of depreciation and amortization expense Loan fees are amortized on straight-line basis which approximates

the effective interest method over the term of the related loans as component of interest expense

Cost capitalization and the estimate of useful lives require judgment and include significant estimates that can and do change

Depreciation expense was $34799 $16715 and $3312 for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Fair Value Measurements

The Company has estimated fair value using available market information and valuation methodologies the Company believes to be

appropriate for these purposes Considerable judgment and high degree of subjectivity are involved in developing these estimates

and accordingly they are not necessarily indicative of amounts that would be realized upon disposition

The Company defines fair value based on the price that it believes would be received upon sale of an asset or the exit price that would

be paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date The Company establishes

fair value hierarchy that prioritizes observable and unobservable inputs used to measure fair value The fair value hierarchy consists

of three broad levels which are described below

Level 1Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity has the ability to access

Level 2Observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level such as quoted prices for similar assets and

liabilities in active markets quoted prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active or other

inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data

Level 3Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the

assets and liabilities This includes certain pricing models discounted cash flow methodologies and similar techniques that

use significant unobservable inputs

Acquisition of Investment Properties

Upon acquisition the Company determines the total purchase price of each property note which includes the estimated contingent

consideration to be paid or received in future periods note 14 The Company allocates the total purchase price of properties and

businesses based on the fair value of the tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on Level inputs such

as comparable sales values discount rates capitalization rates revenue and expense growth rates and lease-up assumptions from

third party appraisal or other market sources

Certain of the Companys properties included earnout components to the purchase price meaning the Company did not pay portion

of the purchase price of the property at closing although the Company owns the entire property The Company is not obligated to
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settle the contingent portion of the purchase prices unless space which was vacant at the time of acquisition is later leased by the seller

within the time limits and parameters set forth in the related acquisition agreements The earnout payments are based on

predetermined formula applied to rental income received The earnout agreements have limited obligation period ranging from one

to three years from the date of acquisition If at the end of the time period certain space has not been leased occupied and rent

producing the Company will have no further obligation to pay additional purchase price consideration and will retain ownership of

that entire property Based on its best estimate the Company has recorded liability for the potential future earnout payments using

estimated fair value at the date of acquisition using Level inputs including lease-up periods ranging from one to three years market

rents ranging from $9.60 to $45.00 probability of occupancy ranging from 75% to 100% based on leasing activity and discount rates

generally 10% The Company has recorded these eamout amounts as additional purchase price of the related properties and as

liability included in deferred investment property acquisition obligations on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets The

liability increases as the anticipated payment date draws near based on present value such increases in the liability are recorded as

amortization
expense on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and other comprehensive income The Company

records changes in the underlying liability assumptions to acquisition related costs on the accompanying consolidated statements of

operations and other comprehensive income

The portion of the purchase price allocated to acquired above market lease value and acquired below market lease value are amortized

on straight-line basis over the term of the related lease as an adjustment to rental income For below-market lease values the

amortization period includes any renewal periods with fixed rate renewals Amortization pertaining to the above market lease value of

$4496 $3000 and $705 was recorded as reduction to rental income for the
years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively Amortization pertaining to the below market lease value of $1641 $985 and $249 was recorded as an increase to rental

income for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

The portion of the purchase price allocated to acquired in-place lease value is amortized on straight-line basis over the acquired

leases weighted-average remaining term The Company incurred amortization expense pertaining to acquired in-place lease

intangibles of$15916 $10107 and $2302 for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively The portion of the

purchase price allocated to customer relationship value is amortized on straight-line basis over the weighted-average remaining lease

term As of December 31 2012 no amount has been allocated to customer relationship value

The following table summarizes the Companys identified intangible assets and liabilities as of December 31 2012 and 2011

December 31

2012 2011

Intangible assets

Acquired in-place lease value 269615 119287

Acquired above market lease value 49581 27563

Accumulated amortization 34684 15.394

Acquired lease intangibles net 284512 131456

Intangible liabilities

Acquired below market lease value 53241 18657

Accumulated amortization 2779 1152

Acquired below market tease intangibles net 50462 17505

As of December 31 2012 the weighted average amortization periods for acquired in-place lease above market lease and below

market lease intangibles are 13 11 and 23 years respectively
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Estimated amortization of the respective intangible lease assets and liabilities as of December 31 2012 for each of the five succeeding

years is as follows

In-place leases
_______________________ __________________________

2013 25666

2014 25379

2015 25O65

2016 24543

2017 23$95

Above market leases Below market leases

5887 23
5099 2865

4787 2766

4.449 2.632

2589

36.707118084 17797

242332 42lO 50462

Impairment of Investment Properties

Impairment of Marketable Securities

Thereafter

Total

The Company assesses the carrying values of its respective long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate

that the carrying amounts of these assets may not be fully recoverable Recoverability of the assets is measured by comparison of the

carrying amount of the asset to the estimated future undiscounted cash flows In order to review its assets for recoverability the

Company considers current market conditions as well as its intent with respect to holding or disposing of the asset Fair value is

determined through various valuation techniques including discounted cash flow models quoted market values and third party

appraisals where considered necessary Level inputs If the Companys analysis indicates that the carrying value of the long-lived

asset is not recoverable on an undiscounted cash flow basis the Company recognizes an impairment charge for the amount by which

the carrying value exceeds the current estimated fair value of the real estate property

The Company estimates the future undiscounted cash flows based on managements intent as follows for real estate properties that

the Company intends to hold long-term including land held for development properties currently under development and operating

buildings recoverability is assessed based on the estimated future net rental income from operating the property
and termination

value and ii for real estate properties that the Company intends to sell including land parcels properties currently under

development and operating buildings recoverability is assessed based on estimated proceeds from disposition that are estimated based

on future net rental income of the property
and expected market capitalization rates

The use of projected future cash flows is based on assumptions that are consistent with our estimates of future expectations and the

strategic plan the Company uses to manage its underlying business However assumptions and estimates about future cash flows

including comparable sales values discount rates capitalization rates revenue and expense growth rates and lease-up assumptions

which impact the discounted cash flow approach to determining value are complex and subjective Changes in economic and

operating conditions and the Companys ultimate investment intent that occur subsequent to the impairment analysis could impact

these assumptions and result in future impairment charges of the real estate properties

During the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 the Company incurred no impairment charges

The Company assesses the investments in marketable securities for impairment decline in the market value of any available-for-sale

or held-to-maturity security below cost that is deemed to be other-than-temporary will result in an impairment to reduce the carrying

amount to fair value using Level and inputs note The impairment will be charged to earnings and new cost basis for the

security will be established To determine whether impairment is other-than-temporary the Company considers whether they have the

ability and intent to hold the investment until market price recovery and considers whether evidence indicating the cost of the

investment is recoverable outweighs evidence to the contrary Evidence considered in this assessment includes the reasons for the

impairment the severity and duration of the impairment changes in value subsequent to year-end forecasted performance of the

investee and the general market condition in the geographic area or industry the investee operates in The Company considers the

following factors in evaluating our securities for impairments that are other than temporary

declines in the REIT and overall stock market relative to our security positions

the estimated net asset value NAy of the companies it invests in relative to their current market prices

future growth prospects and outlook for companies using analyst reports and company guidance including dividend

coverage NAV estimates and growth in funds from operations or FF0 and duration of the decline in the value of

the securities

During the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 the Company incurred no other-than-temporary impairment charges
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Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests

Certain of the Companys consolidated joint ventures have issued units to noncontrolling interest holders that are redeemable at the

noncontrolling interest holders option for cash or into the Companys common shares at the Companys option If the noncontrolling
interest holder seeks redemption of its units for the Companys shares the joint ventures may redeem the units through issuance of

common shares by the Company or through cash settlement at the redemption price The redemption is at the option of the holder after

passage of time or upon the occurrence of an event that is not solely within the control of the joint ventures Because redemption of
the noncontrolling interests is outside of the applicable joint ventures control the interests are presented on the consolidated balance
sheets outside of permanent equity as redeemable noncontrolling interests None of the noncontrolling interests are currently
redeemable but it is probable that the noncontrolling interests will become redeemable Based on such probability the Company
measures and records the noncontrolling interests at their maximum redemption amount at each balance sheet date Any adjustments
to the carrying amount of the redeemable noncontrolling interests for changes in the maximum redemption amount are recorded to

additional paid in capital in the period of the change see note 10

At issuance the fair value of the redeemable noncontrolling interests were estimated by applying the income approach which
included significant inputs that are not observable Level including discount rates and redemption values

REIT Status

The Company has qualified and has elected to be taxed as REIT beginning with the tax year ended December 31 2009 In order to

qualify as REIT the Company is required to distribute at least 90% of its annual taxable income subject to certain adjustments to its

stockholders The Company must also meet certain asset and income tests as well as other requirements The Company will monitor
the business and transactions that may potentially impact our REIT status If it fails to qualify as REIT in any taxable year without

the benefit of certain relief provisions it will be subject to federal including any applicable alternative minimum tax and state

income tax on its taxable income at regular corporate rates

Derivatives

The Company uses derivative instruments such as interest rate swaps primarily to manage exposure to interest rate risks inherent in

variable rate debt The Company may also enter into forward starting swaps or treasury lock agreements to set the effective interest

rate on planned fixed-rate financing The Companys interest rate swaps involve the receipt of variable-rate amounts from

counterparty in exchange for the Company making fixed-rate payments over the life of the agreements without exchange of the

underlying notional amount In forward starting swap or treasury lock agreement that the Company cash settles in anticipation of
fixed rate financing or refinancing the Company will receive or pay an amount equal to the present value of future cash flow

payments based on the difference between the contract rate and market rate on the settlement date The Company does not use
derivatives for trading or speculative purposes and currently does not have any derivatives that are not designated as hedging
instruments under the accounting requirements for derivatives and hedging

Acquisitions in 2012

Approximate

Property
Square Footage PurchaseDate Acquired Property Name Location

Segment
Units

Price

lit Quarter

1/5/20 12 Dollar General Market Port St Joe FL Retail 20707 3590
3/812012 Hamilton Crossing Alcoa TN Retail 179858 30098
3/9/2012 Dollar General Buffalo Buffalo NY Retail 10566 1350
3/9/2012

Shoppes at Branson Hills Branson MO Retail 348700 38528
3/23/2012

Shoppes at Hawk Ridge Lake St Louis MO Retail 75951 9900

3/28/2012 Bayonne Crossing Bayonne NJ Retail 356647 67875

2nd Quarter

4/3/2012 Eastside Junction Athens GA Retail 79700 11236

4/30/2012 Shops at Julington Creek Jacksonville FL Retail 40207 7522

5/3/2012 Dollar General Store Lillian AL Retail 9026 1025

5/3120 12 Dollar General Market Slocoinb AL Retail 20707 2839
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Date Acquired Property Name

5/3/2012 Dollar General Store

5/18/2012

5/23/2012

6/12/2012

6/18/2012

3rd Quarter

1/3/2012

7/3/2012

2OIt
7/19/2012

8/1/20 12

8/6/2012

8/7/2012

8/15/2012

8/15/2012

8/28/2012

V28/2U12

8/31/2012

V3u2Ot

9/13/2012

9/14/2012

9/27/20 12

9127/2012

4-
10/3/2012

10/9/2012

11/1/20 12

W2/$U

11/2/2012

11/21/2012

JVOI2
12/28/2012

Clanton AL

Marbury AL

East Windsor NJ

Elgin IL

Orange City FL

Enteiprise AL

Odenville AL

Various VA

Capital Heights MD

Candler NC

Moore OK

curnrnin GA

Branson MO

II$4
Bradenton FL

kti1k FL

Various TX

NY PA DE

$uisMO
Anson TX

East Bernard TX

White Plains NY

Dayville CT

DUTX
Resaca GA

Ocean Isle Beach NC

ucsonAZ

Norman OKAL
Canton MS

nceRL
Las Vegas NV

Approximate

Property
Square Footage Purchase

Segment
Units

Price

Retail 10566 1216

Retail 9026 1055

Office 65552 17625

MdtitamiIY L4 244
Retail 128000 24986

119894 20730

9002 1I49

9100 934

18311 15700

117875 32400

259903 38750

88$4

99025 12149

119275 25578

155324 18073

142443 48766

9100 1106

Retail 44472

Location

Dollar General Store

Elementis Worldwide Global HQ

Webcr
South Elgin Commons

Saxon Crossing

Dollar General Store

Dollar General Store

Virginia Convenience Store Portfolio Properties

BJs at Richie Station

Dollar General Market

Shops at Moore

Icobra Cumming

Shoppes at Branson Hills

Centre Point Commons

Dollar General Portfolio 15 properties

Pathmark Portfolio properties

Sclmuóks Porttoli -3 propezes

Dollar General Store

Dollar Oeneral Store

Retail

Retail

Retail

Retail

Retail

Retail

etail

Retail

Retail

Retail

Retail

Retail

Retail

Retail/Multi

family
9/28/2012 City Center

aOt2 iramrSquare

Crossing at Killingly Commons

Dollar General Market

D$çQc Store

Landings at Ocean Isle Beach

Thecorner

University Town Center Phase 111

rGenera1 Store

Dollar General Market

neOffi
Cannery Corner

365905 and

24 Units

395539

20707

53220

194917

20707

Retail

Retail

Rail

Retail

Retail

Retail

145919

54608

3270

10249

iMiI
22263

3361

17570
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Date Acquired Property Name Location

12/28/2012 CentennIal Center Las Vegas NV Retail

12/28/2012 Centennial Gateway Las Vegas NV Retail

12/28/2012 Eastern Beltway Las Vegas NV Retail

12/28/20 12 Eastgate Henderson NV Retail

12/28/2012 I.owes Plaza Las Vegas NV Retail

Approximate
Square Footage Purchase

Units
Price

857831 128748

193009 48905

525226 61893

96589 26555

30208 5067

6784539 Sq Ft

Total and 144 Units 1314075

There is an earnout component associated with this acquisition that is not included in the approximate purchase price note 14

The Company closed on different buildings on March 2012 and August 15 2012 but this is considered one property

This acquisition is currently under development and included in construction in progress on the consolidated balance sheet and

is not included in the Companys property count

On December 28 2012 the Company purchased all the noncontrolling interest ownership in the Temple Terrace joint venture for

$3630 The Company recorded $1912 as an adjustment to additional paid-in capital on the consolidated balance sheet related to this

transaction

During the year ended December 31 2012 the Company acquired through its wholly owned subsidiaries the properties listed above

for an aggregate purchase price of $1314075 The Company financed these acquisitions with net proceeds from the best efforts

offering proceeds from our DRP and through the borrowing of $624340 debt assumption of $92195 secured by first mortgages on

the properties and borrowing $73500 on the line of credit

The Company incurred $5019 $2648 and $1953 for the
years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively of

acquisition dead deal and transaction related costs that were recorded in acquisition related costs in the consolidated statements of

operations and other comprehensive income and relate to both closed and potential transactions These costs include third party due

diligence costs such as appraisals environmental studies and legal fees as well as time and travel expense reimbursements to the

Sponsor and its affiliates The Company does not pay acquisition fees to its Business Manager or its affiliates

For properties acquired during the year ended December 31 2012 the Company recorded revenue of $39664 and property net income

of $4763 not including expensed acquisition related costs

The following table presents certain additional information regarding the Companys acquisitions during the year ended December 31
2012 The amounts recognized for major assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the acquisition date

Land

Acquired
Below

Market

Lease

IntangiblesProperty Name

Dollar General Market

Hamilton Crossing

Dollar General BufThlo

Shoppes at Branson Hills

Shoppes at Hawk Ridge

Bayonne Crossing

Eastside Junction

Shops at Julington Creek

Dollar General Store Lillian

Dollar General Market Slocomb

Dollar General Store Cianton

Bank Branch Portfolio properties

DollarGenetStoreMath

Dollar General Store Gilbertown

Deferred

Investment

Property

Acquisition

Obligations

note 14

989

857

06

985

Building and

Improveiients

793 2170

2.825 24.287

240 977

8.247 27.366

2709 5416

20911 48.066

1856 8805

2.247 5.578

318 575

608 1.898

389 656

6.433 9.256

231 685

123 1.008

69

Acquired Lease

Intangibles

627

3975

13

7080

1691

8916

1059

685

132

333

171

2947

139
193

3424

3212

4g.
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Deferred

Acquired Investment

Below Property

Market Acquisition

Building and Acquired Lease Lease Obligations

Property Name Land Improvements Intangibles Intangibles note 14

E1ÆntISWOddWVeG4Db1RQ 1089 12327 4209

One Webster 3462 19243 690

StbE1ginCommOns 377l 18684 3196 664

Walgreens NE Portfolio -9 properties 21650 41771 8120 1060

SuDn Crossing 3455 14555 2743 23

Dollar General Store Enterprise 220 768 161

Dollar General Stora Odenville 197 613 124

Siemens Gas Turbine Service Division 2786 13837 1089

VgnaConvçnince Stoic Podfolio Properties 5477 8610 1613

FedEx Distribution Centers 5820 30518 2962

Bis at Richie Station 4486 24827 3087

Dollar General Market Candler 398 2497 405

Shops at Moore 6474 28206 5091 1477

Kohls Cumming 2750 5478 273

Shbipes at BransonVKIIIS 252 9067 t132 157

Dollar General Market-Vienna 635 1883 313

Centre Point Commons 2842 21938 3632 2835

Dollar General Portfolio 15 properties 2201 12851 3022

Lake City Cómntons II 5H 2130 28 28

Pathmark Portfolio properties 5538 35456 8179 408

Schnuckt oftbl1à -3 meit1Cs 444 15938 2240

Dollar General Store Anson 109 816 181

Dollar General Store East Beniard 76 799 174

City Center 11617 136439 19231 1860 19508

Miramar Square 14940 34784 8716 1169

Crossing at Killingly Commons 15281 39212 7408 2200 5093

Wheatland Town Center 684 32973 4152 2789 10647

Dollar General Market Resaca 634 2203 433

DollarGeneraiStore-Heitford 193 1077 151

Landings at Ocean Isle Beach 2587 5497 2165

Thecncr 3521 20429 5198 3681

University Town Center Phase 11 3995 21027 3004 3558 2205

DeneralStore-Rem1ap 124 682 136

Dollar General Market Canton 629 2329 403

HaibroOfticeBuilding 3400 21635 4773

Cannery Corner 3322 10557 3628

Centennial Center 9824 111444 15884 5910 2883

Centennial Gateway 6758 39834 5858 376 3322

Eastern Beltway 5467 52095 6938 2642

Eastgate6 3794 19775 3279 293

Lowes llaza 1805 3103 1125 VVV .1014

Total 220650 1014650 173468 34598 57990

The Company closed on different buildings on March 2012 and August 15 2012 but this is considered one property

The Company assumed mortgages payable and an interest rate swap agreement associated with the acquisition of these

properties note
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This acquisition includes the issuance of redeemable noncontrolling interests in consolidated joint venture note 10 to the

seller with fair value of $1416 as of the acquisition date

This acquisition includes the issuance of redeemable noncontrolling interests in consolidated joint venture note 10 to the

seller with fair value of $6092 as of the acquisition date Additionally at the time of acquisition the Company received

$10000 note receivable and subsequently increased to $11000 from the redeemable noncontrolling interest holder at an

interest rate of 6.00% per annum that matures on May 31 2013 The redeemable noncontrolling interest holder has pledged its

redeemable noncontrolling interests as collateral to this note receivable The Company recorded this note receivable in other

assets on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

This acquisition includes the issuance of redeemable noncontrolling interests in consolidated joint venture note 10 to the

seller with fair value of $9608 as of the acquisition date and assumed mortgage payable note

The acquisition of this portfolio of properties includes the issuance of redeemable noncontrolling interests in consolidated

joint venture note 10 to the seller with fair value of $30000 as of the acquisition date

The following table presents certain additional information regarding the Companys acquisitions during the year ended December 31
2011 The amounts recognized for major assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the acquisition date

During the year ended December 31 201 the Company acquired through its wholly owned subsidiaries the properties listed above

for an aggregate purchase price of $520759 The Company financed these acquisitions with net proceeds from the best efforts

offering proceeds from our DRP and through the borrowing of $240951 debt assumption of $85528 secured by first mortgages on

the properties and borrowing $48000 on the line of credit

Deferred

Acquired Investment

Below Property

Acquired Market Acquisition

Building and Lease Lease Obligations

Improvements Intangibles Intangibles note 14Property Name Land

Waxahachie Crossing 1752 13190 1849 1452

Village at Bay Park 5068 8956 2549 359

Northcrest Shopping Cenier 3907 26974 3437 347 6935

Prattville Town Center 2463 23553 3783 472 2379

LandstownCoinmons 9751 68167 14363 1147

Silver Springs Pointe 3032 12126 1171 373

Copps Grocery Store 892 4642 701

University Town Center 5471 26506 2856 850 1703

Pick Save Grocery Stoi 923 5993 1255

Waigreens NE Portfolio 3998 20855 1873 194

Perimeter Woods 9010 44081 4763 98 2432

Draper Peaks 11144 28566 7680 1531 4407

Shoppes at Prairie Ridge 4556 20387 4033 5174

Fairgrounds Crossing 6163 14356 4460 772

Mullins Crossing 5683 30264 5556 1757 1723

Fox Point 3502 11581 3396 238

Harvest Square 2317 8529 1391 25

Palm Coast Landing 3950 31002 5554 201

DollarGeneral-Sycamore 215 577 114

Total 83797 400305 70784 9816 24753

The Company assumed mortgage loan from the seller at the time of acquisition of $39390 and recorded mortgage

premium of$l588

The Company assumed mortgage loan from the seller at the time of acquisition of $23905

The Company assumed mortgage loan from the seller at the time of acquisition of $22233 and recorded mortgage discount

of $230
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For properties acquired during the year ended December 31 2011 the Company recorded revenue of $29418 and property net income

of $835 not including expensed acquisition related costs

The following condensed pro forma consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31 2012 include pro forma

adjustments related to the acquisitions and financings during 2012 considered material to the consolidated financial statements which

were Palm Coast Landing Bayonne Crossing Shoppes at Branson Hills Waigreens NE Portfolio Saxon Crossing South Elgin

Commons FedEx Distribution Centers BJs at Richie Station Shops at Moore Centre Point Commons Pathmark Portfolio City

Center Miramar Square Crossings at Killingly Commons The Corner University Town Center Phase II Cannery Corner Centennial

Center Centennial Gateway Eastern Beltway Eastgate and Lowes Plaza which are presented assuming the acquisitions had been

consummated as of January 2011

The condensed pro forma consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31 2011 include pro forma adjustments

related to the acquisitions during 2012 and 2011 considered material to the consolidated financial statements which were Northcrest

Shopping Center Prattville Town Center Landstown Commons University Town Center Perimeter Woods Draper Peaks Shoppes at

Prairie Ridge Fairgrounds Crossing Mullins Crossing Palm Coast Landing Shoppes at Branson Hills Waigreens NE Portfolio

Saxon Crossing South Elgin Commons FedEx Distribution Centers BJs at Richie Station Shops at Moore Centre Point Commons

Pathmark Portfolio City Center Miramar Square Crossings at Killingly Commons The Corner University Town Center Phase II

Cannery Corner Centennial Center Centennial Gateway Eastern Beltway Eastgate and Lowes Plaza Bayonne Crossing was

developmental property that was not stabilized until late 2011 For the year ended December 31 2011 for pro forma disclosure

purposes this property is not considered material since it had minimal operations and no pro
forina adjustments were made for

Bayonne Crossing The 2011 acquisitions are presented assuming the acquisitions had been consummated as of January 2010

On pro forma basis the Company assumes the common shares outstanding as of December 31 2012 were outstanding as of January

2011 The following condensed pro forma financial information is not necessarily indicative of what the actual results of operations

of the Company would have been assuming the 2012 and 2011 acquisitions had been consummated as of January 2011 and 2010

respectively nor does it purport to represent the results of operations for future periods

For the year ended December 31 2012

Pro Forma As Adjusted

Historical Adjustments unaudited

Total income 134335 56664 190999

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders 2616 5306 2690

Net income attributable to common stockholders per common share

basic and diluted 0.03 0.02

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding basic and

diluted 91146154 114727439

For the year ended December 31 2011

Pro Forma

Adjustments As Adjusted

Historical unaudited unaudited

Total income 72115 8695g 159013

Net loss attributable to common stockholders 2279 9705 11984

Net loss attributable to common stockholders per common share

basic and diluted 0.05 0.10

Weighted average
number of common shares outstanding basic and

diluted 42 1O56g1 1427439
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Operating Leases

Minimum lease payments to be received under operating leases including ground leases and excluding multi-family units lease terms

of twelve-months or less as of December 31 2012 for the years indicated assuming no expiring leases are renewed are as follows

Minimum Lease

Payments

20t3 162820

2014 155548

2015 150206

2016 144452

2017 134203

Thereafter 1206336

Total 953565

The remaining lease terms range from less than one year to 73 years Most of the revenue from the Companys properties consists of

rents received under long-term operating leases Some leases require the tenant to pay fixed base rent paid monthly in advance and to

reimburse the Company for the tenants pro rata share of certain operating expenses including real estate taxes special assessments

insurance utilities common area maintenance management fees and certain building repairs paid by the Company and recoverable

under the terms of the lease Under these leases the Company pays all expenses and is reimbursed by the tenant for the tenants pro

rata share of recoverable expenses paid Certain other tenants are subject to net leases which provide that the tenant is responsible for

fixed base rent as well as all costs and expenses associated with occupancy Under net leases where all expenses are paid directly by

the tenant rather than the landlord such expenses are not included in the consolidated statements of operations and other

comprehensive income Under leases where all expenses are paid by the Company subject to reimbursement by the tenant the

expenses are included within property operating expenses and reimbursements are included in tenant recovery income on the

consolidated statements of operations and other comprehensive income

Unconsolidated Joint Venture

The Company is member of limited liability company formed as an insurance association captive the Insurance Captive which

is owned in equal proportions by the Company and three other REITs sponsored by the Companys Sponsor Inland Real Estate

Corporation Retail Properties of America Inc and Inland American Real Estate Trust Inc and serviced by an affiliate of the

Business Manager Inland Risk and Insurance Management Services Inc The Insurance Captive was formed to initially insure

reimburse the members deductible obligations for the first $100 of property insurance and $100 of general liability insurance The

Company entered into the Insurance Captive to stabilize its insurance costs manage its exposures and recoup expenses through the

functions of the captive program This entity is considered to be variable interest entity VIE as defined in U.S GAAP and the

Company is not considered to be the primary beneficiary Therefore this investment is accounted for utilizing the equity method of

accounting The Companys risk of loss is limited to its investment and is not required to fund additional capital to the entity

Investment at

Joint Venture Description Ownership December 31 2012 December 31 2011

1ropny casualty Lt Insurce Capdve 28

The Companys share of net income from its investment in the unconsolidated entity is based on the ratio of each members premium

contribution to the venture The Company was allocated income of $17 $105 and $1 for the years ended December 31 2012 2011

and 2010 respectively

On May 28 2009 the Company purchased 1000 shares of common stock in the Inland Real Estate Group of Companies for $1 which

are accounted for under the cost method and included in investment in unconsolidated entities on the accompanying consolidated

balance sheets
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Investment in Marketable Securities

Investment in marketable securities of $40941 and $17903 at December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively consists of primanly

preferred and common stock and corporate bond investments in other publicly traded REITs which are classified as available-for-sale

securities and recorded at fair value The cost basis of the Companys investment in marketable securities was $37943 and $18373 at

December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

Unrealized holding gains and losses on available-for-sale securities are excluded from earnings and reported as separate component

of comprehensive income until realized The Company has recorded net unrealized gain loss of $2999 and $470 on the

accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively The Company had net unrealized gains

losses of $3495 $269 and $162 for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively which have been recorded as

other comprehensive income in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and other comprehensive income

Realized gains and losses from the sale of available-for-sale securities are determined on specific identification basis or first-in first-

out basis For the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 the Company had realized gains losses of $26 $365 and $2
respectively which has been recorded as realized gain loss on sale of marketable securities in the accompanying consolidated

statements of operations and other comprehensive income

The Companys policy for assessing recoverability of its available-for-sale securities is to record charge against net earnings when

the Company determines that decline in the fair value of security drops below the cost basis and believes that decline to be other-

than-temporary which includes determining whether for marketable securities the Company intends to sell the marketable

security and it is more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the marketable security before its anticipated

recovery

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in current transaction between

willing parties other than in forced sale or liquidation The carrying amounts reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance

sheets for cash and cash equivalents restricted cash and escrows accounts and rents receivable accrued offering expenses accounts

payable and accrued expenses and due to related parties approximates their fair values at December 31 2012 and 2011 due to the

short maturity of these instruments

All financial assets and liabilities are recognized or disclosed at fair value using fair value hierarchy as described in note Fair

Value Measurements

The following table presents the Companys assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis and related valuation

inputs within the fair value hierarchy utilized to measure fair value as of December 31 2012 and 2011

Level Level Level Total

Deccmber3I.2O12

Asset investment in marketable securities 31231 9710 40941

Liability interest rate swdi jL

December 31 2011

Asset- nvesmentjrrTnarkctabfe securities 11558 6345 17903

Liability interest rate swap 1293 1293

The valuation techniques used to measure fair value of the investment in marketable securities above was quoted prices from national

stock exchanges and quoted prices from third party brokers for similar assets note The Company performs certain validation

procedures such as verifying changes in security prices from one period to the next and verifying ending security prices on test basis

The valuation techniques used to measure the fair value of the interest rate swaps above in which the counterparties have high credit

ratings were derived from pricing models provided by third party such as discounted cash flow techniques with all significant

inputs derived from or corroborated by observable market data The Company verifies the ending values provided by the third party to

the values received on the counterparties statements for reasonableness The Companys discounted cash flow techniques use

observable market inputs such as LIBOR-based yield curves
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The Company estimates the fair value of its total debt by discounting the future cash flows of each instrument at rates currently

offered for similardebt instruments of comparable maturities by the Companys lenders using Level inputs The carrying value of

the Companys mortgage debt was $1158051 and $463663 at December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively and its estimated fair value

was $1189621 and $470569 as of December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively The Companys carrying amount of variable rate

borrowings on the credit facility and securities margin payable approximates their fair values at December 31 2012 and 2011

Transactions with Related Parties

The Company has an investment in an insurance captive entity with other REITs sponsored by our Sponsor The entity is included in

the Companys disclosure of Unconsolidated Joint Venture note and is included in investment in unconsolidated entities on the

accompanying consolidated balance sheets

As of December 31 2012 and 2011 the Company owed total of $2532 and $1909 respectively to our Sponsor and its affiliates

related to advances used to pay administrative and offering costs and certain accrued expenses which are included in due to related

parties on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets These amounts represent non-interest bearing advances by the Sponsor and

its affiliates which the Company intends to repay

At December 31 2012 and 2011 the Company held $629 and $571 respectively in shares of common stock in Inland Real Estate

Corporation which are classified as available-for-sale securities and recorded at fair value

The Company has 1000 shares of common stock in the Inland Real Estate Group of Companies with recorded value of $1 at

December 31 2012 and 2011 which are accounted for under the cost method and included in investment in unconsolidated entities on

the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

The following table summarizes the Companys related party transactions for years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

2012 2011 2010

General and administrative reimbursement 1101 793 570

Loan servicing 185 98 17

Discount on shares issued to affiliates 294 55 83

Investment advisor fee 270 106 37 26 13

Total general and administrative to related

parties $1J2 707 361 743

126

Acquisition related costs 2048 961 568 348 316

Real estate management fees 5601 3124 776

Business management fee 1500 1000 603 975

Loanplacementfees 1109 418 261

Cost reimbursements 75 13

Sponsor noninteest bearing advances 1500 724 724

Sponsor contributions to pay dividends 1500 2889

The Business Manager and its related parties are entitled to reimbursement for general and administrative expenses
of the

Business Manager and its related parties relating to the Companys administration Such costs are included in general and

administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and other comprehensive income

related party of the Business Manager provides loan servicing to the Company for an annual fee equal to .03% of the first

$1000 of serviced loans and .01% for serviced loans over $1000 These loan servicing fees are paid monthly and are included

in general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and other comprehensive

income

For the year ended December 31 Unpaid amounts as of

December 31
2012

December 31
2011

335 730
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The Company established discount stock purchase policy for related parties and related parties of the Business Manager that

enables the related parties to purchase shares of common stock at $9.00 per share The Company sold 294331 55203 and

83239 shares to related parties for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

The Company pays related party of the Business Manager to purchase and monitor its investment in marketable securities

related party of the Business Manager receives selling commissions equal to 7.5% of the sale price for each share sold and

marketing contribution equal to 2.5% of the gross offering proceeds from shares sold the majority of which are reallowed paid

to third party soliciting dealers The Company also reimburses related party of the Business Manager and the soliciting dealers

for bona fide out-of-pocket itemized and detailed due diligence expenses in amounts up to 0.5% of the gross offering proceeds

which may in the Companys sole discretion be paid or reimbursed from the marketing contribution or from issuer costs In

addition our Sponsor its affiliates and third parties are reimbursed for any issuer costs that they pay on our behalf including

any bona fide out-of-pocket itemized and detailed due diligence expenses not reimbursed from amounts paid or reallowed

aid as marketing contribution in an amount not to exceed 1.5% of the gross offering proceeds The Company does not pay

selling commissions or the marketing contribution or reimburse issuer costs in connection with shares of common stock issued

through the distribution reinvestment plan Such costs are offset against the stockholders equity accounts

As of December 31 2012 the Company had incurred $118182 of offering costs including $13558 of issuer costs Of the

$118182 $107497 was paid or accrued to related parties the majority of which was then reallowed paid to third party

soliciting dealers Pursuant to the terms of the best efforts offering issuer costs may not exceed 1.5% of the gross offering

proceeds over the life of the best efforts offering In addition the Business Manager has agreed to reimburse the Company all

organization and offering expenses including issuer costs selling commissions and the marketing contribution which together

exceed 11.5% of gross offering proceeds over the life of the best efforts offering These costs did not exceed these limitations

upon completion of the best efforts offering

The Business Manager and its related parties are reimbursed for acquisition dead deal and transaction related costs of the

Business Manager and its related parties relating to the Companys acquisition of real estate assets These costs relate to both

closed and potential transactions and include customary due diligence costs including time and travel
expense

reimbursements

Such costs are included in acquisition related costs in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and other

comprehensive income The Company does not pay acquisition fees to its Business Manager or its affiliates

The real estate managers entities owned principally by individuals who are related parties of the Business Manager receive

monthly real estate management fees up to 4.5% of gross operating income as defined for management and leasing services

Such costs are included in property operating expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and other

comprehensive income

Subject to satisfying the criteria described below the Company pays
the Business Manager quarterly business management fee

equal to percentage of the Companys average invested assets as defined in the business management agreement

calculated as follows

if the Company has declared distributions during the prior calendar quarter just ended in an amount equal to or greater

than an average 7% annualized distribution rate assuming share was purchased for $10.00 it will pay fee equal to

0.1875% of its average invested assets for that prior calendar quarter

if the Company has declared distributions during the prior calendar quarter just ended in an amount equal to or greater

than an average 6% annualized distribution rate but less than 7% annualized distribution rate assuming share was

purchased for $10.00 it will pay fee equal to 0.1625% of its average invested assets for that prior calendar quarter

if the Company has declared distributions during the prior calendar quarter just ended in an amount equal to or greater

than an average
5% annualized distribution rate but less than 6% annualized distribution rate assuming share was

purchased for $10.00 it will pay fee equal to 0.125% of its average invested assets for that prior calendar quarter or

if the Company does not satisfy the criteria in or above in particular calendar quarter just ended it will not

except as set forth below pay business management fee for that prior calendar quarter

Assuming that or above is satisfied the Business Manager may decide in its sole discretion to be paid an

amount less than the total amount that may be paid If the Business Manager decides to accept less in any particular

quarter the excess amount that is not paid may in the Business Managers sole discretion be waived permanently or

deferred without interest to be paid at later point in time This obligation to pay the deferred fee terminates if the

Company acquires the Business Manager For the year
ended December 31 2012 the Business Manager was entitled to

business management fee in the amount equal to $9195 of which $7695 was permanently waived
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Separate and distinct from any business management fee the Company will also reimburse the Business Manager the Real

Estate Managers and their affiliates for certain
expenses

that they or any related party including the Sponsor pay or incur on its

behalf including the salaries and benefits of
persons employed except that the Company will not reimburse either our Business

Manager or Real Estate Managers for any compensation paid to individuals who also serve as the Companys executive officers

or the executive officers of the Business Manager the Real Estate Managers or their affiliates provided that for these purposes

the secretaries will not be considered executive officers These costs were recorded in general and administrative
expenses

in

the consolidated statements of operations and other comprehensive income

The Company pays related party of the Business Manager 0.2% of the principal amount of each loan it places for the

Company Such costs are capitalized as loan fees and amortized over the respective loan term

The Company reimburses related party of the Business Manager for costs incurred for construction oversight provided to the

Company relating to its joint venture redevelopment project These reimbursements are paid monthly during the development

period These costs are capitalized and are included in construction in progress on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet

As of December 31 2012 the Company owed $724 to our Sponsor related to advances used to pay administrative and offering

costs prior to the commencement of the best efforts offering These amounts are included in due to related parties on the

accompanying consolidated balance sheets On March 10 2011 our Sponsor forgave $1500 in liabilities related to non-interest

bearing advances that were previously funded to the Company to cover portion of distributions paid related to the three months

ended December 31 2010 For U.S GAAP purposes this forgiveness of debt was treated as capital contribution from our

Sponsor who has not received and will not receive any additional shares of our common stock for making this contribution No

additional contributions were made during the year ended December 31 2012

The Company may pay additional types of compensation to affiliates of the Sponsor in the future including the Business Manager and

our Real Estate Managers and their respective affiliates however we did not pay any other types of compensation for the
years

ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

The Company had bank account with Inland Bank and Trust subsidiary of Inland Bancorp Inc an affiliate of The Inland Real

Estate Group Inc which was closed on November 28 2012 As of December 31 2011 the Company had deposited cash of $3171 in

Inland Bank and Trust

Mortgages Credit Facility and Securities Margins Payable

As of December 31 2012 the Company had the following mortgages payable outstanding

Principal Balance at

Maturity Stated Interest Rate Per December 31 2012

Date Property Name Annum Notes

09/28/2022 City Center Daily LIBOR 2.45% 87000

01/06/2023 Centennial Center 3.83% 70455

09/25/2013 Landstown Commons Daily LIBOR 2.25% 50140

12/10/2018 Walgreens NE Portfolio properties 30-Day LIBOR 2.20% 49.391

04/01/2022 Bayonne Crossing 4.08% 45000

1/01/2023 Centennial Gateway and Eastgate 3.8 1% 44.385

01/06/2023 Eastern Beltway 3.83% 34100

09/01/20 18 Perimeter Woods 6.02% 33330

11/01/2017 Crossing at Killingly Commons 30-Day LIBOR 2.75% 33000

12/31/2022 Miramar Square 4.16% 31625

06/01/2015 The Landing at Tradition 4.25% 31000

10/06/2037 Pathmark Portfolio properties 4.15% 27468

10/01/2015 Draper Peaks 5.74% 23905

06/01/2015 Regal Court 5.30% 23.900

03/01/2022 Palm Coast Landing 5.00% 22550

09/06/20 16 Mullins Crossing 5.50% 1.738

09/01/2022 Shops at Moore 4.29% 21300
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Principal Balance at

Maturity
Stated Interest Rate Per December 31 2012

Date Property Name Annum Notes

10/03/2019 FedEx Distribution Centers 30-Day LIBOR 1.85% 21615

0/OYi ShoppsatnsotIftS 1k

06/01/2021 University Town Center 5.48% 18690

011011201$ Cojonial Sqiait Tow cççr
08/06/2037 BJs at Richie Station 4.60% 17820

05/01/2021 PraUi11eTownGener .4$4 15930

05/01/2021 Northcrest Shopping Center 5.48% 15780

0/0/2O1 I4antifton Crossæ

12/20/20 17 Wheatland Town Center 30-Day LIBOR 2.35% 15080

12/3 1/20Z2 iasbro Oe 1i1ding 1ayLIflI 21S% 4Q0
10/01/2022 Centre Point Commons 4.34% 14410

10/06/2021 Eairgmunds crossing
2t14 Th453

06/22/20 16 Shoppes at Prairie Ridge 30-Day LIBOR 2.50% 13359

09/01/2019 One Webster 3b% 12925

07/01/2022 Saxon Crossing
4.65% 11400

10/01/2017 The Crossiflgs atllillcroà 88% 170

10/21/2016 Fox Point 30-Day LIBOR 2.25% 10837

UI02Q tc 1$ 0% ooo

10/01/2020 Siemens Building
5.06% 10250

08/01/2022 Siemens Oas Turbine Service Division 4.73% 9790

12/01/2026 Elementis Worldwide Global HQ 4.88% 9625

06/01/2015 tradition Village Center 45% 95O0

07/23/20 17 Bank Branch Portfolio properties 30-Day LIBOR 2.20% 9354

11/05/2015 Xh1ÆeiiR1verPromen4 30-Day LiBOR 2.75% 9350

06/01/202 The Village at Bay Park 5.58% 9183

1bW2020 time WmerCsbflMQ 9J00

07/01/2021 Silver Springs
5.03% 8800

07/19/2022 Z5%

04/01/202 Lima Marketplace
5.80% 8383

03/01A2021 WxAhath1e Crossing
55S%

05/10/20 14 Publix Shopping Center 5.90% 6915

01/01/2018 $bops atYiflage Waik 5.50 V0 880

06/01/2017 Pleasant Hill Commons 6.00% 6800

01/0112022 HssvestSquare 4j 45% 6$00

11/11/2017 Shoppes at Branson Hills 5.95% 6693

04/01/2021 Be1l aks ShppingCenter 4548

06/01/2022 Eastside Junction 4.60% 6270

02/02/2017 topopM1et U5% $4481 iU

11/01/2024 Dollar General Pool II properties
4.65% 5830

07/06/2022 MerEimack Vi11agefltr 438

11/01/2024 Dollar General Pool properties
4.60% 5297

09/01/3020 %aCityCenimofls
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Principal Balance at

Maturity Stated Interest Rate Per December 31 2012
Date

Property Name Annum Notes

07/01/2021 Walgreens Lake Mary Plaza 5.10% 5080
09/01/2020 Wbispring Ridge 5.70% 5.000

04/12/2017 Shoppes at Hawk Ridge 5.25% 4.950

11/08/2017 DóllarGeral Portfolio- properties 5.25% 4930
09/01/2022 Shops at Julington Creek 4.60% 4785
1V06/2022 Ihs atCuinnInŁs 4.51% 4675
07/01/2021 Walgreens Walgreens Plaza 5.30% 4.650

06/01/2041 Pick Save Grocery Store 5.43% 4490
07/01/202 Walgreens Heritage Square 5.10% 4.460

05/01/2041 Copps Grocery Store 5.43% 3480
05/11/2016 Shoppes at Branson Hills 5.78% 3090

1156582

Principal balance does not include net mortgage premium of$ 1468 associated with debt assumed at acquisition net of

accumulated amortization as of December 31 2012

The loan bears interest at rate equal to daily LIBOR plus 2.45% 2.66% as of December 31 2012 On October 12012 the

Company entered into forward interest rate swap related to this loan See details relating to this forward swap in the interest

rate swap agreements section below The Company has provided partial guarantee on this loan making it recourse for $9000
of the unpaid principal and 100% of unpaid interest

The loan bears interest at rate equal to daily LIBOR plus 2.25% 2.46% as of December 31 2012 The Company extended
the loan until September 25 2013 on March 14 2012 The Company plans to refinance to new loan when the loan matures
There is no reasonable assurance that the Company will be able to refinance before the loan maturity date The Company has

provided partial guarantee on this loan making it recourse for $25000 of the unpaid principal and 100% of unpaid interest

Loan was assumed from the seller at the time of closing The Company has provided partial guarantee on the Mullins

Crossing loan making it recourse for $2200 of the unpaid principal and unpaid interest

The loan bears interest at rate equal to thirty-day LIBOR plus 2.20% 2.41% as of December 31 2012 At the time of

closing the Company entered into an interest rate swap related to this loan See interest rate swap agreements section below

The loan bears interest at fixed rate equal to 4.08% until March 31 20154.18% from April 2015 until March 31 2016
4.33% from April 2016 until March 31 2019 and 4.43% from April 2019 until April 2022 the maturity date Interest

expense is recognized using the effective interest method base on effective interest rate of approximately 4.27%

The loan bears interest at rate equal to thirty-day LIBOR plus 2.75% 2.96% as of December 31 2012 Effective October

2012 the Company entered into an interest rate swap related to this loan See interest rate swap agreements section below The
Company has provided partial guarantee on this loan making it recourse for 25% of the unpaid principal and 100% of unpaid
interest

This loan bears interest at fixed rate equal to 4.25% until May 31 2013 4.50% from June 2013 until May31 2014 and
5.00% from June 2014 until June 2015 the maturity date Interest

expense is recognized using the effective interest

method based on an effective interest rate of approximately 4.44% This loan is secured by cross collateralized first mortgages
by these two properties The Company has provided partial guarantee on this loan making it recourse for 50% of the unpaid
principal and 100% of unpaid interest

Loan is secured by cross-collateralized first mortgages on three properties

The loan bears interest at rate equal to thirty-day LIBOR plus 1.85% 2.07% as of December 31 2012 On October 2012
the Company entered into an interest rate swap related to this loan See interest rate swap agreements section below

These three loans relate to single property One loan bears interest at rate equal to thirty-day LIBOR plus 2.25% 2.46% as

of December 31 2012 At the time of closing the Company entered into an interest rate swap related to this loan See interest

rate swap agreements section below The two other loans were assumed from the seller at the time of closing

Loan is secured by cross-collateralized first mortgages on these two properties
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The loan bears interest at rate equal to thirty-day LIBOR plus 2.35% 2.56% as of December 31 2012 On December 20

2012 the Company entered into an interest rate swap related to this loan See interest rate swap agreements
section below

The loan bears interest at rate equal to thirty-day LIBOR plus 2.15% 2.36% as of December 31 2012

The loan bears interest at rate equal to thirty-day LIBOR plus 2.50% 2.7 1% as of December 31 2012 At the time of

closing the Company entered into an interest rate swap related to this loan See interest rate swap agreements
section below

The loan bears interest at rate equal to thirty-day LIBOR plus 2.25% 2.46% as of December 31 2012 On October 28 2011

the Company entered into an interest rate swap related to this loan See interest rate swap agreements section below

Mortgage payable is secured by cross-collateralized first mortgages on these three properties

The loan bears interest at rate equal to thirty-day LIBOR plus 2.20% 2.41% as of December 31 2012 On July 24 2012 the

Company entered into an interest rate swap related to this loan See interest rate swap agreements section below The Company

has provided partial guarantee on this loan making it recourse for 25% of the unpaid principal and 100% of unpaid interest

Loan is secured by cross-collateralized first mortgages on nine properties

The loan bears interest at rate equal to thirty-day LIBOR plus
2.75% 2.97% as of December31 2012 On March 11 2011

the Company entered into an interest rate swap related to this loan See interest rate swap agreements section below

The Company has provided partial guarantee on this loan making it recourse for 25% of the unpaid principal
and 100% of

unpaid interest

Loan is secured by cross collateralized first mortgages on ten Dollar General Properties

Loan is secured by cross collateralized first mortgages on nine Dollar General Properties

Loan is secured by cross collateralized first mortgages on eight Dollar General Properties

The Company has provided partial guarantee on this loan making it recourse for $1238 plus real estate taxes

Loan is secured by cross collateralized first mortgages on four Dollar General Properties

The principal amount of our mortgage loans outstanding as of December 31 2012 and 2011 was $1156582 and $462418

respectively and had weighted average stated interest rate of 4.32% and 4.94% per annum respectively
which includes effects of

interest rate swaps All of the Companys mortgage loans are secured by first mortgages on the real estate assets

The mortgage loans may require compliance with certain covenants such as debt service ratios investment restrictions and

distribution limitations As of December 31 2012 all of the mortgages were current in payments and the Company was in compliance

with such covenants

On November 2012 the Company entered into an amended and restated credit agreement as amended the Credit Facility under

which the Company may borrow on an unsecured basis up to $105000 The Company has the right provided that no default has

occurred and is continuing to increase the facility amount up to $200000 with approval from the lending group The obligations

under the Credit Facility will mature on October 31 2015 which may be extended to October 31 2016 subject to satisfaction of

certain conditions The Company has the right to terminate the facility at any time upon one business day notice and the repayment of

all of its obligations thereunder Borrowings under the Credit Facility bear interest at base rate applicable to any particular borrowing

e.g LIBOR plus graduated spread that varies with the Companys leverage ratio The Company generally will be required to make

monthly interest-only payments except that we may be required to make partial principal payments in order to comply with certain

debt covenants set forth in the Credit Facility On December 31 2012 the interest rate was 1.90% per annum The Company is also

required to pay on quarterly basis an amount up to 0.35% per annum on the average daily unused funds remaining under the Credit

Facility The Credit Facility requires compliance with certain covenants which may restrict the availability of funds under the Credit

Facility Our performance of the obligations under the Credit Facility including the payment of any outstanding indebtedness

thereunder is secured by guaranty by certain of our subsidiaries owning unencumbered properties
The amount outstanding on the

Credit Facility as of December 31 2012 and 2011 was $73500 and $0 respectively

The Company has purchased portion of its marketable securities through margin accounts As of December 31 2012 and 2011 the

Company had payable of $17872 and $1293 respectively for securities purchased on margin The debt bears variable interest

rate As of December 31 2012 and 2011 the interest rate was 0.56% and 0.62% per annum respectively The securities margin

payable is due upon the sale of any marketable securities
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The following table shows the scheduled maturities of mortgages payable Credit Facility and securities margin payable as of

December 31 2012 and for the next five years and thereafter

Securities

Mortgages Margin

Payable Credit Facility Payable Total

2013 50824 17872 68696

2014 7638 7638

2015 99016 73500 172516

2016 48806 48806

2017 120792 120792

Thereafter 829506 829.506

Total 1i56582 73500 17872 1247954

Excludes net mortgage premiums of $1468 associated with debt assumed at acquisition net of accumulated amortization as of

December 31 2012

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

On March 11 2011 the Company entered into floating-to-fixed interest rate swap agreement with an original notional value of

$9350 and maturity date of November 2015 associated with the debt secured by first mortgage on the Kohls Bend River

Promenade property This interest rate swap fixed the floating LIBOR based debt under variable rate loan to fixed rate debt at an

interest rate of 2.26% per annum plus the applicable margin to manage the risk exposure to interest rate fluctuations or an effective

fixed rate of 5.01% per annum

On June 22 2011 the Company entered into floating-to-fixed interest rate swap agreement with an original notional value of

$13359 and maturity date of June 22 2016 associated with the debt secured by first mortgage on the Shoppes at Prairie Ridge

property This interest rate swap fixed the floating LIBOR based debt under variable rate loan to fixed rate debt at an interest rate

of 1.97%
per annum plus the applicable margin to manage the risk exposure to interest rate fluctuations or an effective fixed rate of

4.47% per annum

On October 28 2011 the Company entered into floating-to-fixed interest rate swap agreement with an original notional value of

$10837 and maturity date of October 21 2016 associated with the debt secured by first mortgage on the Fox Point property This

interest rate swap fixed the floating LIBOR based debt under variable rate loan to fixed rate debt at an interest rate of 1.50%
per

annum plus the applicable margin to manage the risk exposure to interest rate fluctuations or an effective fixed rate of 3.75% per

annum

On May 2012 the Company entered into floating-to-fixed interest rate swap agreement with an original notional value of $10150

and maturity date of May 2017 associated with the debt secured by first mortgage on the Shoppes at Branson Hills property

This interest rate swap fixed 50% of the floating LIBOR based debt under variable rate loan to fixed rate debt at an interest rate of

13% per annum plus the applicable margin to manage the risk exposure to interest rate fluctuations or an effective fixed rate of

3.38% per annum

On June 13 2012 the Company assumed at the time of acquisition floating-to-fixed interest rate swap agreement with an original

notional value of $49391 and maturity date of December 10 2018 associated with the debt secured by first mortgage on the

Walgreens NE Portfolio This interest rate swap fixed the floating LIBOR based debt under variable rate loan to fixed rate debt at

an interest rate of 2.20% per annum plus the applicable margin to manage the risk exposure to interest rate fluctuations or an effective

fixed rate of 5.17% per annum At the time of acquisition the swap was in liability position with fair market value of $5219
which was recorded as part of the purchase price allocation

On July 24 2012 the Company entered into floating-to-fixed interest rate swap agreement with an original notional value of $4677

and maturity date of July 20 2017 associated with the debt secured by cross-collateralized first mortgages on the Bank Branch

Portfolio This interest rate swap fixed 50% of the floating LIBOR based debt under variable rate loan to fixed rate debt at an

interest rate of 0.89% per annum plus the applicable margin to manage the risk exposure to interest rate fluctuations or an effective

fixed rate of 3.09% per annum
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On October 2012 the Company entered into forward interest rate swap agreement with an original notional value of $45000 and

is effective on April 2014 and matures on March 29 2019 associated with the debt secured by first mortgage on the City Center

property This interest rate swap will fix 50% of the floating LIBOR based debt under variable rate loan to fixed rate debt at an

interest rate of 1.40% per annum plus the applicable margin to manage the risk exposure to interest rate fluctuations or an effective

fixed rate of 3.85% per annum

Effective October 2012 the Company entered into floating-to-fixed interest rate swap agreement with an original notional value

of $24750 and maturity date of October 2017 associated with the debt secured by first mortgage on the Crossing at Killingly

Commons located in Dayville Connecticut This interest rate swap fixed 75% of the floating LIBOR based debt under variable rate

loan to fixed rate debt at an interest rate of 0.98% per annum plus the applicable margin to manage the risk exposure to interest rate

fluctuations or an effective fixed rate of 3.73% per annum

On October 2012 the Company entered into floating-to-fixed interest rate swap agreement with an original notional value of

$10808 and maturity date of October 2019 associated with the debt secured by first mortgage on the FedEx Distribution Centers

located in Houston Texas This interest rate swap fixed 50% of the floating LIBOR based debt under variable rate loan to fixed

rate debt at an interest rate of 1.30% per annum plus the applicable margin to manage the risk exposure to interest rate fluctuations or

an effective fixed rate of 3.15% per annum

On December 20 2012 the Company entered into floating-to-fixed interest rate swap agreement with an original notional value of

$9900 and maturity date of December 20 2017 associated with the debt secured by first mortgage on the Wheatland Town Center

located in Dallas Texas This interest rate swap fixed approximately 66% of the floating LIBOR based debt under variable rate loan

to fixed rate debt at an interest rate of 1.01% per annum plus the applicable margin to manage the risk exposure to interest rate

fluctuations or an effective fixed rate of 3.36% per annum

The Company has documented and designated these interest rate swaps as cash flow hedges Based on the assessment of effectiveness

using statistical regression the Company determined that the interest rate swaps are effective Effectiveness testing of the hedge

relationship and measurement to quantify ineffectiveness is performed each fiscal quarter using the hypothetical derivative method As

these interest rate swaps qualify as cash flow hedges the Company adjusts the cash flow hedges on quarterly basis to their fair

values with corresponding offsets to accumulated other comprehensive income The Company has recorded net unrealized loss of

$3282 and $1293 on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively The interest rate

swaps have been and are expected to remain highly effective for the term of the hedge Effective amounts are reclassified to interest

expense as the related hedged expense is incurred Any ineffectiveness on the hedges is reported in other income/expense For the

years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 the Company had $66 and less than $1 respectively of ineffectiveness on its cash flow

hedges Amounts related to the swaps expected to be reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income to interest expense in

the next twelve months total $1556

The table below presents the fair value of the Companys cash flow hedges as well as their classification on the consolidated balance

sheets as of December 31 2012 and 2011

December3l20l2 December3l201l

Balance Sheet Balance Sheet

Location Fair Value Location Fair Value

Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges

Other Other

Interest rate swaps
liabilities 8.07 liabilities 1293

The table below presents the effect of the Companys derivative financial instruments on the consolidated statements of operations and

other comprehensive income for year ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Location of Loss Location of Loss

Reclassified from Amount of Loss Recognized in

Amount of Loss Accumulated OCI Reclassified from Income on Amount of Loss

Recognized in OCI into Income Accumulated OCI Derivative Recognized in

Derivatives in Cash Flow on Derivative Effective into Income Ineffective Income on Derivative

Hedging Relationships Effective Portion Portion Effective Portion Portion Ineffective Portion

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Interest rate swaps 2727 1.581 Interest Expense 738 288 Other Expense 66
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10 Redeemable Noncontrouing Interests

On August 15 2012 the Company entered into consolidated joint venture with Market Place Partners No LLC MP Partners
The joint venture was formed for the purpose of owning operating and managing the Kohls Cumming property note Upon
formation of the joint venture MP Partners contributed the property with fair value of $8500 to the joint venture Upon formation
the joint venture issued 141602 preferred units the MP Preferred Units to the MP Partners which were valued at $1416 The MP
Preferred Units will be paid preferred return of 5.00% per annum starting on the date of issuance The MP Preferred Units are senior

as to distributions over the Companys interest in the joint venture Upon the five year anniversary of issuance either joint venture

partner has the right to cause the joint venture to redeem the MP Preferred Units The MP Partners has the right to cause the joint

venture to redeem the MP Preferred Units for cash or for shares of the Companys common stock on one-for-one basis If the MP
Partners requests that the joint venture redeem the MP Preferred Units for shares of the Company the joint venture may still elect to

settle the redemption in cash If the joint venture pays the redemption price of the MP Preferred Units in cash the redemption value

will be greater of $10.00 per unit plus any accumulated accrued and unpaid distributions to and including the date of redemption or

ii the Companys share price per share The MP Preferred Units do not have any maturity date and are not subject to mandatory

redemption The MP Preferred Units are subject to redemption features outside of the joint ventures control that results in presentation
outside of permanent equity and are reported at the maximum redemption amount as redeemable noncontrolling interests in the

Companys consolidated financial statements

On September 28 2012 the Company entered into consolidated joint venture with LC White Plains Retail LLC and LC White
Plains Recreation LLC collectively the LC Partners The joint venture was formed for the purpose of owning operating and

managing the City Center property note Upon formation of the joint venture the LC Partners contributed the property with fair

value of $166393 to the joint venture Upon formation the joint venture authorized the issuance of 2656449 preferred units the LC
Preferred Units As part of the contribution the joint venture issued 609149 units to LC Partners which were valued at $6092 If

certain vacant spaces are leased by the LC Partners to tenants paying full rent by September 2014 the joint venture will issue the LC
Partners up to an additional 2047300 LC Preferred Units The joint ventures contingent obligation to issue the additional LC
Preferred Units has been recorded as liability included in deferred investment property acquisition obligations on the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets The LC Preferred Units will be paid preferred return of 4.00% per annum starting on fulfillment of the

deferred investment property acquisition obligations The LC Preferred Units are senior as to distributions over the Companys interest

in the joint venture Upon the three five and seven year anniversaries of issuance if the Company has listed its shares on national

stock exchange as defined the LC Partners have the right to cause the joint venture to redeem portion of their LC Preferred Units

for shares of the Companys common stock on one-for-one basis Additionally upon the ten year anniversary of issuance and

thereafter either joint venture partner has the right to cause the joint venture to redeem the LC Preferred Units for cash or for shares

of the Company common stock on one-for-one basis If the LC Partners request that the joint venture redeem the LC Preferred Units

for shares of the Company the joint venture may still elect to settle the redemption in cash If the joint venture pays the redemption

price of the LC Preferred Units in cash the redemption value will be the greater of $10.00
per unit plus any accumulated accrued

and unpaid distributions to and including the date of redemption or ii the Companys share price per share The LC Preferred Units do

not have any maturity date and are not subject to mandatory redemption The LC Preferred Units are subject to redemption features

outside of the joint ventures control that results in presentation outside of permanent equity and are reported at the maximum

redemption amount as redeemable noncontrolling interests in the Companys consolidated financial statements

On October 2012 the Company entered into consolidated joint venture with Dayville Unit Investors LLC Dayville Investors
The joint venture was formed for the purpose of owning operating and managing 395539 square-foot retail shopping center known
as Crossing at Killingly Commons located in Dayville Connecticut Upon formation of the joint venture the Dayville Investors

contributed the property with fair market value of $54608 to the joint venture Upon formation the joint venture issued 960802

preferred units the Dayville Preferred Units to Dayville Investors which were valued at $9608 If certain vacant spaces are leased

by the Dayville Investors to tenants paying full rent by January 31 2015 the joint venture will pay up to $5584 or issue up to an

additional 558362 Dayville Preferred Units to the Dayville Investors The joint ventures contingent obligation has been recorded as

liability included in deferred investment property acquisition obligations on the consolidated balance sheet The Dayville Preferred

Units will be paid preferred return of 3.50% per annum on October 2012 through October 2015 Thereafter the Dayville

Preferred Units will be paid preferred return of 5.50% per annum The Dayville Preferred Units are senior as to distributions over the

Companys interest in the joint venture Upon the ten year anniversary of issuance and thereafter either joint venture partner has the

right to cause the joint venture to redeem the Dayville Preferred Units The Dayville Investors have the right to cause the joint venture

to redeem the Dayville Preferred Units for cash or for shares of the Companys common stock on one-for-one basis If the Dayville

Investors request that the joint venture redeem the Dayville Preferred Units for shares of the Company the joint venture may still

select to settle the redemption in cash If the joint venture pays the redemption of the Dayville Preferred Units in cash the redemption

value will be the greater of $10.00 per unit plus any accumulated accrued and unpaid distributions to and including the date of
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redemption or ii the Companys share price per share The Dayville Preferred Units do not have any maturity date and are not subject

to mandatory redemption The Dayville Preferred Units are subject to redemption features outside of the joint ventures control that

results in presentation outside of permanent equity and are reported at the maximum redemption amount as redeemable noncontrolling

interests in the Companys consolidated financial statements

On December 27 2012 the Company entered into consolidated joint venture with Centennial Centre L.L.C Eastern Beltway

Ltd Centennial Gateway L.L.C and Retail Development Partners LLC each Territory Investor and collectively the Territory

Investors The joint venture was formed for the purpose
of owning operating and managing six retail shopping centers Centennial

Center Centennial Gateway Eastgate Eastern Beltway Center Cannery Corner and Lowes Plaza located in Las Vegas and

Henderson Nevada totaling 1747335 square-feet collectively the Territory Portfolio Upon formation of the joint venture the

Territory Investors contributed the fee simple interests in the properties with fair market value of $288738 to the joint venture Upon

formation the joint venture issued 3000000 preferred units the Territory Preferred Units to the Territory Investors which were

valued at $30000 If certain vacant spaces are leased by the Territory Investors to tenants paying full rent by December 27 2015 the

joint venture will pay an additional amount up to $7601 The joint ventures contingent obligation has been recorded as liability

included in deferred investment property acquisition obligations on the consolidated balance sheet The Territory Preferred Units will

be paid preferred return of 4.00% per annum The Territory Preferred Units are senior as to distributions over the Companys interest

in the joint venture Upon the five year anniversary of issuance the Territory Investors have the right to cause the joint venture to

redeem the Territory Preferred Units The Territory Investors have the right to cause the joint venture to redeem the Territory Preferred

Units for cash based on $10.00 per unit plus any distributions or for shares of the Companys common stock on one-for-one basis if

the Company has listed its shares on national stock exchange as defined If the Territory Investors request that the joint venture

redeem the Territory Preferred Units for shares of the Company the joint venture may still select to settle the redemption in cash If

the joint venture pays the redemption of the Territory Preferred Units in cash the redemption value will be the Companys share price

per share less 50% of the excess of the share price per
share and $10.00 per

unit The Territory Preferred Units do not have any

maturity date and are not subject to mandatory redemption however if the Territory Investors do not elect to redeem the Territory

Preferred Units by December 27 2018 the Company may require the joint venture to purchase and redeem any or all the existing

Territory Preferred Units through cash settlement The Territory Preferred Units are subject to redemption features outside of the joint

ventures control that results in presentation outside of permanent equity and are be reported at the maximum redemption amount as

redeemable noncontrolling interests in the Companys consolidated financial statements

Below is table reflecting the activity of the consolidated redeemable noncontrolling interests as of and for the year
ended

December 31 2012

Redeemable

Noncontrolling Interests

Januaryl2012

Issuance of redeemable noncontrolling interests 47115

Net income attdbut.able to redçemable noncontrolling juterests
209

Payment of preferred return 109

December3l2012 47215

11 Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be taxed as real estate investment trust REIT under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended

for federal income tax purposes commencing with the tax year ended December 31 2009 Since the Company qualifies for taxation as

REIT the Company generally will not be subject to federal income tax on taxable income that is distributed to stockholders REIT

is subject to number of organizational and operational requirements including requirement that it currently distributes at least 90%

of its taxable income subject to certain adjustments to its stockholders If the Company fails to qualify as REIT in any taxable year

without the benefit of certain relief provisions the Company will be subject to federal including any applicable alternative minimum

tax and state income tax on its taxable income at regular corporate tax rates Even if the Company qualifies for taxation as REIT the

Company may be subject to certain state and local taxes on its income property or net worth and federal income and excise taxes on

its undistributed income

The Company had no uncertain tax positions as of December 31 2012 and 2011 The Company expects no significant increases or

decreases in uncertain tax positions due to changes in tax positions within one year
of December 31 2012 The Company has no

interest or penalties relating to income taxes recognized in the consolidated statements of operations and other comprehensive income

for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 As of December 31 2012 returns for the calendar years 2008 2009 2010

and 2011 remain subject to examination by U.S and various state and local tax jurisdictions
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12 Distributions

The Company currently pays distributions based on daily record dates payable monthly in arrears The distributions that the Company

currently pays are equal to daily amount equal to $0.00 1639344 which if paid each day for 366-day period would equal to $0.60

per share or 6.0% annualized rate based on purchase price of $10.00 per
share During the years ended December 31 2012 2011

and 2010 the Company declared cash distributions totaling $54687 $25263 and $8203 respectively

13 Earnings loss per Share

Basic earnings loss per share EPS are computed by dividing net income loss attributable to common stockholders by the

weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period the common shares Diluted EPS is computed by dividing

net income loss attributable to common stockholders by the common shares plus potential common shares issuable upon exercising

options or other contracts As of December 31 2012 the Companys only potentially dilutive common share equivalents outstanding

were the redeemable noncontrolling interests which could be converted to 4711553 common shares at future dates Such common
share equivalents were excluded as they were antidilutive The Company had no potentially dilutive common share equivalents

outstanding as of December 31 2011

14 Commitments and Contingencies

The acquisition of 24 of the Companys properties included earnout components to the purchase price The maximum potential

eamout payment was $77592 at December 31 2012 The table below presents the change in the Companys earnout liability for
years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

For the years ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Eaniout liability beginning of period 25i90 2904

Increases

Acquisitions 57990 24753 12849

Amortization expense 2477 2141 55

Decreases

Earnout payments 16026 14824

Other

Adjustments to acquisition related costs 849 316

Earnout liability end of period 70580 25290 12904

The Company has provided partial guarantee on nine mortgages payable of our subsidiaries As of December 31 2012 these

guarantees totaled to an aggregate recourse amount of $70435 See additional information relating to each of these guarantees in note

As of December 31 2012 our consolidated joint ventures had issued $47215 in redeemable noncontrolling interests which will

become redeemable at future dates generally no earlier than in 2015 but generally no later than 2022 based on certain redemption

criteria The redeemable noncontrolling interests are not mandatory redeemable The joint venture may issue common stock or pay

cash or mixture of both if they are redeemed See additional information relating to these redeemable noncontrolling interests in note

10

The Company may be subject from time to time to various legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of business

While the resolution of these matters cannot be predicted with certainty management believes based on currently available

information that the final outcome of such matters will not have material adverse effect on the consolidated financial statements of

the Company
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15 Segment Reporting

The Company has one reportable segment as defined by U.S GAAP for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 As the

Company acquires additional properties in the future we may add business segments and related disclosures if they become

significant

16 Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events and transactions that have occurred subsequent to December 31 2012 for potential recognition

and disclosure in these consolidated financial statements

Our board of directors declared distributions payable to stockholders of record each day beginning on the close of business on January

2013 through the close of business on March 31 2013 Distributions were declared in daily amount equal to $0.00 164384 per

share which if paid each day for 365-year period would equate to $0.60 per
share or 6.0% annualized rate based on purchase

price of $10.00 per share Distributions were and will continue to be paid monthly in arrears as follows

In January 2013 total distributions declared for the month of December 2012 were paid in the amount equal to $5831

of which $2295 was paid in cash and $3535 was reinvested through the Companys DRP resulting in the issuance of an

additional 372150 shares of common stock

In February 2013 total distributions declared for the month of January 2013 were paid in the amount equal to $5865 of

which $2315 was paid in cash and $3550 was reinvested through the Companys DRP resulting in the issuance of an

additional 373642 shares of common stock

In March 2013 total distributions declared for the month of February 2013 were paid in the amount equal to $5311 of

which $2103 was paid in cash and $3209 was reinvested through the Companys DRP resulting in the issuance of an

additional 337757 shares of common stock

On February 14 2012 the Company entered into $14900 interest rate swap associated with the loan secured by first mortgage on

the Flasbro Office Building located in Providence Rhode Island This swap bears interest at fixed rate equal to thirty-day LIBOR

plus 2.15% per annum and was effective on February 14 2012 and matures on December 31 2022 The swap effectively hedges the

interest payment under the hedged portion of the loan to fixed rate equal to 4.25% per annum

On February 20 2012 the Company entered into $14750 loan secured by first mortgage on The Corner located in Tucson

Arizona This loan bears interest at fixed rate equal to 4.10% per annum and matures on March 2023

17 Quarterly Supplemental Financial Information unaudited

The following represents the results of operations for each quarterly period during 2012 and 2011

2012

December 31 September 30 June 30 March 31

Total income 45156 35794 29179 24205

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders 306 1594 990 338

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders

per common share basic and diluted 0.00 0.02 0.01 0.01

Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding basic and diluted 114436422 104419606 81159713 64164709

2011

December 31 September 30 June 30 March 31

Total income 22028 21334 17145 11608

Net income loss attributable to common stockholders 302 940 1487 154

Net income 1os attributable to common stockholders

per common share basic and diluted 0.01 0.02 0.04 0.01

Weighted average
number of common shares

outstanding basic and diluted 54037413 45723031 38231644 30128389

Quarterly income per common share amounts may not total the annual amounts due to rounding and the changes in the number

of weighted common shares outstanding

86



INLAND DIVERSIFIED REAL ESTATE TRUST INC
Schedule III

Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation

December 31 2012
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Initial Cost
Cost

Gross amount at which carried at end of penod

Capitalized Accumulated

Buildings and Subsequent to Land and Buildings and Depreciation Date Date of
Encumbrance Land Improvements Acquisition Improvements Improvements Total EF Constructed Acquisition

Merrimack Village Center 5445 2500 5654 99 2500 5753 8253 621 2007 2009

MerrÆcMI
Pleasant Hill Commons 6800 5000 5200 47 5000 5247 10247 576 2008 2010

tap_ ii

Regal Court 23900 6500 31306 165 6500 31471 37971 3125 2008 2010

DraperCrossing 8500 11665 289 8500 11954 20454 1155 2001 2010

DrapeU
Tradition Village Center 9500 4400 12.702 4400 12702 17102 1160 2006 2010

ft

TheLandingAtTradition 31000 21090 25185 147 21090 25332 46422 2319 2007 2010
ft

Temple Terrace 3500 825 3436 3500 4261 7761 325 1969 2010rvft

Kohls at Calvine Pointe 10500 3437 9263 3437 9263 12700 922 2007 2010

EGro C4

Lake City Commons 5200 1584 7570 1584 7570 9154 706 2008 2010

Publix Shopping Center 6915 2065 6009 2065 6009 8074 542 2003 2010

KohlsBendRiverPromenade 9350 5440 7765 5440 7765 13205 694 2009 2010

Whispering Ridge 5000 2101 6445 2101 6445 8546 532 2008 2010

naha
Bell Oaks Shopping Center 6548 1800 9058 1800 9058 10858 735 2008 2010

Colonial Square Town Center 18140 4900 19360 283 4900 19643 24543 1616 2010 2010

ShopsAt Village Walk 6860 1645 7840 1645 7840 9485 606 2009 2010

Lima Marketplace 8383 4765 12452 4765 12454 17219 921 2008 2010
For We

Dollar General-Anton 390 35 704 35 704 739 49 2010 2010

4rionAI

DollarGeneral-Collins 465 142 720 142 720 862 51 2010 2010
GA

DollarGeneral-Decatur 450 171 676 171 676 847 50 2010 2010
Decatw4L
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Dollar General Dublin 606 258 876 258 876 1134 65 2010 2010

Dollar General Duncanville 430 78 733 78 733 811 54 2010 2010

DollarGeneral-Excel 455 49 810 49 810 859 57 2010 2010

DollarGeneral-Lagrange
554 197 838 197 838 1035 62 2011 2010

Dollar General Milledgeville 423 139 650 139 650 789 46 2010 2010

DollarGeneral-Uriah 391 19 727 19 727 746 51 2010 2010

Waxahachie Crossing 7750 1752 13190 1752 13190 14942 890 2010 2011

VillageatBayPark 9183 5068 8956 45 5.068 9002 14070 617 2005 2011

Northcrest Shopping Center 15780 3907 26974 3907 26974 30881 1740 2008 2011

PrattvilleTownCenter 15930 2463 23553 2463 23553 26016 1521 2007 2011

il4
LandstownCommons 50140 9751 68167 219 9751 68386 78137 4231 2007 2011

SilverSpringsPointe 8800 3032 12126 3032 12126 15158 783 2001 2011

Copps Grocery Store 3480 892 4642 892 4642 5534 288 2000 2011

UniversityTownCenter 18690 9466 47533 9466 47533 56999 1758 2009/2012 2011/2012

Pick Save Grocery Store 4490 923 5993 923 5993 6916 373 2009 2011

Walgreens-LakeMary 5080 1743 7031 1743 7031 8774 411 2009 2011

WalgreensPlaza 4650 1031 7320 1031 7320 8351 430 2010 2011

Walgreens-HeritageSquare 4460 1224 6504 1224 6504 7728 380 2010 2011

Perimeter Woods 33330 9010 44081 9010 44081 53091 2455 2008 2011

DraperPeaks 23905 11144 28566 11144 28566 39710 1602 2007 2011

Vt
ShoppesAt Prairie Ridge 13359 4556 20388 32 4556 20420 24976 1144 2009 2011

FairgroundsCrossing 13453 6163 14356 84 6163 14440 20603 809 2011 2011
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MulIms Crossing

Initial Cost

Buildings and

Encumbrance Land Improvements

21738 5683 30263

Cost
Gross amount at which carried at end of period

Capitalized Accumulated

Subsequent to Land and Buildings and Depreciation Date Date of

Acquisition Improvements Improvements Total EF Constructed Acquisition

5683 30263 35946 1421 2005 2011

zI
FoxPoint 10837 3502 11581 20 3502 11601 15103 549 2008 2011

IeªWI
HarvestSquare 6800 2317 8529 113 2317 8642 10959 344 2008 2011

IkIL
PalmCoastLanding 22550 3950 31002 3950 31002 34952 1094 2010 2011

NdªF
DollarGeneral-Sycamore 461 215 577 215 577 792 20 2011 2011_1
Dollar General Market 2017 793 2170 793 2170 2963 82 2011 2012

JFL
HamiltonCrossing 15637 2825 24287 2825 24287 27112 714 2008 2012

J1Ao41N

Dollar General Store Buffalo 240 977 240 977 1217 29 2011 2012Ny
ShoppesatBransonHills 30083 10798 36434 10798 36434 47232 986 2005 2012

QIIt
Shoppes at Hawk Ridge 4950 2709 5416 50 2709 5466 8175 153 2008 2012

ZtL Lo
Bayonne Crossing 45000 20911 48066 20911 48066 68977 1323 2011 2012

Eastside Junction 6270 1856 8805 1856 8805 10661 212 2008 2012

Ath
Shops at Julington Creek 4785 2247 5578 2247 5578 7825 138 2011 2012

DollarGeneralSiore-Lillian 318 575 318 575 893 14 2012 2012

Dollar General Market Slocomb 1417 608 1898 608 1898 2506 47 2012 20124L
Dollar General Store Clanton 389 656 389 656 1045 15 2012 2012

BBT-Plantation 1295 610 1483 610 1483 2093 33 2001 2012

BBT-Wilmington 1024 776 1177 776 1177 1953 25 1990 2012

KeyBank-Beachwood 1145 1146 601 1146 601 1747 14 1979 2012

KeyBank-Euclid 612 260 912 260 912 1172 20 1965 2012

KeyBank-Mentor 921 680 914 680 914 1594 20 1976 2012

KeyBank Pepper Pike 860 957 689 957 689 1646 15 1974 2012

I1pakw
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KeyBank- Shaker Heights 932 736 1047 736 1047 1783 23 1957 2012

vii

RegionsBank-Acworth 1043 570 1068 570 1068 1638 24 2004 20124w tU

RegionsBank-Alpharetta 1522 698 1365 698 1365 2063 31 2003 2012

04

DollarGeneraiStore-Marbury 231 685 231 685 916 15 2012 2012

Dollar General Store Gilbertown 123 1008 123 1008 1131 21 2012 2012

SouthElginConmons 3771 18684 3771 18684 22455 397 2011 2012

Waigreens Berlin 4840 2000 4155 2000 4155 6155 90 2007 2012

Waigreens Brandford 5285 2200 4500 2200 4500 6700 98 2007 2012

1rs4 ci

Walgreens Brockton 6421 3500 4424 3500 4424 7924 97 2007 2012

vckio IL1

Walgreens Derry 4988 1750 4363 1750 4363 6113 95 2007 2012

Walgreens Dover 4742 1800 4043 1800 4043 5843 88 2008 2012

oNil
Waigreens Ledgewood 6223 2600 5352 2600 5352 7952 116 2007 2012LN1
Waigreens Melrose 6026 3000 4435 3000 4435 7435 92 2007 2012

Walgreens Mount Ephraim 6223 2600 5581 2600 5581 8181 115 2007 2012Mj
Walgreens Sewell 4643 2200 4918 2200 4918 7118 104 2008 2012

Saxon Crossing 11400 3455 14555 3455 14555 18010 271 2009 2012

Dollar General Store Enterprise 220 768 220 768 988 14 2012 2012

Dollar General Store Odenville 197 613 197 613 810 11 2012 2012

rJa4illAL

BP-Gordonsville 707 840 322 840 322 1162 1997 2012

BP-Fontaine 1476 1043 1374 1043 1374 2417 21 1989 2012

tesWll
BP Monticello 1030 399 1285 399 1285 1684 20 1995 2012

VA

BP- Seminole 1695 945 1833 945 1833 2778 28 1992 2012
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Citgo Gordonsville

Initial Cost
Cost

Gross amount at which carried at end of period

Capitalized Accumulated

Buildings and Subsequent to Land and Buildings and Depreciation Date Date of

Encumbrance Land Improvements Acquisition Improvements Improvements Total EF Constructed Acquisition

3727 2250 3796 2250 3796 6046 59 2003 2012

BJsatRichieStation

Dollar General Market Candler

flC

17820 4486

398

24827

2497

4486

398

24827

2497

29313

2895

364

39 2012 2012

ShopsatMoore

Kohls Cumming

GA

DollarGeneralMarket-Vienna

21300

4675

1417

6674

2750

635

28206

5478

1883

6674

2750

635

28206

5478

1883

34880

8228

2518

432
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23

2010

2000

2012

2012

2012

2012

Centre Point Commons

Thik
14410 2842 21938 2842 21938 24780 251 2007 2012

Dollar General Store Borger

Dollar General Store BrookshireBà$

589

863

214

347

680

960

214

347

680

960

894

1307 12

2010

2010

2012

2012

Dollar General Store Bullard

Hll1
600 159 747 159 747 906 2009 2012

DollarGeneralStore-Cisco 531 40 757 40 757 797 2010 2012

Ear
Dollar General Store Glen Rose

cI4rx
903 297 1087 297 1087 1384 14 2010 2012

DollarGeneralStore-Hamilton 626 147 807 147 807 954 10 2010 2012

1Y2
Dollar General Store Itasca

DollarGeneraiStore-Joaquin

Dollar General Store LlanoL1
Dollar General Store Memphis

hft
Dollar General Store Mt Vernon

543

656

804

461

641

30

50

207

29

60

784

935

1019

654

919

30

50

207

29

60

784

935

1019

654

919

814

985

1226

683

979

10

12

13

11

2010

2010

2010

2009

2010

2012

2012

2012

2012

2012

Dollar General Store PinelandPe 703 108 950 108 950 1058 12 2009 2012

DollarGeneralStore-Rockdale 592 117 784 117 784 901 10 2010 2012

Roth TX

Dollar General Store Scaly

Dollar General Store Van Horn

Van

723

707

348

48

745

1022

348

48

745

1022

1093

1070 13

2010

2010

2012

2012
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Lake City Commons II

Pathmark Seaford

Pathmark Upper Darby

Pathmark Wilmington

Schnucks Arsenal

Schnucks Festus

Schnucks Grand

Dollar General Store Anson

Dollar General Store East Bernard

City Center

Miramar Square

Crossing at Killingly Commons

Wheatland Town Center

Dollar General Store Hertford

Dollar General Market Resaca

Landings at Ocean Isle Beach

The Corner

Dollar General Store Remlap

Dollar General Market Canton

Canneiy Corner

Centennial Center

Centennial Gateway

Lat bgw 1v

Initial Cost
Cost

Gross amount at which carried at end of period

Capitalized Accumulated

Buildings and Subsequent to Land and Buildings and Depreciation Date Date of

Encumbrance Land Improvements Acquisition Improvements Improvements Total EF Constructed Acquisition

511 2130 511 2130 2641 26 2011 2012

13839 2440 17000 2440 17000 19440 213 1968 2012

8835 1750 11834 1750 11834 13584 147 1978 2012

4794 1348 6622 1348 6622 7970 82 1981 2012

1403 4722 1403 4722 6125 58 1984 2012

1507 5584 1507 5584 7091 69 1984 2012

1536 5632 1536 5632 7168 66 1989 2012

608 109 816 109 816 925 2009 2012

577 76 799 76 799 875 2009 2012

dt
87000 11617 136439 11617 136439 148056 1198 2004 2012

31625 14940 34784 14940 34784 49724 325 2008 2012

33000 15281 39212 15281 39212 54493 364 2010 2012

15080 3684 32973 3684 32973 36657 301 2012 2012

193 1077 193 1077 1270 2012 2012

1635 634 2203 634 2203 2837 21 2012 2012

2587 5497 2587 5497 8084 35 2009 2012

3521 20429 3521 20429 23950 121 2010 2012

124 682 124 682 806 2012 2012

629 2329 629 2329 2958 2012 2012

3322 10557 3322 10557 13879 2008 2012

70455 9824 111444 9824 111444 121268 1999 2012

29978 6758 39834 6758 39834 46592 2005 2012
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Eastern Beltway

Eastgate

Lowes Plaza

Office

Buffalo Grove IL

East Syracuse NY

East W7ndsor NJ

Pmvidence RI

The Crossings At Hilicroft

One Webster

Industrial

Deer Park TX

Houston TX

Initial Cost
Cost

Gross amount at which carried at end of period

Capitalized Accumulated

Buildings and Subsequent to Land and Buildings and Depreciation Date Date of

Encumbrance Land Improvements Acquisition Improvements Improvements Total EF Constructed Acquisition

34100 5467 52095 5467 52095 57562 1998 2012

14407 3794 19775 3794 19775 23569 1998 2012

tM V1I1
1805 3103 1805 3103 4908 2007 2012

1L%1I 1UI 11
bWhj4

20W

1If4 WI fl

Wi 4oO EI MO

11370 1240 17362 1240 17362 18602 1375 2007 2010

12925 3462 19243 3462 19243 22705 394 2011 2012

sI o2
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INLAND DIVERSIFIED REAL ESTATE TRUST INC
Schedule III continued

Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation

December 31 2012

Dollars in thousands

Notes

The initial cost to the Company represents the original purchase price of the property including estimated earnouts and other

amounts incurred subsequent to acquisition which were contemplated at the time the property was acquired

The aggregate cost of real estate owned at December 31 2012 for federal income tax purposes was approximately $2181151

unaudited

Does not include construction in
progress

Reconciliation of real estate owned

Year ended December 31

2012 2011

Balance at beginning of period 802646 314344

Acquisitions 1235302 484101

linprovements 1234 4201

Balance at close of period 2039182 802646

Reconciliation of accumulated depreciation

Year ended December 31

2012 2011

Balance at beginning of period 20044 339

Depreciation expense 34799 16715

Balance at close of period 54843 20044

Depreciation is computed based upon the following estimated lives

Buildings and improvements 15 30 years

Tenant improvements Shorter of life of asset or term of the lease

Amounts in this table may not tie to the total due to rounding
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Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

As required by Rule 3a- 15b and Rule 5d- 15b under the Exchange Act our management including our principal executive

officer and our principal financial officer evaluated as of December 31 2012 the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rule 3a- 15e and Rule Sd- 15e Based on that evaluation our principal executive officer

and our principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31 2012 were effective for

the purpose of ensuring that information required to be disclosed by us in this report is recorded processed summarized and reported

within the time periods specified by the rules and forms of the Exchange Act and is accumulated and communicated to management

including the principal executive officer and principal financial and accounting officer as appropriate to allow timely decisions

regarding required disclosures

Managements Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as such term is

defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15f and 5d- 15f Our management including our principal executive officer and principal

financial officer evaluated as of December 31 2012 the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the

framework in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission COSO Based on its evaluation our management has concluded that we maintained effective internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2012

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Companys independent registered public accounting firm regarding

internal control over financial reporting Managements report was not subject to attestation by the Companys independent registered

public accounting firm pursuant to permanent rules adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission permitting the Company to

provide only managements report in this annual report

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the fourth quarter of 2012 that has materially affected

or is reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

None

Part III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this Item will be presented in our definitive proxy statement for our 2013 annual meeting of stockholders

which we anticipate filing with the SEC no later than April 30 2013 and is incorporated by reference into this Item 10

We have adopted code of ethics which is available on our website free of charge at http//www.inlanddiversified.com We will

provide the code of ethics free of charge upon request to our customer relations group

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item will be presented in our definitive proxy statement for our 2013 annual meeting of stockholders

which we anticipate filing with the SEC no later than April 30 2013 and is incorporated by reference into this Item 11

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this Item will be presented in our definitive proxy statement for our 2013 annual meeting of stockholders

which we anticipate filing with the SEC no later than April 30 2013 and is incorporated by reference into this Item 12
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Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by this Item will be presented in our definitive proxy statement for our 2013 annual meeting of stockholders

which we anticipate filing with the SEC no later than April 30 2013 and is incorporated by reference into this Item 13

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this Item will be presented in our definitive proxy statement for our 2013 annual meeting of stockholders

which we anticipate filing with the SEC no later than April 30 2013 and is incorporated by reference into this Item 14

Part IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

List of documents filed

Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The consolidated financial statements of the Company are set forth in the report in Item

Financial Statement Schedules

Financial statement schedule for the year ended December 31 2012 is submitted herewith

Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation Schedule III

Exhibits

The list of exhibits filed as part of this Annual Report is set forth on the Exhibit Index attached hereto

Exhibits

The exhibits filed in response to Item 601 of Regulation S-K are listed on the Exhibit Index attached hereto

Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules other than those indicated in the index have been omitted as the required information is inapplicable or the information

is presented in the consolidated financial statements or related notes
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly caused this

report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

INLAND DIVERSIFIED REAL ESTATE TRUST INC

Is Barry Lazarus

BY BanyL.Lazarus

President and principal executive officer

Date March 13 2013

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the following persons on

behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature Title Date

By Is Robert Parks March 13 2013

Name Robert Parks Director and chaiman of the board

By Is Barry Lazarus
Director and president

March 13 2013

Name Barry Lazarus principal executive officer

By Is Steven Hippel Treasurer and chief financial officer
March 13 2013

Name Steven Hippel principal financial officer

By Is Brenda Gujral
March 13 2013

Name Brenda Gujral Director

By Is Lee Daniels March 13 2013

Name Lee Daniels Director

By Is Heidi Lawton March 13 2013

Name Heidi Lawton Director

By Is Gerald Grupe March 13 2013

Name Gerald Grupe Director

By Is Charles Wurtzebach March 13 2013

Name Charles Wurtzebach Director
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Exhibit Index

Exhibit

No Description

3.1 First Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Amendment No to the Registrants Form S-li Registration Statement as filed by

the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 19 2009 file number 333-153356

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc effective August 12 2009

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Amendment No to the Registrants Form S-il Registration

Statement as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 19 2009 file

number 333-153356

4.1 Distribution Reinvestment Plan incorporated by reference to Post-Effective Amendment No to the

Registrants Form S-3D Registration Statement as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on August 32012 file number 333-182748

4.2 Amended and Restated Share Repurchase Program incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Post-Effective

Amendment No to the Registrants Form S-il Registration Statement as filed by the Registrant with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on April 16 2010 file number 333-153356 as amended by First

Amendment to the Amended and Restated Share Repurchase Program of Inland Diversified Real Estate

Trust Inc effective November 2011 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 14

2011

4.3 Statement regarding restrictions on transferability of shares of common stock to appear on stock certificate or

to be sent upon request and without charge to stockholders issued shares without certificates incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrants Form S-i Registration Statement as filed by the Registrant with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on September 2008 file number 333-153356

10.1 Amended and Restated Business Management Agreement effective as of September 2011 by and among

Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc Inland Diversified Business Manager Advisor Inc and Inland Real

Estate Investment Corporation incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 14 2011

10.2 Amended and Restated Master Real Estate Management Agreement effective as of September 2011 by and

between Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc and Inland Diversified Real Estate Services LLC

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the

Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 14 2011

10.3 Amended and Restated Master Real Estate Management Agreement effective as of September 2011 by and

between Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc and Inland Diversified Asset Services LLC incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on September 14 2011

10.4 Amended and Restated Master Real Estate Management Agreement effective as of September 2011 by and

between Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc and Inland Diversified Leasing Services LLC incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on September 14 2011

10.5 Amended and Restated Master Real Estate Management Agreement effective as of September 2011 by and

between Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc and Inland Diversified Development Services LLC

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the

Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 14 2011
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Exhibit

No Description

10.6 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of December 23 2010 by and between Prattcenter LLC and Inland Real

Estate Acquisitions Inc as amended by the First Amendment dated as of January 24 2011 the Second

Amendment dated as of February 2011 the Third Amendment dated as of February 14 2011 the Fourth

Amendment dated as of March 2011 the Fifth Amendment dated as of March 10 2011 the Sixth

Amendment dated as of March 10 2011 and the Seventh Amendment dated as of March 10 2011 incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on March 17 2011

10.7 Assignment dated as of March 11 2011 by and between Inland Real Estate Acquisitions Inc and Inland

Diversified Prattville Legends L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 17

2011

10.8 Assignment and Assumption of Leases dated as of March 11 2011 by and between Prattcenter LLC and Inland

Diversified Prattville Legends L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 17

2011

10.9 Eamout Agreement dated as of March 11 2011 by and between Prattcenter LLC and Inland Diversified

Prattville Legends L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrants Current Report on Form

8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 17 2011

10.10 Post Closing and Indemnity Agreement dated as of March 11 2011 by and between Prattcenter LLC and Inland

Diversified Prattville Legends L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 17

2011

10.11 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of December 23 2010 by and between Reames Investors L.L.C and

Inland Real Estate Acquisitions Inc as amended by the First Amendment dated as of February 14 2011 the

Second Amendment dated as of March 2011 the Third Amendment dated as of March 2011 the Fourth

Amendment dated as of March 2011 and the Fifth Amendment dated as of March 10 2011 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on March 17 2011

10.12 Assignment dated as of March 11 2011 by and between Inland Real Estate Acquisitions Inc and Inland

Diversified Charlotte Northcrest L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 17

2011

10.13 Assignment and Assumption of Leases dated as of March 11 2011 by and between Reames Investors L.L.C

and Inland Diversified Charlotte Northcrest L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March

17 2011

10.14 Earnout Agreement dated as of March 11 2011 by and between Reams Investors L.L.C and Inland Diversified

Charlotte Northcrest L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 17 2011

10.15 Post Closing and Indemnity Agreement dated as of March 11 2011 by and between Reams Investors L.L.C

and Inland Diversified Charlotte Northcrest L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on March 17 2011
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Exhibit

No Description

10.16 First Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of November 2012 among Inland Diversified Real

Estate Trust Inc as borrower and KeyBank National Association as administrative agent KeyBanc Capital

Markets as sole lead arranger RBS Citizens N.A d/b/a Charter One as syndication agent PNC Bank National

Association as documentation agent and the several banks financial institutions and other entities that may from

time to time become parties thereto as lenders incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on

November 2012

10.17 Form of Note dated November 2012 by Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc for the benefit lenders

under the Credit Agreement incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 2012

10.18 Subsidiary Guaranty dated as of November 2012 by the parties identified on the signature pages thereto to

and for the benefit of KeyBank National Association for itself and as administrative agent for the lenders under

the Credit Agreement and to and for the benefit of the counterparties to certain related swap obligations

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the

Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 2012

10.19 Agreement of Purchase and Sale of Shopping Center dated as of November 18 2010 by and between Mountain

Ventures Virginia Beach L.L.C and Inland Real Estate Acquisitions Inc as amended by the First Amendment
dated as of January 18 2011 the Second Amendment dated as of January 28 2011 the Third Amendment dated

as of February 2011 the Fourth Amendment dated as of February 10 2011 the Fifth Amendment dated as of

February 17 2011 the Sixth Amendment dated as of March 10 2011 and the Seventh Amendment dated as of

March 23 2011 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as

filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 31 2011

10.20 Assignment dated as of March 25 2011 by and between Inland Real Estate Acquisitions Inc and Inland

Diversified Virginia Beach Landstown L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March

31 2011

10.21 Assignment of Leases dated as of March 25 2011 by Mountain Ventures Virginia Beach L.L.C for the benefit

of Inland Diversified Virginia Beach Landstown L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on March 31 2011

10.22 Post Closing Agreement dated as of March 25 2011 by and between Mountain Ventures Virginia Beach L.L.C

and Inland Diversified Virginia Beach Landstown L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 31 2011

10.23 Term Loan Agreement dated as of March 25 2011 by and between Inland Diversified Virginia Beach

Landstown L.L.C as borrower and Bank of America N.A as lender incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5

to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on March 31 2011

10.24 Promissory Note dated as of March 25 2011 by Inland Diversified Virginia Beach Landstown L.L.C for the

benefit of Bank of America N.A incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrants Current Report

on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 31 2011

10.25 Guaranty Agreement dated as of March 25 2011 by Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc in favor of Bank

of America N.A incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as

filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 31 201

10.26 Environmental Indemnification and Release Agreement dated as of March 25 2011 by and between Inland

Diversified Virginia Beach Landstown L.L.C and Bank of America N.A incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.8 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on March 31 2011
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Exhibit

No Description

10.27 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of December 23 2010 by and between UTC LLC and Inland Real

Estate Acquisitions Inc as amended by the First Amendment dated as of January 24 2011 the Second

Amendment dated as of February 2011 the Third Amendment dated as of February 14 2011 the Fourth

Amendment dated as of March 2011 the Fifth Amendment dated as of March 2011 the Sixth Amendment
dated as of March 2011 the Seventh Amendment dated as of March 10 2011 the Eighth Amendment dated

as of March 24 2011 the Ninth Amendment dated as of April 15 2011 and the Tenth Amendment dated as of

April 29 2011 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as

filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 2011

10.28 Assignment dated as of April 29 2011 by Inland Real Estate Acquisitions Inc to and for the benefit of Inland

Diversified Norman University L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 2011

10.29 Assignment and Assumption of Leases dated as of April 29 2011 by UTC LLC for the benefit of Inland

Diversified Norman University L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 2011

10.30 Post Closing and Indemnity Agreement dated as of April 29 2011 by and between UTC LLC and Inland

Diversified Norman University L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 2011

10.31 Loan Agreement dated as of April 29 2011 by and between Inland Diversified Prattville Legends L.L.C as

borrower and JPMorgan Chase Bank National Association as lender incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5

to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on May 2011

10.32 Promissory Note dated as of April 29 2011 by Inland Diversified Prattville Legends L.L.C for the benefit of

JPMorgan Chase Bank National Association incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May

2011

10.33 Guaranty Agreement dated as of April 29 2011 by Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc for the benefit of

JPMorgan Chase Bank National Association incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May

2011

10.34 Environmental Indemnification Agreement dated as of April 29 2011 by and between Inland Diversified

Prattville Legends L.L.C and Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc in favor of JPMorgan Chase Bank
National Association incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K
as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 2011

10.35 Loan Agreement dated as of April 29 2011 by and between Inland Diversified Charlotte Northcrest L.L.C as

borrower and JPMorgan Chase Bank National Association as lender incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9

to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on May 2011

10.36 Promissory Note dated as of April 29 2011 by Inland Diversified Charlotte Northcrest L.L.C for the benefit of

JPMorgan Chase Bank National Association incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May

2011

10.37 Guaranty Agreement dated as of April 29 2011 by Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc for the benefit of

JPMorgan Chase Bank National Association incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May

2011
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Exhibit

No Description

10.38 Environmental Indemnification Agreement dated as of April 29 2011 by and between Inland Diversified

Charlotte Northcrest L.L.C and Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc in favor of JPMorgan Chase Bank
National Association incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 2011

10.39 Loan Agreement dated as of May 19 2011 by and between Inland Diversified Norman University L.L.C as

borrower and JPMorgan Chase Bank National Association as lender incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1

to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on May 25 2011

10.40 Promissory Note dated as of May 19 2011 by Inland Diversified Norman University L.L.C for the benefit of

JPMorgan Chase Bank National Association incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May

25 2011

10.41 Guaranty Agreement dated as of May 19 2011 by Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc for the benefit of

JPMorgan Chase Bank National Association incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May

25 2011

10.42 Environmental Indemnification Agreement dated as of May 19 2011 by and between Inland Diversified

Norman University L.L.C and Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc in favor of JPMorgan Chase Bank
National Association incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 25 2011

10.43 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of December 23 2010 by and between Perimeter Woods Retail SAE
LLC and Inland Real Estate Acquisitions Inc as amended by the First Amendment dated as of January 24

2011 the Second Amendment dated as of February 2011 the Third Amendment dated as of February 14

2011 the Fourth Amendment dated as of March 2011 the Fifth Amendment dated as of March 2011 the

Sixth Amendment dated as of March 2011 the Seventh Amendment dated as of March 10 2011 and the

Eighth Amendment dated as of May 12 2011 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June

2011

10.44 Assignment dated as of June 2011 by Inland Real Estate Acquisitions Inc to and for the benefit of Inland

Diversified Charlotte Perimeter Woods L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June

2011

10.45 Assignment and Assumption of Leases dated as of June 2011 by Perimeter Woods Retail SAE LLC for the

benefit of Inland Diversified Charlotte Perimeter Woods L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on June 2011

10.46 Post Closing and Indemnity Agreement dated as of June 2011 by and between Perimeter Woods Retail SAE
LLC and Inland Diversified Charlotte Perimeter Woods L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on June 2011

10.47 Loan Assumption Agreement dated as of June 2011 by and between Inland Diversified Charlotte Perimeter

Woods L.L.C as borrower and Jackson National Life Insurance Company as lender incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and

Exchange Commission on June 2011

10.48 Assumption and Modification Agreement dated as of June 2011 by Inland Diversified Charlotte Perimeter

Woods L.L.C for the benefit of Jackson National Life Insurance Company incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.6 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on June 2011
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Exhibit

No Description

10.49 Indemnification Agreement dated as of June 2011 by Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc for the benefit

of Jackson National Life Insurance Company incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June

2011

10.50 Environmental Indemnity Agreement dated as of June 2011 by and between Inland Diversified Charlotte

Perimeter Woods L.L.C and Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc as Indemnitor in favor of Jackson

National Life Insurance Company incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrants Current Report

on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 2011

10.51 Letter Agreement dated as of April 27 2010 by and between Draper Peaks L.L.C and Inland Real Estate

Acquisitions Inc as amended incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 23 2011

10.52 Assignment dated as of June 17 2011 by and between Inland Real Estate Acquisitions Inc to and for the

benefit of Inland Diversified Draper Peaks L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June

23 201

10.53 Assignment of Leases dated as of June 17 2011 by and between Draper Peaks L.L.C for the benefit of Inland

Diversified Draper Peaks L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 23 2011

10.54 Guaranty dated as of June 17 2011 by and between Draper Peaks L.L.C and Inland Diversified Draper Peaks

L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the

Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 23 2011

10.55 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of December 23 2010 by and among Mullins Crossing LLC and

Mullins Crossing Out Parcels LLC and Inland Real Estate Acquisitions Inc as amended by the First

Amendment dated as of January 25 2011 the Second Amendment dated as of February 2011 the Third

Amendment dated as of February 14 2011 the Fourth Amendment dated as of March 2011 the Fifth

Amendment dated as of March 2011 the Sixth Amendment dated as of March 2011 the Seventh

Amendment dated as of March 10 2011 the Eighth Amendment dated as of May 11 2011 the Ninth

Amendment dated as of June 2011 the Tenth Amendment dated as of June 29 2011 the Eleventh

Amendment dated as of July 14 2011 the Twelfth Amendment dated as of August 2011 the Thirteenth

Amendment dated as of August 15 2011 the Fourteenth Amendment dated as of August 18 2011 incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on August 24 2011

10.56 Assignment dated as of August 18 2011 by Inland Real Estate Acquisitions Inc to and for the benefit of Inland

Diversified Evans Mullins Outlots L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 24

2011

10.57 Assignment dated as of August 18 2011 by Inland Real Estate Acquisitions Inc to and for the benefit of Inland

Diversified Evans Mullins L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Current Report

on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 24 2011

10.58 Assignment and Assumption of Leases dated as of August 18 2011 by Mullins Crossing Out Parcels LLC to

Inland Diversified Evans Mullins Outlots L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August

242011

10.59 Assignment and Assumption of Leases dated as of August 18 2011 by Mullins Crossing LLC to Inland

Diversified Evans Mullins L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrants Current Report

on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 24 2011
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10.60 Post Closing and Indemnity Agreement dated as of August 182011 by and among Inland Diversified Evans

Mullins L.L.C and Inland Diversified Evans Mullins Outlots L.L.C and Mullins Crossing LLC and Mullins

Crossing Out Parcels LLC incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrants Current Report on Form

8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 24 2011

10.61 Assumption Agreement dated as of August 18 2011 by and among U.S Bank National Association as Trustee

Successor-In-Interest to Bank of America N.A in its capacity as Trustee Successor to Wells Fargo Bank N.A
in its capacity as Trustee for the registered holders of GS Mortgage Securities Corporation II Commercial

Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates Series 2006 GG8 as Noteholder Mullins Crossing LLC as Borrower

Inland Diversified Evans Mullins L.L.C as Assumptor and Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc as New
Guarantor incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by

the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 24 2011

10.62 Limited Payment Guaranty dated as of August 18 2011 by Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc for the

benefit of U.S Bank National Association as Trustee Successor-In-Interest to Bank of America N.A in its

capacity as Trustee Successor to Wells Fargo Bank N.A in its capacity as Trustee for the registered holders of

GS Mortgage Securities Corporation II Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates Series 2006 068 its

Successors and Assigns incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-

as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 24 2011

10.63 Guaranty of Recourse Obligations dated as of August 18 2011 by Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc in

favor of U.S Bank National Association as Trustee Successor-In-Interest to Bank of America N.A in its

capacity as Trustee Successor to Wells Fargo Bank N.A in its capacity as Trustee for the registered holders of

GS Mortgage Securities Corporation II Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates Series 2006 GG8

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the

Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 24 2011

10.64 Environmental and Hazardous Substance Indemnification Agreement dated as of August 18 2011 by and

between Inland Diversified Evans Mullins L.L.C and Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc collectively the

Indemnitor to and for the benefit of U.S Bank National Association as Trustee Successor-In-Interest to Bank of

America N.A in its capacity as Trustee Successor to Wells Fargo Bank N.A in its capacity as Trustee for the

registered holders of OS Mortgage Securities Corporation II Commercial Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates

Series 2006 118 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as

filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 24 2011

10.65 First Modification of Note Loan Agreement and Other Loan Documents dated as of March 13 2012 by and

among Inland Diversified Virginia Beach Landstown L.L.C as borrower Bank of America N.A as lender and

Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc as guarantor incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 19 2012

10.66 Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement of Inland Diversified White Plains City Center Member

L.L.C made as of September 28 2012 by and between Inland Diversified White Plains City Center Member II

L.L.C LC White Plains Retail LLC and LC White Plains Recreation LLC incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on October 2012

10.67 Agreement of Contribution dated as of September 28 2012 by and between LC White Plains Retail LLC LC
White Plains Recreation LLC and Inland Diversified White Plains City Center Member II L.L.C incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on October 2012

10.68 Mortgage dated as of September 28 2012 by Inland Diversified White Plains City Center L.L.C to and in

favor of Bank of America N.A incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 2012
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10.69 Environmental Indemnification and Release Agreement dated as of September 28 2012 by and between Inland

Diversified White Plains City Center L.L.C Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc and Bank of Amenca

N.A incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the

Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 2012

10.70 Limited Guaranty Agreement dated as of September 28 2012 by Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc in

favor of Bank of America N.A incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 2012

10.71 Term Loan Agreement dated as of September 28 2012 by and between Inland Diversified White Plains City

Center L.L.C as borrower and Bank of America N.A as lender incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to

the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on October 2012

10.72 Promissory Note dated as of September 28 2012 by Inland Diversified White Plains City Center L.L.C for the

benefit of Bank of America N.A incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 2012

10.73 Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement of Inland Diversified Dayville Killingly Member L.L.C made

as of October 2012 by and between Inland Diversified Dayville Killingly Member II L.L.C and Dayville

Unit Investors LLC incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 10 2012

10.74 Agreement of Contribution dated as of October 2012 by and between Dayville Unit Investors LLC and

Inland Diversified Dayville Killingly Member II L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on October 10 2012

10.75 Third Amended and Restated Mortgage Note dated as of October 32012 by Dayville Property Development LLC

to and in favor of The Huntington National Bank incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October

10 2012

10.76 Environmental Indemnity Agreement dated as of October 2012 by Dayville Property Development LLC and

Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc to The Huntington National Bank incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.4 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on October 10 2012

10.77 Twelfth Loan Modification and Extension Agreement and Release of Guaranty and Indemnity made as of

October 2012 by and between Dayville Property Development LLC BVS Acquisition Co LLC Inland

Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc and The Huntington National Bank incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5

to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on October 10 2012

10.78 Guaranty and Suretyship Agreement made as of October 2012 by and between Inland Diversified Real Estate

Trust Inc and The Huntington National Bank incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on

October 10 2012

10.79 Assignment and Assumption of Limited Liability Company Membership Interests entered into effective as of

October 2012 by and between Dayville Unit Investors LLC and Inland Diversified Dayville Killingly Member

II L.L.C and Inland Diversified Dayville Killingly Member L.L.C incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to

the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on October 10 2012
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10.80 Agreement of Purchase and Sale and Contribution Agreement made as of October 17 2012 between Inland

Real Estate Acquisitions Inc and Centennial Centre L.L.C Centennial Holdings L.L.C Eastern Beltway

Ltd Craig Losee Corner LLC Retail Development Partners LLC and Virgin Territory LLC as amended by the

First Amendment executed as of December 20 2012 and the Second Amendment executed as of December 27
2012 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the

Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 2013

10.81 Agreement of Purchase and Sale and Contribution Agreement made as of October 17 2012 between Centennial

Gateway L.L.C and Inland Real Estate Acquisitions Inc as amended by the First Amendment executed as of

December 20 2012 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as

filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 2013

10.82 Assignment and Assumption of Agreement for Purchase and Sale dated as of December 27 2012 by and

between Inland Real Estate Acquisitions Inc and Inland Diversified Las Vegas Centennial Centre L.L.C

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the

Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 2013

10.83 Assignment and Assumption of Agreement for Purchase and Sale dated as of December 27 2012 by and

between Inland Real Estate Acquisitions Inc and Inland Diversified Las Vegas Centennial Gateway L.L.C

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the

Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 2013

10.84 Assignment and Assumption of Agreement for Purchase and Sale dated as of December 27 2012 by and

between Inland Real Estate Acquisitions Inc and Inland Diversified Henderson Eastgate L.L.C incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on January 2013

10.85 Assignment and Assumption of Agreement for Purchase and Sale dated as of December 27 2012 by and

between Inland Real Estate Acquisitions Inc and Inland Diversified Las Vegas Eastern Beltway L.L.C

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the

Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 2013

10.86 Assignment and Assumption of Agreement for Purchase and Sale dated as of December 27 2012 by and

between Inland Real Estate Acquisitions Inc and Inland Diversified Las Vegas Craig L.L.C incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on January 2013

10.87 Assignment and Assumption of Agreement for Purchase and Sale dated as of December 27 2012 by and

between Inland Real Estate Acquisitions Inc and Inland Diversified North Las Vegas Losee L.L.C

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the

Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 2013

10.88 Limited Liability Company Agreement of Inland Territory L.L.C made as of December 27 2012 by and

between Inland Territory Member L.L.C Centennial Centre L.L.C Eastern Beltway Ltd Centennial

Gateway L.L.C and Retail Development Partners LLC incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on January 2013

10.89 Loan Agreement dated as of December 27 2012 between Inland Diversified Las Vegas Centennial Centre

L.L.C and Cantor Commercial Real Estate Lending L.P incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on January 2013

10.90 Promissory Note dated as of December 27 2012 by Inland Diversified Las Vegas Centennial Centre L.L.C for

the benefit of Cantor Commercial Real Estate Lending L.P incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on January 2013
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10.91 Environmental Indemnity Agreement Unsecured made jointly and severally as of December 27 2012 by and

between Inland Diversified Las Vegas Centennial Centre L.L.C and Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc in

favor of Cantor Commercial Real Estate Lending L.P incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on January 2013

10.92 Guaranty of Recourse Obligations Unsecured made as of December 27 2012 by Inland Diversified Real

Estate Trust Inc for the benefit of Cantor Commercial Real Estate Lending L.P incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.13 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and

Exchange Commission on January 2013

10.93 Post-Closing Agreement dated as of December 27 2012 by Inland Diversified Las Vegas Centennial Centre

L.L.C to Cantor Commercial Real Estate Lending L.P incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on January 2013

10.94 Loan Agreement dated as of December 27 2012 between Inland Diversified Las Vegas Eastern Beltway L.L.C

and Cantor Commercial Real Estate Lending L.P incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January

2013

10.95 Promissory Note dated as of December 27 2012 by Inland Diversified Las Vegas Eastern Beltway L.L.C for

the benefit of Cantor Commercial 1eal Estate Lending L.P incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on January 2013

10.96 Environmental Indemnity Agreement Unsecured made jointly and severally as of December 27 2012 by and

between Inland Diversified Las Vegas Eastern Beltway L.L.C and Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc in

favor of Cantor Commercial Real Estate Lending L.P incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on January 2013

10.97 Guaranty of Recourse Obligations Unsecured made as of December 27 2012 by Inland Diversified Real

Estate Trust Inc for the benefit of Cantor Commercial Real Estate Lending L.P incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.18 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and

Exchange Commission on January 2013

10.98 Loan Agreement dated as of December 27 2012 by and among Inland Diversified Las Vegas Centennial

Gateway L.L.C Inland Diversified Henderson Eastgate L.L.C and The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the

Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 2013

10.99 Promissory Note dated as of December 27 2012 by Inland Diversified Las Vegas Centennial Gateway L.L.C
Inland Diversified Henderson Eastgate L.L.C for the benefit of The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on January 2013

10.100 Contribution Agreement entered into as of December 27 2012 by and among Inland Diversified Las Vegas

Centennial Gateway L.L.C Inland Diversified Henderson Eastgate L.L.C and The Royal Bank of Scotland

PLC incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the

Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 2013

10.101 Guaranty of Recourse Obligations dated as of December 27 2012 by Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc

as guarantor in favor of The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange

Commission on January 2013
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10.102 Post Closing Obligations Letter dated as of December 27 2012 from Inland Diversified Las Vegas Centennial

Gateway L.L.C and Inland Diversified Henderson Eastgate L.L.C to The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed by the

Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 2013

10.103 Agreement dated as of January 2013 between Inland Diversified Las Vegas Centennial Centre L.L.C and

Cantor Commercial Real Estate Lending L.P incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-KIA as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on

January 2013

10.104 Agreement dated as of January 2013 between Inland Diversified Las Vegas Eastern Beltway L.L.C and

Cantor Commercial Real Estate Lending L.P incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-KIA as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on

January 2013

14.1 Code of Ethics

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23.1 Consent of KPMG LLP

31.1 Certification by Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification by Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification by Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification by Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

99.1 First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Share Repurchase Program of Inland Diversified Real Estate

Trust Inc effective November 2011 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K as filed by the Registrant with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 14

2011

101 The following financial information from our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year

ended December 31

2012 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 13 2013 is formatted in Extensible

Business Reporting Language XBRL Consolidated Balance Sheets iiConsolidated Statements of

Operations and Other Comprehensive Income iii Consolidated Statements of Equity iv Consolidated

Statements of Cash Flows Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements tagged as blocks of text

Filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

The XBRL related information in Exhibit 101 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K shall not be deemed filed for purposes of

Section 18 of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 as amended or otherwise subject to liability of that section and shall

not be incorporated by reference into any filing or other document pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933 as amended except

as shall be expressly set forth by specific reference in such filing or document
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Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Principal Executive Officer

Barry Lazarus certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material fact

necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not misleading

with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in all

material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods

presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a-l 5e and 5d-l 5e and internal control over financial reporting as

defined in Exchange Act Rules l3a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in

which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting

to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report

our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period

covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual

report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control

over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over

financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors or persons

performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize

and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role

in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

By Is Barry Lazarus

Name Barry Lazarus

Title President principal executive officer

Date Marchl32013



Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Principal Financial Officer

Steven Hippel certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material fact

necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not misleading

with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in all

material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the periods

presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-l5e and 15d-15e and internal control over financial reporting as

defined in Exchange Act Rules l3a-15f and 15d-15f for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be

designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its

consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in

which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting

to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report

our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period

covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred

during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual

report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control

over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over

financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors or persons

performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize

and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role

in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

By /5/ Steven Hippel

Name Steven Hippel

Title Treasurer and chief financial officer principal financial officer

Date March 132013



Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc the Company for the year ended

December 31 2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the Report Barry Lazarus president of

the Company certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that to

the best of his knowledge

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of

the Company

Date March 13 2013 By Is/ Barry Lazarus

Name Barry Lazarus

Title President principal executive officer

This certification accompanies the Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not except to the extent

required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as amended signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained

by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request



Exhibit 32.2

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc the Company for the year ended

December 31 2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the Report Steven Hippel treasurer and

chief financial officer of the Company certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes

Oxley Act of 2002 that to the best of his knowledge

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of

the Company

Date March 13 2013 By Is Steven Hippel

Name Steven Hippel

Title Treasurer and chief financial officer principal financial officer

This certification accompanies the Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not except to the extent

required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as amended signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained

by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request
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INLAND
DIVERSIFIED
REAL ESTATE TRUST INC

OUTSIDE COUNSEL

Shefsky Froelich Ltd

111 East Wacker Drive

Suite 2800

Chicago IL 60601

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

KPMG LLP

303 East Wacker Drive

Chicago IL 60601

TRANSFER AGENT

DST Systems Inc

P.O Box 219287

Kansas City MO 64121-9287

CORPORATE OFFICE

2901 Butterfield Road

Oak Brook lL60523

Toll Free 800.826.8228

Phone 630.218.8000

www.inlanddiversified.com

ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS MEETING

The Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc Annual Stockholders

Meeting is scheduled to be held on Wednesday June 12th 2013

at 1000am CT at the Inland Corporate Office located at

2901 Butterfield Road Oak Brook IL 60523

INVESTOR SERVICES

If you have any questions please contact your Financial

Advisor or Inland Investor Services at 800.826.8228 or

by email at custserv@inland-investments.com FSC Orc
FSCC101537

The companies depicted in the photographs herein may have proprietary interests in their trade names and trademarks and nothing herein

shall be considered to be an endorsement authorization or approval of Inland Diversified by the companies Further none of these companies

are affiliated with Inland Diversified in any manner The Inland name and logo are registered trademarks being used under license

The statements and certain other information contained in this report which can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as

may will expects anticipates believes intends should estimates could or similar expressions constitute forward-looking

statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 as amended and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as amended and are subject to the safe harbors created thereby These statements are not guarantees of future performance and are

subject to variety of risks and uncertainties including but not limited to those risk factors listed and described under Risk Factors in Inland

Diversifieds Annual Report on Form 10-K These risks and uncertainties could cause actual results to differ materially from those projected
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April 2013

To Our Stockholders

We are required by the terms of our governing documents to report certain information to you on an annual basis In

particular we are required to report to you the ratio of the costs of raising capital during the year to the capital

raised the aggregate amount of fees paid to our sponsor Inland Real Estate Investment Corporation and any of

its affiliates including our business manager and real estate managers which is described in our proxy statement for

the annual meeting of stockholders to be held on June 12 2013 the total operating expenses stated as

percentage of average invested assets and net income in each case as these terms are defined in our governing

documents report from our independent directors that the policies being followed by us are in your best

interest and the basis for this determination and full disclosure of all material terms factors and circumstances

surrounding any and all transactions involving us our directors our sponsor or any of its or their affiliates during

2012

We completed best efforts offering on our shares of common stock on August 23 2012 As of December 31

2012 we had raised approximately $1.1 billion in gross offering proceeds from the sale of common stock in our

best efforts public offering and approximately $50.6 million by selling shares through our distribution

reinvestment plan For the year ended December 31 2012 the ratio of the costs of raising capital to the capital

raised was 10.1% During the year ended December 31 2012 we paid certain fees and reimbursed certain

expenses to our sponsor and its affiliates including our real estate managers as described in the Certain

Relationships and Related Transactions section of our proxy statement for the annual meeting of stockholders to be

held on June 12 2013 Our total operating expenses for the year ended December 31 2012 as percentage of

average invested assets and net income for that year were 0.4% and 7.9% respectively which is below our

charter limits of 2.0% and 25% respectively Please note that these terms are defined in our charter in accordance

with the policy guidelines promulgated by the state regulatory bodies The material terms factors and

circumstances surrounding any and all transactions involving us our directors our sponsor or any of its or their

affiliates during the last year are described in our proxy statement under the caption Certain Relationships and

Related Transactions

The report of our independent directors is attached as Appendix to this letter This letter and the attached report

of our independent directors are provided to you as required by our governing documents and should not be

considered additional soliciting material or filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended We thank

you for your support

Respectfully submitted

Barry Lazarus

President COO

Enclosures

cc Broker Dealer
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DIVERSIFIED
REAL ESTATE TRUST INC

APPENDIX

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

As noted in Mr Lazarus letter we are required to report to you on whether we believe that the policies being

followed by the Company are in your best interests and the basis for that determination

As noted in the Companys proxy statement for the annual meeting of stockholders to be held on June 12 2013 we

met as board sixteen times last year Through these meetings as well as evaluating the materials prepared for

these meetings and discussions with management we evaluated the Companys business and policies and

determined whether acquisitions financings or other strategic courses of action were in your best interest Each

transaction or action requiring board approval must be approved by majority of the board including majority of

the independent directors Each transaction or action that the Company engaged in during the preceding fiscal
year

was in fact so approved Additionally we concurred with Managements recommendation not to acquire certain

properties as we believed they did not meet the investment objectives of the Company

During the year ended December 31 2012 the Company directly or indirectly purchased 92 properties totaling 6.8

million square feet and 144 multi-family units for approximately $1.2 billion net of assumed debt and other

prorations Prior to purchasing any properties directly the Company received an appraisal prepared by an

independent third party which reported value for the subject property equal to or greater than the purchase price

All of these purchases were completed with unaffiliated third parties as result of negotiations conducted on an

arms-length basis Consistent with the Companys investment objectives during 2012 the Company continued to

invest in real-estate related securities including the securities of traded REITs

In addition as detailed in the proxy statement under the caption Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

during 2012 the Company engaged in certain transactions with and paid certain fees and reimbursed certain

expenses to its sponsor Inland Real Estate Investment Corporation and its affiliates including the Companys

business manager and real estate managers We believe each of these transactions was fair to us Generally these

transactions must be and in 2012 were approved by majority of the Companys disinterested directors including

majority of our disinterested independent directors as being fair and reasonable to the Company and on terms and

conditions not less favorable to the Company than those available from unaffiliated third parties

Since December 31 2012 we have approved distributions payable at the annualized rate of 6% based on purchase

price of $10.00 per share at each of our regularly scheduled meetings in January February March and April 2013

Respectfully Submitted

Lee Daniels

Gerald Grupe

Heidi Lawton

Charles Wurtzebach
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NOTICE OF
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AND
PROXY STATEMENT

Date June 12 2013

Time 1000 a.m central time

Place 2901 Butterfield Road

Oak Brook Illinois 60523



Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc

2901 Butterfield Road

Oak Brook Illinois 60523

800 826-8228

Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders

to be held

June 12 2013

Dear Stockholder

Our annual stockholders meeting will be held on June 12 2013 at 1000 a.m central time

at our principal executive offices located at 2901 Butterfield Road in Oak Brook Illinois 60523

At our annual meeting we will ask you to

elect seven directors and

transact any other business that may be properly presented at the annual meeting

If you were stockholder of record at the close of business on March 29 2013 you may

vote in person at the annual meeting and any postponements or adjournments of the meeting

list of these stockholders will be available at our offices before the annual meeting

Please sign date and promptly return the enclosed proxy card in the enclosed envelope or

vote by telephone or Internet instructions are on your proxy card so that your shares will be

represented whether or not you attend the annual meeting

By order of the Board of Directors

Cathleen Hrtanek

Secretary

April 16 2013
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This proxy statement contains information related to the annual meeting of stockholders

to be held June 12 2013 beginning at 1O.00 a.m central time at our principal executive offices

located at 2901 Butterfield Road Oak Brook Illinois 60523 and at any postponements or

adjournments thereof This proxy statement is being mailed to stockholders on or about April 16
2013

INFORMATION ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING

Information About Attending the Annual Meeting

The board of directors of Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc referred to herein as the

Company we our or us Maryland corporation is soliciting your vote for the 2013

annual meeting of stockholders At the meeting you will be asked to

elect seven directors and

transact any other business that may be properly presented at the annual meeting

The board of directors recommends that you vote FOR each of the nominees for election

as director who are named in this proxy statement If you own shares of common stock in more
than one account such as individually and jointly with your spouse you may receive more than

one set of these materials Please make sure to vote all of your shares This proxy statement

summarizes information we are required to provide to you under the rules of the Securities and

Exchange Commission the SEC If you plan on attending the annual meeting of stockholders

in person please contact Ms Roberta Matlin our vice president at 00 826-8228 so that we
can arrange for sufficient space to accommodate all attendees

Information About Voting

Holders of our common stock at the close of business on March 29 2013 the Record

Date are entitled to receive this notice and to vote their shares at the antiuai meeting As of the

Record Date there were 115619679 shares of our common stock outstanding Each share of

common stock is entitled to one vote on each matter properly brought before the meeting

Your vote is needed to ensure that the proposal can be acted upon We are widely held

company and no large affiliated groups of stockholders own substantial blocks of our shares As
result large number of our stockholders must be present in person or by proxy at the annual

meeting Therefore your vote is very important even if you own small number of shares

Your immediate response will be1 avoid ootential delays and may save us sl2nlflcant

additional expense associated with soliciting stockholder votes We welcome your attendance

at the meeting

You may vote in person or by granting us proxy to vote on the proposal You mayauthorize

proxy in any of the following ways



by mail sign date and return the proxy card in the enclosed envelope

via telephcine dial 888 426-7019 and folkw the instructions provided on the proxy

card or

via the Internet go to www.proxvvoting.com/indiv and follow the instructions

provided on the proxy card

If you return your proxy card but do not mdicate how your shares should be voted they will

be voted FOR each of the nominees slated for election as director whp are named in this proxy

statement

If you grant us proxy you may nevertheless revoke your proxy at any time before it is

exercised by sending written notice to us Attention Ms Roberta Matlin vice president

providing us witha later-dated proxy or attending the annual meeting in person and voting your

shares Merely attending the annualmeeting without further action will not revoke your proxy

Information Regarding Tabulation of the Vote

We have hired Morrow Co LLC Morroi 470 West Aye Stamford CT 06902 to

solicit proxies on our behalf In addition Morrow will tabulate all votes cast at the annual meeting

and will at as the inspector of election

Quorum Requirement

The presence in person or by proxy of stockholders holding 50% or more of the shares of

our common stock outstandmg is necçssary to constitute quorum There must be quorum

present order forthe annual meeting to be duly held meeting at which business can be conducted

If you submit properly executed proxy card even if you abstain from votmg or do not give

instructions for voting then your shares will be considered present for purposes of establishing

quorum

Information About Vote Necessary for Action to be Taken

Each nommee for director must receive the affirmative vote of majonty of the shares of

common stock present in person or by proxy at the annual meeting to be elected properly executed

proxy marked withhold authonty will be counted for purposes of estabhshmg quorum but will

have the effect of vote against each nominee for director for which authority is withheld



Costs ofProxies

We will bear all costs.and expenses incurred in connection wih soliciting proxies Our
directors and executive officers as well as certain employees of our business manager Inland

Diversified Business Manager Advisor Inc sometimes referred to herein as the Business

Manager also may solicit procies by mailpersonal contact letter telephone telegram facsimile

or other electronic means These individuals will not receive any additional compensation for these

activities but may be reimbursed by us for their reasonable out-of-pocket expenses In addition

we have hired MOrrow to solicit proxies on our behalf We will pay Morrow fee of up to $5500

plus fee equal to $5.50 for each stockholder solicited by telephone and any out-of-pocket expenses
for

soliciting proxies

Other Matters

We are not aware of any other matter to be presented at the annual meeting Generally no
business aside from theitems discussed inthisptoxy statement may be transacted at the meeting
If however any other matter properly comes before the annual meeting as determined by the

chairman of the meeting your proxies are authorized to act on the proposal af their tiscretion

Important Notice Regardifl the Availability ófPoxy Materials

Important Notice Regarding the Availability ofProxy Materials for the Annual Meeting
of Stockholders to be Held on June 122013 This proxy statement the proxy card and our annual

report to stockholders for the year ended December 31 2012 are available on our website at

www.inlanddiversified.com Additional copies of this proxy statement our annual report to

stockholders or our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2012 will be

furnished to you without charge by writing us at 2901 Butterfield Road Oak BroOk Illinois 60523
Attention Investor Relations If reqUested by stoºkholders we also will provide copies of exhibits

to our Annual Report on Form 0-I for the year ended December 31 2012 for reasonable fee

All of the reports proxy materials and other information that we file with the SEC also can
be inspected and copied at the Public Reference Room maintained by the SEC at 100 Street N.E
Room 1580 Washington D.C 20549 Copies also can be obtained by mail from the Public

Reference Room at prescribed rates Please call the SEC at 800 SEC-0330 for further information

on the operation of the Public Reference Room In addition the SEC maintains an Internet website

www sec gov that contains reports proxy and mfonnation statements and other mformation

regarding registrants that file electronically with the SEC



STOCK OWNERSHIP

Stock Owned by Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

Based on review of fihins with the SEC the following table re1ects the amount of common

stock beneficially owned unless otherwise indicated by persons that beneficially own more

than 5% of the outstanding shares of our common stock our directors and each nominee for

director our executive officers and our directors and.executive officers as group All

information is as of April 12 2013

Amount and Nature

of Beneficial

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Ownership

Robert Parks Director and Chairman of the Board 61007

Lee Daniels Independent Director 4142

Gerald Grupe Independent Director 10000

Breii1a Giijral Director 3716

Heidi Lawton Independcnt Director

Brry Lazarus Director and President 18657

Charles Wurtzebach Independent Director 117

Roberta Matim Vice President 1095

Steven Hippel Treasurer and Chief Fmancial Officer

Cathleen Hrtanek ecietar 10 3501

AlDirectors and Officers as group ten persons 103297

Percent

of Class

Lessthanl%

The business address of each person
listed in the table is c/a Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc 2901

Butterfield Road Oak Brook Ilimois 60523

All fractional ownership amounts have been rounded to the nearest whole number

Mr Parks has sole voting power and shares investment power with his wife over all of the shares that he

beneficially owns

Mr Daniels has sole voting an4 investment ppwer over all of the shares that he beneficially owns

Mr Grupe and his wife share votmg and investment power over all of the shares that he beneficially owns

Ms Gujral has sole votingpower and shares investment power with her husband over 488 of the shares that

she beneficially owns Ms Gujral has sple voting and investment power over the remainder of the shares that

she bçneficially owns

Mr Lazarus has sole votipg power and shares investment power with his brother over 5000 of the shares

that he beneficially owns Mr LadrUi has sOle vOting power and shre investment power with his wife

overthe remainder of the hares that he beneficially owns

Mr Wurtzebach has sole voting and investment power over all of the shares that lie beneficially owns

Ms Matlin has sOle voting power and shares investment power with the trustee of her trust over all of the

shares that she beneficially owns

10 Ms Httanek has sole vOting and investment power Over all of the shares that
she beneficially owns

Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting CompliancE

Section 16a of the Securities Exchange Act of 193.4 as amended the Exchange Act

requires each director officer and individual beneficially owning more than 10% of our common

stock to file initial statements of beneficial ownership Form and statements of changes in

beneficial ownership Forms and of our common stock with the SEC Officers directors and



greater than 10% beneficial owners ate required by SEC rules to furnish us with copies of all forms

they file Based solely on review of the copies of these forms furnished to us during and with

respect to the fiscal year ended December 31 2012 or written representations that no additional

forms were required we believe that all of our officers and directors and persons that beneficially

owned more than 10% of the outstanding shares of our common stock complied with these filing

requirements during the fiscal year ended Iecember 31 2012

Interest of Certain Persons in Matters to BeActed On

No director executive officer nominee for election as director or associate of any director

executive officer or nominee has any substantial interest direct or indirect through security

holdings or otherwise in anymatter to be acted upon at the annual meeting

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

Independence

Our business is managed under the direction and oversihtof ourboard The mefhlrs of

our board are Lee Daniels Gerald Grupe Brenda Gujral Heidi Lawton Bany
Lazarus Robert Parks and Charles Wurtzebach As required by our charter majonty of our

directors must be independent As defined by our charter an independent director is person

who is not directly or indirectly associated and has not been directly or indirectly associated

within the two years priorto becoming an independent director with our sppnsor Inland Real Estate

Investment Corporation IREIC our Business Manager or any of their affiliates whethei by

ownership of ownership interest in employment by any material business or professional

relationship with or as an officer or director ofIREIC our Business Manager or any oftheiraffihiates

has not served or is not serving as diFectors for more than tbrpe REITs ongmated by IREIC or

advised by the Business Manager or any of its affiliates and performs no other services for the

Company except as director

Although our shares are not listed for tradmg on any national securities exchange and

therefore our board of directors is not subject to the independence requirements of the New York

Stock Exchange NYSE or any other national securities exchange our board has evaluated

whether our directors are independent as defined by the NYSE The NYSE standards provide

that to qualify as an mdependent director among other things the board of directors must

affirmatively determine that director has no material relationship with the Company either directly

or as partner stockholder or officer of an organization that has relationship with the Company

After reviewing l1 relevant tansaçtions or relationships between each director or any of

his or her family members and the Company our management and our independent registered

public accounting firm and consideiing.eavii directors direct and indirect assQiaftoI1 with IREIC
our Business Manager or any of their affiliates the board has determined that Ms Lawton along

with Messrs Daniels Grupe and Wurtebach qualify as independent directors



Board Leadership Structure and Risk Oversight

We have separated the roles of the president and chairman of the board in recognition of the

differences between the two roles Mr Lazarus in his role as both our president and the president

of our Business Manager is responsible for setting the strategic direction for the Company and for

providing the day to day leadership of the Company Mr Parks as chairman of the board organizes

the work of the board and ensures that the board has access to sufficient information to carry out

its functions Mr Parks presides over meetings ofthe board of directors and stockholders establishes

the agenda for each meeting and oversees the distribution of information to directors

Although we do not have lead independent director our board believes that it is able to

effectively provide independent oversight of our business and affairs including risks facing the

Company without lead independent director through the composition of our board of directors

the strong leadership of the independent directors and the independent committees of our board

Our full board of directors including our independent directors is responsible for approving all

transactions and each transaction between us and our Business Manager or its affiliates must be

approved by the affirmative vote of majority of our directors including majority of our

independent directors not otherwise interested in the transaction In addition each board member

iS kept apprised of our business and developments impacting our business and has complete and

open access to the members of our management team our Business Manager and our real estate

managers Inland Diversified Real Estate Services LLC Inland Diversified Asset Services LLC

Inland Diversified Leasing Services LLC and Inland Diversified Development Services LLC

collectively our Real Estate Managers

Our board is actively involved in overseeing risk management for the Company Our board

of directors oversees risk through its review and discussion of regular periodic reports to the

board of directors and its committees including management reports and studies on existing market

conditions leasing activity
and property operating data as well as actual and projected financial

results and various other matters relating to our business the required approval by the board

of directors of all transactions including among others acquisitions and dispositions of properties

financings and our agreements with Our Business ManÆgrour Real Estate Managers and the

ancillary service providers the oversight of our business by the audit and nominating and

corporate governance committees arid its review and discussion of regular periodic reports from

our independent public accounting firm and other outside consultants regarding various areas of

potential risk including among others those relating to the qualification of the Company as REIT

fur tax purposes and our internal cOntrol over financial reporting

Communicating with Directors

Stockholders wishing to communicate with our board and the ii3dividual directors may send

communications by letter e-mail or telephone in care of our corporate secretary who will review

and forward all correspondence to the appropriate person or persons for response

Our non-retaliation policy also known as our whistlebiower policy prohibits us from

retaliating or taking any adverse action against our employees or the employees of our Business

Manager or its affiliates for raising concern including concerns about accounting internal controls



or auditing matters Employees preferring to raise their concerns in confidential or anonyrncus

manner may do so by contacting our compliance officer at 630 218-8000 complete copy of

our non-retaliation policy maybe found on our website at www.inlanddiversified.com under the

Corporate Governance tab

Committees ofour Board of Directors

Our board has forned an audit committee and nominating and corporate governance

committee Each committee is comprised of three indepeiident directors and each c9mIjttee has

adopted written charter which is available on our website at www.inlanddiversified.com under

the Corporate Governance tab

Audit Committee Our board has formed separately-designated standmg audit committee

comprised of Messrs Daniels and Wurtzebach and Ms Laton Mr Wurtzbach serves the

chairman of this committee and our board has dctermined that Mr Wurtzebacb qualifies as an

audit committee financial expert as defined by the SEC The audit committee assists the boad
in fulfilling its oversight responsibility relating to the integrity of our financial statements

our compliance with legal and regulatory requirements the qualifications and independence of

the independent registered public accounting finn the adequacy of our internal eoptrols and

the performance of our independent registered public accounting firm The report of the

committee is included in this proxy statement

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee The nominating and corporate

governance committee is comprised of Messrs Daniels Grupe and Wurtzebach and Ms Lawton

Mr Daniels serves as the chairman of this committee The committee is responsible for

recommending individuals to the board for nomination as members of the board and its committees

as well as developing and recommending corporate governance guidelines The cnimittee

considers all qualified candidates identified by members of the committee by other members of

the board of directors by the Busipess Manager and by stockholders In recommending candidates

for director..positions the committee takes into account many factors and evaluates each director

candidate in light of among other things the candidates knowledge expeiience judgment and

skills such as an understanding of the real estate industry or brokerage industry or açcountingor

fmancial management expertise Other considerations include the candidates independence from

conflict with the Company andthe ability of the candidate to devote an appropriate amount ofeffort

to board duties The committee also focuses on persons actively engaged.in their occupations or

professions or are otherwise regularly involyed in the business professional or academic comnmnity4

majority of our directors must be independent as defined in our charter Moreover as required

by our charter at least one of our independent directors must have at least three years of rqlovant

real estate experience and each director other than the independent directors must have at least

three years of relevant experience demonstrating the knowledge and experience required to

successfully evaluate the..type ofassets we acquire The committee also considers diversity in its

broadest sense including persons diverse.in geography gender and ethnicity as well as represening

diverse experiences skills and backgrounds The committee evaluates each individual candidate

by considering all of these faôtors as ahoIe favoring active deliberation rather than the use of

ngid formulas to assign relative weights to these factors



Other Committees Our board does not have compensation committee or charter that

governs the pompensation process Instead the full board of directors performs the functions of

compensation committee including reviewing and approving all forms of compensation for our

independent directors In addition our independent directors determine at least annually that the

compensation thatwe contract to pay to our Business Manager is reasonable in relationto the nature

and quality of services performed or to be performed and is within the limits prescribed by our

charter and applicable law Our board does not believe that it requires separate compensation

committee at this time because we do not separately compensate our executive officers for their

service as officers nor do we reimburse either our Business Manager or our Real Estate Managers

for any compensation paid to their employees who also serve as our executive officers other than

through the general fees we pay to our Business Manager or our Real Estate Managers under the

business managementagreement and real estate management agreements respectively

Code of Ethics

Our board has adopted code of ethics applicable to our directors officers and employees which

is available on our website at www.inlanddiversified.com In addition printed copies of the code

of ethics are available to any stockholder without charge by writing us at 2901 Butterfield Road

Oak Brook Illinois 60523 Attention Investor Relations

PROPOSAL NO 1- ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Our board has nominated the seven individuals set forth below to serve as directors Messrs

lianiels Grupe and Wurtzebach and Ms Lawton have been nominated to serve as independent

directors Messrs Lazarus and Parks and Ms Guj rat also have been nominated to serve as directors

The nominating and corporate governance committee recommended and the board approved these

seven individuals to serve as members of the board on Apnl 32013

If you return proxy card but do not indicate how your shares should be voted they will

be voted FOR each of the nominees We kiiow of no reason why any nominee will be unable to

serve if elected If any nominee is unable to serve your proxy may vote for another nominee

proposed by the board or the board may reduce the number of directors to be elected If any director

resigns dies or is otherwise unable to serve out his or her term or if the board increases the number

directors the board may fill the vacancy until the next annual meeting of stockholders

The following sets forth each nommees pnncipal occupation and business as well as the

specific expenence qualifications attnbutes and skills that led to the conclusion by the board that

the nominee should serve as director of the Company All ages are stated as of January 2013

As used hereIn Inland refers to smº or all of the entities thatarØ part of The Inland Real Estate

Group of Companies Inc which is comprised of group of independent legal entities some of

which share owneTship or have been sponsored and managed by IREIC or its subsidianes

Robert Parks 69 Director and chairman of the board since June 2008 Mr Parks has

over forty years of expenence in th commercial real estate industry having been pnncipal of the

Inland organization since May 1968 Mr Parks is currently chairman of IREIC position he has

held since Noveiiber 984 He has also served as director of Inland Investment Advisors Inc



since June 1995 and served as director of Inland Securities Corporation from August 1984 until

June 2009 He served as director of Inland Real Estate Corporation from 1994 through June 2008
and served as chairman of the board from May 1994 to May 2004 and president and chief executive

officer from 1994 to April 2008 He also served as director and chairman of the board of Inland

Retail Real Estate Trust Inc from its inception in September 1998 to March 2006 and as chief

executive officer until December 2004 and as the chairman of the board and director of Retail

Properties of America Inc formerly Inland Western Retail Real Estate Trust Inc from its

inception in March 2003 to October 2010 Mr Parks also has served as the chairman of the board

and director of Inland American Real Estate Trust Inc since its inception in October 2004

Mr Parks is responsible for the ongoing administration of existing investment programs

corporate budgeting and administration for IRE1C He oversees and coordinates the marketing of

all investments and investor relations

Prior tojoining Inland Mr Parks taught in Chicagos public schools He received his bachelor

degree from Northeastern Illinois University and his masters degree from the University ofChicago
He is member of the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts or NAREIT

Lee Daniels 70 Independent director since September 2008 Mr Daniels brings to the

board depth of knowledge and experience regarding government and community relations based

on his more than forty five years of legal practice and government experience Mr Daniels founded

Lee Daniels Associates LLC consulting firm for government and community relations in

February 2007 From 2007 to 2012 Mr Daniels was pnncipal in commercial real estate firm

From 1992 to 2006 Mr Daniels was an equity partner at the Chicago law firm of Bell Boyd

Lloyd and previously had been an equity partner at Katten Muchin Zavis from 1982 to 1991 and

Daniels Faris from 1967 to 1982 From 1971 to 1974 Mr Daniels served as Special Assistant

Attorney General for the State of Illinois Mr Daniels served as member of the Illinois House of

Representatives om 1975 to 2007 and was Speaker of the Illinois House of Representatives from

1995 to 1997 and the Republican Leader from 1983 to 2003

Mr Daniels has served as director of Inland Real Estate Income Trust Inc since February

2012 Mr Daniels currently serves on the Board of Governors and Healthcare Board of Trustees

for Elmhurst Memorial Hospital since 1981 and Haymarket Center in Chicago since June 2010
Mr Daniels previously served on boards of directors of Suburban Bank of Elmhurst and Elmhurst

Federal Savings and Loan Association Mr Daniels received his bachelor degree from University

of Iowa in Iowa City and received his law degree from The John Marshall Law School in Chicago
Illinois Mr Daniels serves as Distinguished Fellow in the Political Science Department and

Special Assistant to the resident for Government and Community Relations at Elmhurst College

Gerald Grupe 74 Independent director since October 2009 Mr Grupe founded Ideal

Insurance Agency Inc serving as president and chief executive officer from June 1980 to June

2009 Ideal provides insurance program administration claims adminisiration and related services

to public and quasi-public entities Illinois including representing the Volunteer Firemens

Insurance Services for whicI Mr Grupe served as regional director from June 1974 to June 2009

Mr Grupe retired from Ideal in June 2009 In addition Mr Grupe served as the chairman of the

10



board of the Illinois Public Risk Fund from 1984 to June 2006 and served as its treasurer from June

2006 toJune 2009

Brenda Gujral 70 Director since June 2008 and presideifl.from June 2008 to May 2009

Ms Gujral was appointed presidçnt of Inland Securities Corporation in January 2013 she prçviously

served as the president and chief operating officer of Inland Securities Corporation from January

1997 to June 2009 and has been director of Inland Securities Corporation since January 1997

Ms Gujral is director of IREIC and has served as its president since February 2012 and served

in that capacity from July1987 through June 1992 and again from January 1998 through January

2011 In addition Ms Gujral served as the chief executive officer of IREIC from January2008 to

February 2012 Ms Gujral has servedas director oflnland InvestmentAdvisors Inc an investment

advisor since January 2001 and has served as director March 2003 to May 2012 and chief

executive officer June 2005 to November 2007 of Retail Properties of America Inc formerly

Inland Western Retail Real Estate Trust Inc as director since June 2008 and as president since

its inceptiOn in October 2004 to September 2012 of Inland American Real Estate Trust Inc and

as director and chairman of the board August 2011 to June 2012 of Inland Real Estate Income

Trust Inc formerly Inland Monthly Income Tru$ Inc. Ms Gujral also has been the chairman

of the board since May 2001 and the president since May 2012 of Inland Private Capital

Corporation formerly Inland Real Estate Exchange Corporation and director of Inland

Opportunity Business Manager Advisor Inc since April 2009 Ms Gtijral was director of

Inland Retail Real Estate Trust hic from its inception in September 1998 until it was acquired in

February 2007

Ms Gujral has overall responsibility for he operations of IREIC including investor

relations regulatory compliance and filings review of asset management activities and broker-

dealer marketing and communication. Ms Gujral works with internal and outside legal counsel in

structuring IREICsinvestment programs and in connection with preparing offering documents and

registering the related securities with the SEC and state securities commissions

Ms Gujral has been with the Ja4and organization for thirty-six years becoming an officer

in 1982 Prior to joining the Inland organization she worked for the Land Use Planning Commission

of the State of Oregon establishing an office in Portland to implement land use legislation for

Oregon Ms Gj.ijral graduated from CalifoniiaState University in Fresno She holds Series 722

39 and 63 certifications from FINRA and is member of NAREIT the Investment Program

Association and the Real Estate Investment Securities Association Additionally Ms Gujral serves

on the board of directors of the Disability Rights Center of the Virgin Islands an organization that

focuses on advancing the legal rights of people with disabilities in the U.S Virgin Islands

Heidi Lawton 50 Independent director since July 2010 Since 1994 Ms Lawton has

also served as member of the board of directors of Inland Real Estate Corporation NYSE IRC

the chairperson of IRCs compensatior committee and member of IRCs nominating and corporate

governance committee and audit committee Ms .Lawton is the managing broker and principal of

Lawton Realty Gro%lp Inc full service commercial real estate brokerage development and

management firm whjch sje founded in 1989 Ms Lawton has over twenty years of experience

acquiring developing and managing as well as arranging financing for large commercial properties
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Through herexperiences-she has developed skills in assessing risk and readmg and writing financial

reports She has also successfully turned around failed developments and associntions Her areas

of expertise include acquisitions for property development structuring real estate investments

property conversions Æhd hiflementing value add strategies Ms Lawton has eeniicnsed as

real estate professional fiice 1982 atd sŁFied as president of the Nörthern Illinois Commercial

Association of Realtors in 2009

Barry Lazarus 66 Director since October 2009 and our president and chief operating

officer as well as director and the president of our Business Manager since May 200.9 Mr
Lazarus has been affiliated with the Inland organization for forty years Mr Lazarus originally

joined the Inland organizatiOn in 1973 after three years in public accounting His first position was

confroller and he was latºrpromoted to treasurer In 1979 he relocated tb Arizona and formed The

Butterfield Company development and cOntracting finn while also serving as consultant to

investors insevera1 comin cial ventures In October 1990 Mr Lazarus rejoined Inland and became

the president of Intervest Midwest Real Estate Corporation Intervest then an affiliate of The

Inland Group Inc and iii 994 Mr Lazaruss company Wisconsin and Southern Land Company
Inc acquired Intervest flom.The Inland Group Inc

From January 1.999 Ugough December2004 Mr Lazarus was president and chief financial

officet of Inland Retail Real Estate Trust Inch IRRETI In December2004 be was alsopromoted

to chef executive officer at which time he..e1inquished his position as chief finanqial officet As

chief financial officer Mr Lazarus structured the companys overall financial plan including

budgeting arranging corporate lines of credit and development and permanent financing As

president he.coordinated the major operating divisions of IRRETI as well as the variOus entities

providing services to IRRETI He waspart of the team of professionals that negotiated the merger

and sale of IRRETI to Developers Diersified Real Estate Corporation NYSE .DDR which closed

in February 2007 In May2O07 Mr Lazarus became chief executive officer of Inland Atlantic

Development Corporation private company providing development services in the Southeastern

United States Mr Lazarus received his bachelor of business administration degree from the

University of Wisconsin and is certified public accountant

charles Wurtzebach Phi 63 independent director since May 2009 Mr Wurtzebach

is currently the George Ruff Visiting Professor in Real Estate Studies in the Department of Real

Estate atDePaulUæiversity iii Chicago Illinois lecturing at both the undergraduate and graduate

levels participating in joiiit research projects with other faculty and providing support to the DePaul

Real Estate Centet nWurt2ebachjoined the facultyat DePaul University in January2009 From

1999 to November 2008Mr Wurtzebach served as managing director and property chief investment

officer of Henderson Global Investors North America Inc where he was responsible for the

strategic portfolio planninj and the Overall management of Hendersons North American business

This included responsibilitfbrHendersons overall product offerings including institutional equity

roperty and retail equity and fixed interest As property Chief investment officer Mr WiArtzebach

worked directly with Hendersons property portfolio managers developing client investment

strategies He also chaired Hendersons North American Property Investment and Management

Committees He was a1soamember of Hendersons Global Senior Management Team Mr
Wurtzebach was president and chief executive officer of Heitman Capital Management from June
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1994 to May 1998 and president of JMB Institutional Realty from June 1991 to June 1994 In these

positions with Heitman and JMB Mr Wurtzebach actively supervised the financial risk exposure

financial reporting and internal control procedürs of each company In addition Mr WthtzebÆch

was the Director of the Real Estate and Urban Land Economics program within the Graduate School

of Business at the University of Texas at Austin from 1974 to 1986

Mr Wurtzebach has co-authored or acted as co-editor of several books including Modern

Real Estate co-authored with Mike Miles and Managing Real Estate Portfolios cO-edited with

Susan Hudson-Wilson AdditiOnal publication experience includs authoring numerous academic

and professional articles frequent featured speaker at professional and academic gatherings Mr

Wurtzebach was the 1994 recipient of the prestigious Graaskamp Award for Research Excellence

presented by the Pension Real Estate Association and is member of the American Real Estate

Society and past president and director of the Real Estate Research Institute Mr Wurtzebach

obtained his bachelor degree from DePaul University masters degree in business administration

from Northern Illinois University and Ph.D in finance from the University of Illinois at Urbana

RECOMMENDATION OF THE BOARD The board recommends that you vote FOR
the election of all seven nominees

Independent Director Compensation

We pay our independent directors an annual fee of $30000 plus $1250 for each in-person

meeting of the board and $750 for each meeting of the board attended by telephone We also pay

the chairperson of our audit committee an annual fee of $10000 and the chairpersons of any other

committee of our board including any special committee an annual fee of $7500 We pay our

independent directors $750 for each in-person meeting of each committee of the board and $500

for each meeting of each committee of the board attended by telephone We reimburse all of our

directors for any out-of-pocket expenses incurred by them in attending meetings We do not

compensate any director that also is an employee of our Company our Business Manager or its

affiliates

The following table further summarizes compensation earned by the independent directors

for the year ended December 31 2012

Fees Earned in All Other

Cash Compensation Total

Lee Daniels 42500 42500

GeraldW.Grupe 33350 33350

HeidiN.Lawton 36500 36500

Charles Wurtzebach 41700 41700
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Meetings of the Board ofDirectors udit committee and Stockholders

Dining the year endedDecØmbi 31 2012 our board met 16 times the audit committee mŁl five

times and the nominating and corporate governanØe committee met three times Each of our

directors attended 1eat 7% oftbaggregate amount of the meetiis or the board during the

period for which he or she wasa directQr and any committee on which heor she served in 2012

We encourage our directors to attend our annual meetings of stockholders and in 2012 each

director did so attend
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EXECUTIVECOMPENSATION

Executive Officers

The board of directors annually elects our executive officers These officers may be

terminated at any time Information about our each of executive officers with the exception of

Mr Lazarus whose biography is included above follows All ages are stated as of January 2013

Roberta Matlin 68 Qur vice president since September 2008 and the yice president of

our Business Manager since .May 2009 Ms Matlin also served as the president of our Business

Manager from June 2008 to May 2009

Ms Matlin joined IREICin 1984 as director of investor administration and currently serves

as director and senior vice president of IREIC in the latter capacity directing its day-to-day internal

operations Ms Matlin also has been director of Inland Private Capital Corporation since May

2001 vice president of Inland Institutional Capital Partners Corporation since May 2006 and

director since August 2012 She also has served as director and president of Inland Investment

A4visors Inc since June 1995 and Intervest Southern Real Estate Corporation since July 1995 and

director and president of Iiaand Securities Corporation from July 1995 to March 1997 and director

and vice president sincç April .1997 Ms Matlin has served as director of Pan American Bank

since December 2007 and since 2008 Ms Matlin has served as vice president of administration of

Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc and also has served as the president of Inland Diversified

Business Manager Advisor Inc from June 2008 through May 2009 an4 is currently its vice

president Since April 2009 she has served as president of Inland Opportunity Business Manager

Advisor Inc She has served as vice president of adrninjstration of Inland American Real Estate

Trust Inc since its inception in October2004 She served as president of Inland American Business

Manager Advisor from October 2004 until January 2012 She has served as vice president of

administration of Inland Real Estate Income Trust Inc and IREIT Business Manager Advisor

Inc since August 2011 Ms Matlin served as vice president of administration of Inland Western

Retail Real Estate Trust Inc from 2003 until 2007 vice president of administration of Inland Retail

Real Estate Trust Inc from 1998 until 2004 vice president of administration of Inland Real Estate

Corporation from 1995 until 2000 and trustee and executive vice president of Inland Mutual Fund

Trust from 2001 until 2004

Prior to joining Inland Ms Matlin worked for the Chicago Region of the Social Security

Administration of the United States Department of Health and Human Services Ms Matlin is

graduate of the University of Illinois in Champaign She holds Series .7 22 24 39 63 and 65

certifications from FINRA and is member ofREISA

Steven Hippe4.41 Our chief.fmancial offlcer as well as the chief financial officer of our

Business Manager smce July of 2012 In addition Mr Hippel has been our chief accounting officer

as well as the chief accounting officer of our Business Manager since November 2009 From

September 2004 to May 2009 Mr Hippel served as the senior vice president and chief financial

officer of ORIX Real Estate Capital Inc wholly owned subsidiary of ORIX USA Corporation

Mr Hippel directed all corporate and partnership financial reporting accounting treasury and tax

compliance for ORIXs nationwide portfolio of commercial and residential real estate development
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and investment assets mortgage loan receiabies and thitdparty investment management assets

Prior to joining ORLX Mr Hippel was employed by Shorenstein Company from January 2002 to

September 2004 serving as the vice president of finance and accounting from March 2003 to

September 2004 At Shorenstein Mr Hippel oversaw the accounting reporting and operational

requirements for thiee investment funds Mr Hippel also worked with Dºloitte TOuhe in their

Chicago-based real estate pràtice from June 1995 to December 2001 where he setred as an andit

and advisory manager frOm August 2000 to December 2001

Mr Hippel received his bachelor degree in economics with hors from Wifliatus College

in Williamstown Massachusetts and his Master of Sciencedegree in accountancy frOm DePaul

University in Chicago Illinois Mr Hippel is certified public accountant and member ofthe

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants the Illinois CPA Society and the International

Council of Shopping Centers

CathleenM Hrtunek 36 Our secretary and the seàretary of our Business Manager sinôØ

September 2008 Ms Hrtanek joined Iniad in 2005 and is an associate counsel and vice presidit

of The Inland Real EstateGroup Inc In her capacity as associate counsel Ms Hrtanek rØpreseæts

many of the entities that comprise the Inlan1 Real Estate Group of Companies on variety of legal

matters She is alsO member of the audit cOmmittee for the two public partnerships sponsored by

IREIC Ms Hrtanek also has served as the secretary of inland Monthly Income Trust inc since

August 2011 as the secretary of Inland Opportunity Busmess Manager Advisor Inc smce April

2009 and as the secretary Of Inland Private Capital Corporation formerly Inland Real Esttº

Exchange Corporation sinbe August2009 Prior to joining Inland Ms.Hrtanek had been employed

by Edwards Wildman Palmer LLP fOrmerly Wildinaii Harrold Allen Dixon LLP in Chicago
Illinois sinceSeptember 2001 Ms Hrtanºk has been adtuitted to practice law in the State of Illinoi

and is licensed real estate broker Ms Hrtanek receivedher bachelordeg ce from the University

of Notre Dame in South Bend Indiana and her law degree from Loyola University Chicago SChOol

ofLaw

compensation ofExecutive Officers

All of our executive offleers are offlcers of IREIC or one or more of its affiliates and are

compensated by those entities in part for services rendered to us We neithe compensate our

executive officers nor reimburse either our Business Manager or Real Estate Managers for any

compensation paid to individuals whO also serve as our executive officers or the executive officers

of our Business Manager ourReal Estate Managers or theirrespectiw affiliates provided that for

these purposes corporate secretary is not be considered an exeOutive officer As result we do

not have and our board of directors has not considered compensation policy or program for our

executive officers and has not included Compensation Discussion and Analysis report from

our board of direCtors with respect to executive compensatiOn non-binding stockholder advisory

vote on compensation of executives or non-binding stOkhoIder advisory vote on the freqtteney

of the stockholder vote on executive compensation The fees we pay tO the Business Manager and

Real Estate Managers under the business management agreement or the real estate management

agreements respectively are described in more detail under Certain Relationshipsaæd Rted
Transactions
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In the future our board may decide to pay annual compensation or bonuses or long-term

compensation awards to one or more persons for services as officers We also may from time to

time grant restricted shares of our common stock to one or more of our officers If we decide to

pay our named executive officers in the future the board of directors will review all forms of

compensation and approve all stock option grants warrants stock appreciation rights and other

current or deferred compensation payable to the executive officers with respect to the current or

future value of our shares In addition the board will include the non-binding stockholder advisory

votes on executive compensation and on the frequency of stockholder votes on executive

compensation in the relevant proxy statement as required pursuant to Section 14A of the Exchange

Act

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Set forth below is summary of the material transactions between the Company and various

affiliates of IREIC including our Business Manager and Real Estate Managers during the year

ended December 31 2012

Business Management Agreement

We have entered into busmess management agreement with Inland Diversified Business

Manager Advisor mc which serves as our Business Manager with responsibility for overseeibg

and managing our day-to-day operations Subject to satisfying the criteria described below we pay

our Business Manager quarterly business management fee equal to percentage of our average

invested assets calculated as follows ifwe have declared distributions dunng the prior calendar

quarter just ended in an amount equal to or greater than an average 7% annualized distribution

rate assuming share was purchased for $10 00 we pay fee equal to 1875% of our average

invested assets for that prior calendar quarter if we have declared distributions during the prior

calendar quarter jUst ended in an amount equal to or greater than an average 6% annualized

distribution rate but less than an average 7% annualized distribution rate in each case assuming

share was purchased for $10 00 we pay fee equal to 1625% of our average invested assets

for that prior calendar quarter if we have declared distributions during the prior calendar quarter

just ended in an amount equal to or greater than an average 5% annualized distribution rate but

less than an average 6% annualized distribution rate in each case assuming share was purchased

for $10 00 we pay fee equal to 125% of our average invested assets for that prior calendar

quarter or if we do not satisfy the criteria in or above in particular calendar quarter

just ended we do not except as set forth below pay business management fee for that prior

calendar quarter Assuming that or above is satisfied our Business Manager may decide

in its sole discretion to be paid an amount less than the total amount that may be paid If the Business

Manager decides to accept less in any particular quarter the excess amount that is not paid may in

the BusinessManagers sole discretion be waived permanently or accrued without interest to be

paid at later point in time For the year ended December 31 2012 lecause we declared

distributions during each calendar quarter in an amount equal to 6% per annum the Business

Manager was entitled to business management fee in an amount equal to approximately $9.2

millionof which approximately $7.7 million was permanently waived and $1.5 million was paid

or accrued
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As used herein average invested assets means for any period the average of the aggregate

book value of our assets including all intangibles and goodwill invested directly or indirectly in

equity interests in and loans secured by real estate assets as well as amounts invested in consolidated

and unconsolidated joint ventures or other partnerships REITs and other real estate operating

companies before reserves for amortization and depreciation or bad debts or other similarnon-cash

reserves computed by taking the average of these values at the end of each month during the relevant

calendar quarter Notwithstanding the above average invested assets excludes forthese purposes

any investments in securities including any non-controlling interests in REITs or other real estate

operating companies for which separate investment advisor fee is paid

After stockholders have first received on an aggregate basis from distributions from all

sources 10% per annum cumulative non-compounded return on plus return of aggregate

invested capital we will pay our Business Manager an incentive fee equal to 15% of the net

proceeds from the sale of our real estate assets including assets owned by REIT or other real

estate operating company that we acquire and operate as subsidiary For these purposes invested

capital means the aggregate original issue price paid for the shares of our common stock reduced

by prior distributions identified as special distributions from the sale or financing of our real estate

assets Net sales proceeds will be calculated after paying any property disposition fee to Inland

Real Estate Brokerage Inc or Inland Partnership Property Sales Corporation We did not satisfy

the conditions necessary for the payment of an incentive fee and thus did not incur any incentive

fees during the year ended December 31 2012

Upon liquidity event we will pay our Busmess Manager hstin fee equal to 15% of

the amount by which the market value of the outstanding shares of our common stock or the

common stock of our subsidiary plus the total distributions paid to stockholders from inception

until the date that market value is determined exceeds the aggregate invested capital less any

distributions of net sales or financing proceeds plus the total distributions required to be paid to

our stockholders in order to pay them the priority return from inception through the date that

market value is determined In the event that at the date of determination stockholders have not

received return of capital plus the priority return less any distributions of net sales or financing

proceeds the fee will be paid at the time that we have paid the total distributions required to be paid

to our stockholders in order to pay them the priority return calculated as described herein The

obligation to pay this fee will terminate if we acquire our Business Manager prior to liquidity

event The terms liquidity event market value and priority return are defmed in our busmess

management agreement We did not experience liquidity event and thus did not incur listing

fee during the year ended December 31 2012

Real EstateManagement Agreements

We have entered into real estate management agreements with each of our Real Estate

Managers under which our Real Estate Managers and their affiliates manage or Oversee each of

our real properties For each property that is nianaged directly by any ofour Real Estate Managers

or their affiliates we pay the applicable Real Estate Manager monthly fee of up to 4.5% of the

gross income from each property the entity manages The applicable Real Estate Manager

determines in its sole discretion the amount of the fee with respect to particular property subject
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to the 4.5% limitation This fee may be increased subject to the approval of majority of our

independent directors for certain properties For the year ended December 312012 we incurred

real estate management fees in an aggregate amount equal to approximately $5.6 mifljon

If we acquire property that will be managed directly by entities otier than our Real Estate

Managers or their affiliates such as any healthcare-related properties and lodging properties which

must be operated by third parties to ensure proper treatment of the income generated by these

properties under the applicable REIT rules or that will be owned through ajoint venture or if we

acquire property as result of acquiring interests inotherREITs or real estate operating companies

we will pay the applicable Real Estate Manager monthly oversight fee of up to 1% of the gross

income from the applicable property The applicable Real Estate Manager will determine in its sole

discretion the amount of the fee with respect to particular property subject to the 1% limit We

also will reimburse each Real Estate Manager and its affiliates for property-level expenses that they

pay or incur on our behalf including the salaries bonuses and benefits of persons employed by the

RealEstate Manager and its affiliates except for the salaries bonuses id benefits of persons who

alsO serve as one of our executive officers or as an eºcutive officer of an of our Real Estate

Managers In addition with respect to any property that is managed directly entities other than

our Real Estate Managers or their affiliates and does not generate income such as properties that

are newly constructed are under development or coæstrutionor have not yet been developed we

may pay monthly oversight fee based upon the hóurlybilling rate of the applicable Real Estate

Manager multiplied by the number of hours spent by its employees in providing oversight services

for us in respect of that property In no event will our Real Estate Managers receive both real

estate management fee and an oversight fee with respect to particular property In addition except

as otherwise approved by majonty of our independent directors the total fees paid to our Real

Estate Managers for managing particular property including oversight fees may not exceed 5%

of the gross income generated by the applicable property During the yea ended December 31

2012 we did not incur any oversight fees or related expenses

Dealer Manager Agreement

We were party to dealer hanager agreement with Inland SecuiitiesCorpoiatiOn Inland

Securities the dealer manªer for oUr best efforts offering which terihliated on August 23

2012 Inland Securities was entitled to receive selling commission equal to 7.5% of the sale price

for each share sold in the best efforts offering and marketing contribution eqUal to 2.5% of the

gross offering proceeds from shares sold in the best efforts offering We also reimbursed Inland

Securities for bona fide out-of-pocket itemized and detailed due diligence expenses in amounts

up to 5% of the gross offenng proceeds These expenses could in our sole discretion have also

been reimbursed from amounts paid or reallowed asa marketing contribution Or could have been

reimbursed by us as issuer costs For the year ended December 31 2012 we incurred selling

commissions and marketing contnbution totaling approximately $37 million and $13 million

respectively and did not reimburseany bona fide out-of-pocket itemized and detailed due diligence

expenses Inland Securities reallowed in the aggregate approximately $4 million of these fees

In addition we reimbursed IREIC its affiliates and third parties for aiiy issuer costs that

they paid on ourbelialf including any bona fide out-of-pocket itemized and detailed due diligence
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expenses not reimbuied from aMounts paid or reallowed as marketing contribution in an amount

nOt to exiceedL5% ófthe.gros offering proceeds For the year ended Decmbet3120i2 these

costs totaled approxithately $3.0 rnillion

Other Fees ad Expense Reimbursements

We reimburse our Business Manager Real Estate Managers and entities affiliated with each

ofthem such as Inland Real Estate Acquisitions Inc IREA Inland Institutional Capital Partners

Corporation and their respective affiliates for expenses paid on our behalf in connection with

acquiring real estate assets regardless of whetherwe acquire the assets We may not however

reimburse expenses that excecdthe greater of 6% of the contract price of any real estate asset or

in the case of loan 6% of the funds advanced For the year ended December 31 2012 we

reimbursed approximately $2.0 million in acquisition expenses

We pay Inland Mortgage Servicing Corporation 003% per year on the first billion dollars

and 0.01% thereafter on i1 mortgages that are serviced by Inland Mortgage Servicing Corporation

In addition we pay Inland Mortgage rpkerage Corporation and Inland Commercial Mortgage

corporation 0.2% of the principal amount of each loan placed for us by either entity During the

year ended December 31 201 we inqu ed approximately $0.2 million in loan servicing.fees and

approximately $1.1 million in loan pacementfees

We pay Inliid Investment Advisors Inc monthly fee for providing mvestment advisory

services connection with our investments in securities We pay fees at an annual rate equal to 1%

ofthe first $1 to S5 nul1ion of sepunties under management 85% of securities from $5 to $10

million 75% of secWltles from $10 to $25 million 65% of securities from $25 to $50 million

60% of securities from $50 tp $100 riullion and 50% of securities above $100 millioi ssets

under management are determined based on the aggregate carrying value ofthe securities as reported

on the applicable brokers monthly statement or report During the year ended December 312012

we incurred approximately $0.3 million in investment advisory fees

We rei$rse 1RIC our Bus ness Manager our Real Estate Managers and their.respective

affiliates for any expenses that they pay or incur in providing ancillary services to us During the

year ended December 1012we reimbursed approximately $1.1 million to IREIC our Business

Manager aud their respcctiye affiliates

We reimburse related party of the usmess Manager for costs incurred for construction

oversight providdd to us relating to our joint venture redevelopment project We did not incur any

reimbursements for these costs during the year ended December 31 2012

We may pay property disposition fee to Inland Real Estate Brokerage Inc or Inland

Partnershi Property Sales Corporation in an amount equal to the lesser of 3% of the contract

sales price of the property 50% of the customary commission which would be paid to third

party broker far the sale ofª Æómparable property The amount paid when added to the sums paid

to unaffihiated paie may not exceed either the customary commission or an amount equal to 6%

of the contract sales price We did not incur any property disposition fees during the year ended

December 31 2012
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Other Rlated Party Transactions

As of December 31 2012 we owed approximately $2.5 million to IREIC and its affiliates

related to advances isec to pay administrative and offeiing costs and certain accrued expenses

which are included in clue to related parties These amoujits represent non-interest bearing adyances

by IREIC and its affiliates which we intend to repay

We had bank account with Inland Bank and Trust subsidiary of Inland Bucorp mc
which is an affiliate of The Inland Real Estate Group Inc which was closed on November 282012

We had established discount stock purchase policy for related parties and related parties

of the Business Manager that enables the related parties to purchase shares of common stock in our

best efforts offenng at $9 00 per share We sold 294331 shares to related parties and recogmzed

an expense related to these discounts of approximately $0 million for the year ended December

31 2012

are member of limited liability company tbrmed as an insurance association captive

which is cwned in equal proportions by us and four other REITs sponsóredbyIREIC and serviced

by an affiliate our Business Manager We entered into this insurance captivôin2009 to stabilize

insurance costs manage our exposures and recoup expenses through the functiOns of tli captive

program

At December 31 2012 we owned 75000 shares of common stock of Inland Real Estate

Corporation valued at approximately $0.6 million as Of December 31 2012 and 1000 shares of

common tock in the Inland Real Estate Group of Cothpanies With recOrded value of $1000 at

December 31 2012

Policies and Procedures with Respect to Related Party Transactions

We may not engage in transactions with entities sponsored by or affiliated with IREIC

unless majority of our board of directors including majority of our independent directors finds

the transaction to be fair and reasonable and on terms no less favorable to us than those from an

unaffihiated party under the same circumstances Our board also has adopted policy prohibiting

us from engaging in the following types of transactions with these entities

purchasing real estate assets from or selling real estate assets to any IREIC-affiliated

entities this excludes circumstances where an entity affiliated with IREIC such as

IREA enters into purchase agreement to acquire property and then assigns the

purchase agreement to us

making loans to or borrowing money from any IREIC-affiliated entities this

excludes expense advancements under existing agreements and the deposit of monies

in any banking institution affiliated with IREIC and

investing in joint ventures with any IREIC-affiliated entities
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This policy does not impact agreements or relationships betweenus and ikIQandits affiliates

that relate to the day-to-day management of our business or our offering of securities

Further if we decide at some point in the future to internalize ur Managethent

fithctloæs our Business Manager and Real Estate Managers have agreed to limit on the

purchase price for those entities and the form of the consideration ifwe decide to internalize our

management functions by acquiring our Business Manager and Real Estate Managers in

connectiorc4r1th hqnidity event For these purposes liquidity event means listing our

shares or the sfiatS äfoæe of Our subsidiaries on national sØcuritie exchange selling all or

substantially all of our assets or entering into merger reorganization husiiess combination

share exchange or acquisition in which o.ir stockholders receive cash or the securities of another

issuer that are listed on national securities exchange More specifcl1y in no event may the

aggregate paynent for these entities exceed two times the amount of the maximum business

management that coüll be paid the Business Manager during the four completed fiscal

quarters prior to closing the transaction specifically the sum of 0.1875% of our average invested

assets for eaebM the prçceiixg four calendar quarters multiplied by two. Further in event

may the aggregate ayneiitezceed 1.5% of the...amount of our total asset on he 1at audited

balance sheet prior to clcsmg the transaction givmg effect to any property acquisitions that were

probable or compietcd since the date of the last audited balance sheet priQr to the applicable

transaction In addition we will issue shares of our common stock rather than cash to pay the

purchase price In calculating the purchase price we will exclude any costs or expenses of the

mternalization transaction that we may agreç.to pay or reimburse for either costs and

expenses our Business Manager or Real Estate Managers have incurred on our behalf or2
costs and expenses ot Business Manageor Real Estate Managers incur directly in cginection

with the internalization transaction
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The following Audit Committee Report does not constitute soliciting material and should

not be deemed filed with the SEC or incorporated by reference into any other filing we make

under the SecuritiesAct of1933 as amended or the ExchangeAct except to the extent we specifically

incorporate this Report by reference therein

The Companys management is responsible for the financial reporting process preparing

consolidated financial statements in accordance with GAAP designing and implementing system

of internal controls and procedures designed to ensure compliance with GAAP and applicable laws

and regulations Our independent registered public accounting firm is responsible for auditing our

year-end financial statements The audit committee is responsible for monitoring and reviewing

these procedures and processes The audit committee is comprised of three independent directors

whose independence has been determined by the board of directors based on the standards set forth

in the audit committees charter The board has determined that Mr Wurtzebach qualifies as an

audit committee financial expert as defined by the SEC The members of the audit committee

are not professionally engaged in the practice of accounting or auditing and do not provide any

expert or other special assurance as to our financial statements concerning compliance with the

laws regulations or GAAP or as to the independence of the registered public accounting firm The

audit committee relies in part without independent verification on the information provided to it

and on the representations made by management and the independent registered public accounting

firm that the financial statements have been prepared in conformity with GAAP

During the year ended December 31 2012 the audit committee met five times At these

meetings the members of the audit committee met with representatives of the members of the

Companys management and with the Companys independent registered public accounting firm

KPMG LLP KPMG The committee discussed numerous items at these meetings including

KPMGs responsibilities to the Company and its audit plan for the year ended December 31

2012

The audit committee also has reviewed and discussed the Companys audited consolidated

financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31 2012 with the Companys

management Management has advised the committee that each set of financial statements

reviewed had been prepared in accordance with GAAP and reviewed significant accounting and

disclosure issues with the committee

The audit committee also discussed with KPMG all of the matters required by generally

accepted auditing standards including those described in Standards No 61 as amended AICPA
Professional Standards Vol AU section 380 as adopted by the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board PCAOB in Rule 3200T including the quality of our accounting principles the

reasonableness of significant judgments and the clarity of disclosures in the financial statements

The audit committee obtained formal written statement from KPMG describing all relationships

between KPMG and the Company that might bear on KPMGs independence In addition the audit

committee discussed any relationships that may have an impact on KPMGs objectivity and

independence and reviewed audit and non-audit fees paid to KPMG and the written disclosures and

letter from KPMG to the committee as required by the PCAOB Ethics and Independence Rule
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3526 Communication with Audit Committees Concerning Independence The audit committee has

concluded that KPMG is independent from the Company

Based on the above-mentioned review and discussions with management and KPMG the

audit committee recommended to the board of directors that the audited consolidated financial

statements be included in the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December

31 2012 for filing with the SEC

The Audit Committee

Charles Wurtzebach Chainnan

Lee Daniels

Heidi Lawton

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The audit committee has selected KPMG to Serve as our independent registered public

accounting firm for the year ending December 2013 Representatives of KPMG will attend the

annual meeting These representatives will have an opportunity to make statethent if they desi.re

to do so and will be available to respond to appropriate stockholder questions

Fees to Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The following table presents fees for professional services rendered by KPMG for the audit

of our annual financial statements for the years ended December 312012 and 2011 together with

fees for audit-related services and tax services rendered by KPMG for the years ended December

31 2012 and 2011 respectively

DescriDtiOn Year ended December 31

2012 2011

Audit fees1 $913969 $749750

Audit-related fees

Tax fees2 $140000 $60000

All other fees

TOTAL $1053969 $809750

Audit fees consist of fees paid for the audit of our annual financial statements included in our quarterly

reports on Form lO-Q as well as fees relating to registration statements and the audits of Historical

Summary of Gross Income and Direct Operating Expenses of properties acquid
Tax fees are compnsed of tax compliance fees
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Approval of Services and Fees

Our audit committee has reviewed and approved all of the fees charged by KPMG and

actively monitors the relationship between audit and non-audit services provided by KPMG The

audit committee concluded that all services rendered by KPMG during the years ended December

31 2012 and 2011 respectively were consistent with maintaining KPMGs independence

Accordingly the audit committee has approved all of the services provided by KPMG As matter

of policy the Company will not engage its primary independent registered public accounting firm

for non-audit services other than audit-related services as defined by the SEC certain tax services

and other permissible non-audit services except as specifically approved by the chairperson of the

audit committee and presented to the full committee at its next regular meeting The policy also

includes limits on hiring partners of and other professionals employed by KPMG to ensure that

the SEC auditor independence rules are satisfied

Under the pOlicy the audit committee must pre-approve any engagements to render services

provided by the Companys independent registered public accountiii firm and the fees charged

for these services including an annual review of audii fees audit-related fees tax fees and other

fees with specific dollar value limits for each category of servtce During the year the audit

cörmnittee will periodically monitor the levels of fees charged KPMG and compare these fees

to the amoutitspreviously approved The audit committee also will consider on case-by-case

basis and if appropriate approve specific engagements that are not otherwise pre-approved

Any proposed engagement that does not fit within the definition of pre-approved service may

be presentedto tte.chairpersQn of the audit committee for approval

COMPNSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AN INSIDER PARTICIPATION

None of our current or fornier officers or employees or the current or former officers or

employees of our subsidiaries participated in any deliberations of ourboard of directors concerning

executive officer cbmpensation dunng the year ended December 312012 In addition during the

year ended Deceiiber 31 2012 none of our executive officers served as director or member of

the compŁnsàtioncothmittee of any entity that has one or more executive officers serving as

member of our board of directors

25



STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR 2014 ANNUAL MEETING

We have not received any stockholder proposals for inclusion in this years proxy statement

Stockholders may nominate director candidates and make proposals to be considered at our annual

meeting to be held in 2014

Recommendations for Dwector Candidates

The Company plans to elect chrectors again at next years annual meeting Nommations for

director positions will be made by ournominating and corporate governance committee With respect

to candidates recommended by stockholders recommendations must be submitted accordance

with the procedures specified in Section of Article II of our bylaws Generally this requires that

the stockholder send certain information about the candidate to our secretary not later than the 90th

day and not earlier than the 120th day prior to the first anniversary of the proxy statement for the

preceding years annual meeting For our annual meeting to be held in 2014 stockholder must

provide written notice of acandidate recommendation not earlier than December 172013 and not

later than January 16 2014 to our corporate secretary do Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust

Inc 2901 Butterfield Road Oak Brook Illinois 60523 Candidate recommendations submitted

in accordance with the procedures specified in Article II Section of our bylaws copy of our

bylaws may be obtained by written request to our corporate secretary at the same address

Other Stockholder Proposals

Stockholders intending to present any other proposal for action by the stockholders at an

annual meeting are subject to tbe same notice provisions under our bylaws as discussed above

Accordingly for our annual meeting to be held in 2014 stockholder must provide written notice

of proposal not earlier than December 17 2013 and not later than January 16 2014

Our bylaws do not change the deadline for stockholder seeking to mclude proposal

our proxy statement pursuant to Rule 14a-8 promulgated under the Exchange Act or affect

stockholders right to present for actjon at an annual meeting any proposal so includcd Rule 14a-8

requires that notice ofa stockholder proposal requested to be included in our proxy materials pursuant

to that Rule must generally be furnished to our corporate secretary not later than 120 days prior to

the anniversary date of our proxy statement for the previous years annual meeting For our annual

meeting to be held in 2014 stockholder proposals to be considered for inclusion in the proxy

statement under Rule 14a-8 must be received by our corporate secretary no later than December

17 2013

Each of these stockholder proposals should be submitted in writing and addressed to our

corporate secretary do Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc 2901 Butterfield Road Oak

Brook Illinois 60523
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YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT THE PROMPT RETURN OF

PROXIES WILL SAVE US THE EXPENSE OF

FURTHER REQUESTS FOR PROXIES PLEASE

PROMPTLY MARK SIGN DATE AND RETURN THE

ENCLOSED PROXY IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE
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Please mark

vote as

indicated in

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS VOTE FOR ALL OF THE NOMINEES FOR DIRECTOR this example

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS FOR WITHHOLD

01 LEE DANIELS 05 BARRY LAZARUS LI
02 GERALD GRUPE 06 ROBERT PARKS

03 BRENDA GUJRAL 07 CHARLES WURIZEBACH

04 HEIDI LAWTON
CHECK HERE ONLY IF YOU PLAN TO

ATTEND THE MEETING IN PERSON

INSTRUCTION To withhold authority to vote for any specific nominees mark For All

and strike line through that nominees names or numbers in the list above

Date________________________________________________ 2013

Signature

Signature it held jointly

Please sign exactly as your name or names appear hereon For sift

accounts each owner should sign When signing as executor

administrator attorney trustee guardian or in another representative

capacity please give your full title If corporation or partnership please

sign in the name of the corporation or partnership by an authorized officer

or person

PLEASE SIGN DATE AND RETURN THIS PROXY CARD PROMPTLY

USING THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE

PLEASE SIGN DATE AND RETURN THIS CARD PROMPTLY USING THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE

TO VOTE BY MAIL PLEASE DETACH HERE

VOTE BY TELEPHONE OR INTERNET

QUICK EASY IMMEDIATE ___

Your telephone or internet vote authorizes the named proxies to vote your shares in the same manner as if you marked signed and

returned your proxy card by mail

VOTE BY PHONE You will be asked to enter CONTROL NUMBER which is located in the lower right hand corner of this form

VOTE BY INTERNET The web address is www.proxyvoting.com/INDIV You will be asked to enter CONTROL NUMBER which is

located in the lower right hand corner of this form

IF YOU VOTE BY PHONE OR INTERNETDO NOT MAIL THE PROXY CARD

THANK YOU FOR VOTING

Call Toll Free On Touch-Tone Telephone

1-888-426-7019

There is NO CHARGE to you for this call ______________________________

CONTROL NUMBER
for Telephone/Internet Voting



INLAND DIVERSIFIED REAL ESTATE TRUST INC

REVOCABLE PROXY FOR ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS JUNE 12 2013

THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The undersigned stockholder of Inland Diversified Real Estate Trust Inc Maryland corporation the

Company hereby appoints Roberta Matlin and Cathleen Hrtanek as proxies for the undersigned

and each of them each with full power of substitution in each of them to attend the annual meeting of

stockholders to be held at the principal executive offices of the Company located at 2901 Butterfield

Road Oak Brook Illinois 60523 on June 12 2013 at 1000 a.m central time or any adjournments or

postponements thereof to cast on behalf of the undersigned all votes that the undersigned is entitled

to cast at such meeting and otherwise to represent the undersigned at the meeting with all powers

possessed by the undersigned if personally present at the meeting The undersigned hereby

acknowledges receipt of the Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders and Proxy Statement and revokes

any proxy heretofore given with respect to such meeting

THIS PROXY WHEN PROPERLY EXECUTED WILL BE VOTED IN THE MANNER DIRECTED HEREIN BY

THE UNDERSIGNED STOCKHOLDER IF THIS PROXY IS EXECUTED BUT NO INSTRUCTION IS GIVEN

THE VOTES ENTITLED TO BE CAST BY THE UNDERSIGNED WILL BE CAST FOR EACH OF THE

NOMINEES FOR DIRECTOR AND IN THE DISCRETION OF THE PROXY HOLDER ON ANY OTHER

MATTER THAT MAY PROPERLY COME BEFORE THE MEETING OR ANY ADJOURNMENTS OR

POSTPONEMENTS THEREOF

Continued and to be signed on reverse side __________________
SEE REVERSE SIDE

TO VOTE BY MAIL PLEASE DETACH HERE



FROM NO POSTAGE

NECESSARY

IF MAILED

IN THE

UNITED STATES

BUSINESS REPLY MAIL
FIRST-CLASS MAIL PERMIT NO 204 BRENTWOOD NY

______________

POSTAGE WILL BE PAID BY ADDRESSEE ______________

PROXY SERVICES CORP
P0 BOX 9001

BRENTWOOD NY 11717-9804
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